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Financial Summary

BT F5 1 2

(In RMB'000 unless otherwise stated) (=5 B#5 50 AN EBETF L HR)

RESULTS E
For the year ended 31 December
HE+-BA=+—-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—EZ-§ C-—T-ZTF ZZ-NEF ZT-N\F ZZT—+F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFR ARETT ARE®Tn AR%®Trt ARETR
Continuing operations RBEGERER
Revenue ON 608,074 492,589 694,023 633,432 456,911
Cost of sales HERA (486,390) (485,241) (685,401) (565,082) (425,766)
Gross profit E7 121,684 7,348 8,622 68,350 31,145
Other revenue H A 15,783 17,626 19,855 9,479 15,637
Other net gain/(l0ss) Hip A/ (B18)FE 8,435 (39,416) 4,692) (179,887) (14,847)
Selling and distribution expenses BERDHERAS (46,860) (21,721) (25,556) (22,166) (16,875)
Administrative expenses THRAY (62,155) (57,269) (47.614) (47,695) (44.897)
Reversal of /(Provision of) expected £ RIEEMEHEE
credit loss on financial assets BiEzZEE/ (&H) 2,529 (3,933) (12,774) (642) =
Finance costs BEKAK (1,245) (162) 4071 (8,895) (6,216)
Share of profits and losses of AEHE AR 28Rk
associates BB - (287) (1,815) 282 (204)
Profit/(Loss) before tax from REFBELEELMN
continuing operations BEANES (BR) 38,171 (97,814) (63573) (181,174) (36,257)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FEHEe/ (RX) 10,153 4,119 (168) (2,135) (2,353)
Profit/(Loss) for the year from REFELEEBER
continuing operations FRRF/ (EE) 48,324 (93,695) (63,741) (183,309) (38,610)

PRAEMERERAE
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Financial Summary (continued)
B E ()

(In RMB'000 unless otherwise stated) (S E#H 750 U REFLIR)

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—BZ-% _T_% “E-NF ZE-\F ZE—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETxR
Discontinued operation BIERE
Loss for the year from a RELEBNFRER
discontinued operation (612) (587) (730) (1,622) (1,946)
Gain on de-registered of fBARREELR
a subsidiary, net Wz 38 - 1,183 - - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year from REXREBHER
a discontinued operation wH, (EE) (612) 596 (730) (1,622) (1,946)
Profit/(Loss) for the year AEEEN/ (BR) 47,712 (93,099) (64,471) (184,931) (40,556)
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
IN: S AR AR AR ARY
Earnings/(Loss) per share attributable AR E@IBERZEE A
to ordinary equity holders of iz BRER
the Company (note) (E#) (K5)
Basic: B
Profit/(Loss) for the year REFRT/ (BE) 0.057 (0.128) (0.104) (0.299) (0.067)
Profit/(Loss) from continuing SENEEBNRTE
operations w2/ (B18) 0.058 (0.129) (0.103) (0.296) (0.064)
Diluted: B
Profit/(Loss) for the year AEERF,/ (BE) 0.057 (0.128) (0.104) (0.299) (0.067)
Profit/(Loss) from continuing SRNEEXBNEREE
operations i,/ (EE) 0.058 (0.129) (0.103) (0.296) (0.064)

Note: On 22 October 2019, the Company has effected a share consolidation of every
five shares into one consolidated share. Earnings per share for the comparative
periods have been adjusted on a basis of five shares into one consolidated share
accordingly.

Bt RZZE—AF+A-+=B FAREHETERKHE
HR-RAHRD LBRBRNERANERBEARR
—RRAGIIR M M EAEETTHE
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Financial Summary (Continued)
BB E ()

(In RMB'000 unless otherwise stated) (= &#H 750 AN REFLITR)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

AE AERES

As at 31 December

®+=B=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
- —T-ZTF ZZ-NEF ZT-N\F ZZT—+F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFR AREFTT ARETRT ARETFT ARETR
Total Assets BEBE 989,375 878,878 981,445 1,167,881 1,493,483
Total Liabilities BEBE (113,983) (66,276) (95,812) 217,333) (362,893)
Total Non-Controlling Interest FERER AR (5,520) - - - -
Total Equity BB 869,872 812,602 885,633 950,548 1,130,590

PRAEMERERAE
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Chairlady’s Statement
TEWwE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company, | am pleased to present the results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021 (the "Reporting Year").

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Reporting Year, revenue and gross profit of the Group
achieved year-on-year increases of 23.4% and 16.6 times to
RMB608.1 million and RMB121.7 million, respectively. Besides the
strong sales, the Group has also seized the market opportunity for
a price rise. The gross profit margin of the Group bounced back
from an alarming 1.5% to a remarkable 20.0% during the Reporting
Year. As result, the Group has attained a positive turnaround with a
consolidated profit of RMB47.7 million (2020: Consolidated loss of
RMB93.1 million) after having recorded consolidated loss for several
years.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

North America had been the major market of the Group ever since
the Group ushered into an established scale of over a decade.
Consequently, the Group has had encountered severe impact of
trade tensions between China and the United States over the past
few years. The additional tariff imposed in 2019 and anti-dumping
duty introduced in early 2021 on wooden products have briefly led
to a decrease in gross profit margin of the Group. In the second half
of 2020, the Group has progressively reduced its sales of wooden
products and halted the timber trade to North America with regard
to the prolonged trade conflicts and stepped up its marketing efforts
on Australia. In 2021, the Group has further expanded its presence
to New Zealand. Increasing of acceptance of the Group's timber
houses and related parts and structures has been seen in these two
Australasian markets which timber supplies used to be self-sufficient
in general prior to the outbreak of COVID-19. The COVID-19 pandemic
has paved way to structural changes in the global construction
materials supplies. Stringent lockdown disrupted production of
wooden products in Australia, drove the backlog of new house
under construction to hit a record high and ultimately transformed
remote work lifestyle. Coupling with the rock-bottom interest rate
and government incentives such as the Australian Homebuilder
Scheme, demand for new houses was further stimulated. Thriving
new house sales have also been seen in several other globally

BALAR -

AAERERARAEZ([EXDG([E=F
) MAMNERREGARBRRENE R A
(IREEBE-T=_—F+=-A=+—H81
FE([REFOEE-

B RIA

REAREF NEBRAREFNSANIEZF LA
23.4%%16.6EE AR08 1H BTtk AR
121 7BBTL-BRTAEAIMBEN FEETRERE
THBREAER RBREFR NEEERERL
B = /91.5%8k A = 55 A #920.0% o A 1t - A& E
RINAEBERFNER SHBARKGIEE
& A (2020%F : ARME93TEBEEIE) -

EHRE

BEB+F BAEEEARBRUENEZ R
EXTE - ERAKENEIEMS AP X
BOMEEBEBFRBERR AEEHBRR
I #) £T B o 20194F Y B8 5P BE B 220214 I 54 A
MmO RBEY —EERAKERDE
MNE-BEERPXEHEERABR AEER
20205 T+ & i RETR = M AL X T35 3 B AN H
i NMETE PR AR B B 30 h o8 FE RN B & 8
THE-R2021F AEBEERREHAMTIS
HERSRBEREN BMNEFABAN SR
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REEPHHEEBIENRE T<SEMEA
SEAREREABESGRBHENKIEERMR
EM-BRENERERTETET AR
mEE ESBABINHERR RBIES
#m WKAREAMERTENEFTR N
RN SRR MR 218 K B 5 8 S B
RIS T FEFRE R - Btk [F
By BB 2 IRE LR BERMEE - i AM
RESHONEEEHEMEEGE MR
REEEDROEER ERERFEEM
BRI - TIHRIR A NE B ERAF TR
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Chairlady’s Statement (continued)
T REWE (®)

leading economies such as the United States, Canada and the
United Kingdom. Nevertheless, disruption of global supply chain has
further escalated the race for construction materials worldwide. Such
market environment has created favorable conditions for the Group's
marketing initiatives and pricing positions in the Australasian markets.
During the Reporting Year, revenue from Australasia amounted to
RMB438.9 million, which represented 72.2% of the overall revenue of
the Group in 2021.

The management remains cautiously optimistic to its manufacturing
and sales of wooden products for the overseas markets. In May
2021, the Company entered into an agreement to establish a
company, Zhangzhou Xingruixiang Supply Chain Management Co.,
Limited (“Xingruixiang”) with Zhangzhou Senwen International Trading
Co,, Ltd. (“Zhangzhou Senwen”) through an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group for the sourcing and sales of construction
and decoration materials, forestry products and timber in China. With
a total registered capital of RMB30 million, Xingruixiang will be held
51% as to the Group and 49% as to Zhangzhou Senwen. Zhangzhou
is one of major production bases for wooden products in China and
is one of the major coastal cities in Fujian Province, China. Located at
the coast of Zhangzhou, Zhangzhou Port is one of the top ten ports
for timber imports and the largest timber distribution center along
the southeast coast in China. The Group believes the establishment
of Xingruixiang will enrich the Group’s product portfolio through the
partnership with Zhangzhou Senwan and improve the Group's access
to Zhangzhou. This will help the Group to meet the growing needs
the customers, and to maintain its price advantage, safeguarding the
Group's competitiveness.

BHNMEERIERMOGEE RBEFA X
BBRAMBERHRAZEARKIBIBE 1
REBRWANZET2.2% °

EEEBHAERBEERDNGITISRE
FHELE - N2021F58 A AR EBEESR
BFRArEENRAREESZBERAR ([E
MEFRB]) BT AR AR Z M B
HEREREERAR (BHEEEE])  UE
B R A AR MR E R R 2 R
BREE ARENEMELAAARE =T
B AEBEREMNRBED1E51%K49% %
MERPBEEF—EAXENARREMEE:
ETEEEENEF —EEXZHEHT - R
EBMNTERZEMNBRPEEE+ KA
D RESERAMNARMERM NEE
AEEBFEERRENRENEGE BEX
SEMERES KR AEEBEENAES -
RAPAEBERERELTEHIER 2F K
WHFERED REAEENRE S -
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Chairlady’s Statement (continued)
T REWE ®)

PROSPECTS

Australia and New Zealand have seen GDP growth of 4.2% and 3.1%
respectively in 2021. The momentum is expected to sustain through
2022 as Australia embraced its strongest growth in 46 years in the
fourth quarter of 2021. As relief of global travel ban and open up of
the two countries respectively expected in the second half of 2022, it
is widely expected that the Australasian economic growth will further
accelerate throughout 2022 and 2023. In February, the National
Housing Finance and Investment Corporation (NHFIC) of Australia
estimated that the construction of there will be a net new dwellings
of 550,000 over the next three years. Against a backdrop of thriving
prospect of the Group’s business in the its new market focus, the
management maintains reasonably cautious with the geopolitical
and economic development worldwide in mind, and will continue
to formulate business plans and strategies for the future business
development of the Group in order to deliver stable returns to the
shareholders of the Company.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks for
the support and trust from our shareholders and business partners.
I would also like to thank our employees for their efforts and
contributions to the Group over the Reporting Year.

Xie Qingmei
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022

REE

BN R % 78 B 7020214 9 51l 85 154.2% I 3.1%8Y
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IE [ 5 B 0 AT

BUSINESS REVIEW
Segment review

The Group's core business segments are comprised of
manufacturing and sales of wooden products; retail sales of outdoor
wooden products; and manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products. During the Year, the Group discontinued its operation of
retail sales of outdoor wooden products. The performance of our
business segments are as follows:

RHERE

gal=iEl =
AEEROEBEBUTH B EERHEARR
B TERMUG EERBEBEELRER
RAFE AEERLTTEFIARAZE
B RMEEESBLRAMT :

Segment revenue % to total segment
derived from external revenue derived from  Reportable segment
customers Change external customers (loss)/profit (\ote 1)
HFERIBERZ AEHRAH
FEMBERZABRA -] )] HABRABSLL (B4R) &% (47:27)
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZBC-§ —Z-ZF Z2C-§ -—T-TF ZBI-§ C-T-TH

RMB'000  RVB'000
ARBTRE ARERTI

% % %  RMB'000 RMB'000

BAL AL Botk ARWTR AR%TR

Continuing operations BHEBEER

Manufacturing and sales of HERBERER

wooden products 601,968 486,102 238 99.0 98.7 57,104 (84,011)
Manufacturing and sales of HERHERE

renewable energy products ERER 6,106 6,487 59 1.0 13 (2,209) 458
Discontinued operation #RIEEH
Retail sales of outdoor wooden ~ ZEFEIARS

products - - NATER NAFEB NATEA (612) (587)

608,074 492,589 234 100.0 100.0 54,283 (84,140)

Note: Reportable segment profit/(loss) has excluded the after tax effect of government
subsidies.

Manufacturing and sales of wooden products remains to be the
Group’s largest business segment, contributing 99.0% of the Group's
revenue. The revenue derived from such business increased by 23.8%.

Hratr: AIE|HEBEF (BR) EMBRRTHA 2 HEY

HFERHEARERNEAEERANEL D

£+ A 5 BN 999.0% o 1t 4B 2 76 B 13 Uk
A LF23.8% °
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ERETREIN

The 23.4% overall increase in revenue growth for the year following
a 11.9% negative growth in the first half of the year is principally
attributable to the favorable pricing environment of the Group's
wooden products. Following the stringent lockdown in 2020 and rock-
bottom interest rates, several leading economics such as the United
States, Australia and the United Kingdom have seen thriving new home
demands. On the other hand, the disruption of global supply chain,
severe shortage of construction material supplies has created favorable
condition of price rise for the Group's wooden products. During the
Year, the Group has also stopped exporting products affected by the
additional tariff imposed by the US government in 2019. As a result, the
Group's margin has bounced back to 20.0% for the reporting year from
1.5% in 2020 when the Group was temporarily crippled by additional
tariff and dumping duties of the United States. The improved gross
profit margin paved way to a positive turnaround to a total reportable
segment profit of approximately RMB57 million from manufacturing and
sales of wooden products (2020: a loss of RMB84 million).

The Group discontinued its retail sales of outdoor wooden products
during the reporting year, yet the Group maintains its view that this
segment is a strategic stepping stone in expanding its presence in the
PRC household product market, and will adjust its business direction
whenever appropriate.

The Group's renewable energy business focuses on the recycling of
leftover sawdust from the production of our wooden products into
biomass pellet fuel. Revenue from the renewable energy business
slightly decreased by 5.9% to RMB6.1 million during the reporting year,
with a loss of approximately RMB2.2 million (2020: revenue of RMB6.5
million and profit of RMBO0.5 million).

ELEFFHEBNI%BEERT AEEZ2FHK
AEREBITEFANANEB AR IERER
REBEMBEBRE - ER2IRGEREHEEN
EB M R E B SR E R SKIE20204F &
ENZEREMEAENBELTHERY -5
— AR EEAR KR EE  BEME
BERR RAEEMNARRER LFHEE
RIFMZEE -RAFE AEENTEELELR
W20194F Fh 2 B B N 2 BEONE Bl P 52 &8
ZEMme AL REBEMEFEN2020FEE
X 2R B AT EEE N B A I R A B R R
e ABEMISNLEZENREFANEA
20.0% c EF KN ESRBR DO MBEEKNITE A
BoRWMEFN NEBNEERIEE AR D
BEDERMARBTE & T (20206 AR
¥eamEEE) -

AEBHREFAEAFLTEPIAREMRE
BB $%I1Ff SN R EEARERE
FEARTSHNBBEANG YHEEEE N
RHRAEEEBIIE -

AEEBERREBEINERARMEE

BRPELNER ARSEELCLSEME
?E%E%Wr‘#ﬂliﬂ;ﬁ??zﬁ%I%Eiﬁ%?ﬁ%%ﬁ
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l\/lanagement Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ER B RED @

FINANCIAL REVIEW

g JEI

Revenue by product category WA (REMPEES)
Revenue
KA
2021 2020
% —ZE_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBFT
Timber houses and their related parts and RNEREBB@E G RIESF
structures 535,761 374,106
Leisure household products KREEREER
Outdoor and indoor furniture ERIMRIBE R 19,079 10,995
Recreational products TEERE R 28,939 47,197
Landscape garden products B 25 E M 17,343 31,696
Pet-home designs BUEEMR 846 673
66,207 90,561
Trading of timber RME S - 21,435
Renewable energy products BHEERE M 6,106 6,487
Total HE 608,074 492,589

Revenue from timber houses and their related parts and structures
remained the largest income stream of the Group during the
Reporting Year. Revenue from such category increased by 43% to
RMB535.8 million (2020: RMB374.1 million), representing 88% of total
sales for the reporting year (2020: 76%), mainly attributable to the

increase in sales to the Australasia.

Overall revenue from the leisure household products decreased by
27% to RMB66.2 million (2020: RMB90.6 million) mainly because of
the decreases in the sales of recreational products and landscaped

garden products.

e

R EF R RE & HE AR REFRA
MBREBEA &AM ERIR %D BHKA
EF43%E A R¥535.85 & 7t (2020 : AR
WI74NE B IT) EWE F AL E ER8%
(20204F : 76% ) - EZ AN EZRM EFH AT

KREREEROLUATIE7I%E AR #6622
BET (2020 ARMEE L)  TEH
REIR R B R E B E M 2 $HE THATE -

PRAEMERERAE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIEE AR E DT (@)

The Group has halted the trading of timber business as the selling
costs of timbers increased for the additional tariff and dumping
duties imposed by the United States. As a result, the revenue from
trading of timber became nil (2020: 21.4 million).

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s revenue from the renewable
energy business decreased by 5.9% to approximately RMB6.1 million
(2020: RMB6.5 million), due to the increasing fierce competition in the
domestic renewable energy market.

Gross profit and gross margin

Gross profit surged to approximately RMB121.7 million (2020: RMB7.3
million) as brought by the spectacular increase of gross profit margin
in the reporting year to 20.0% (2020: 1.5%), mainly because of i) the
favorable pricing condition of construction materials; i) ceased the
sales of products affected by the additional tariff imposed by the
United States government in 2019 which had a lower gross margin,
and i) lowered cost of materials as a result of replacing imported
materials with domestic materials.

Other revenue

During the reporting year, other revenue decreased to RMB15.8
million (2020: RMB17.6 million) mainly due to the decreased in
government subsidies to RMB6.2 million during the Reporting Year
(2020: RMB10.0 million).

Other net gain/(loss)

The Group recorded other net gain of RMB8.4 million for the Year
(2020: other net loss of RMB39.4 million), which was mainly derived
from net foreign exchange gain and fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses incurred during the Reporting
Year were RMB46.9 million (2020: RMB21.7 million) which was a
result of the increase in turnover and number of shipments.

ERNEFEBEH ELARTBREER AEBT
ETAMESES At AMEZBRETRA
(2020F : AR#E21 4B ETT) ©

WEFR AEBREBERERESHK AR
REBIR B AR IH A F B M T FE5.9%%
HARECIBE (2020F : AR65EBETT) ©

£ H B EF =

& FNREEER E K@ A ZE20.0% (2020
F1.5%)  HEREFAAZRHOARKI217AE
JL(2020F : ARB73EE L) T ZARNIEE
MEEERERILT: NAKRBERFIEHEEXEE
BT R2019F I 2 RESNAR TP B 2 EE fn (7%
EEREMRIEK) : Ril)AZR 0 # B EUR E O 8
DA B AR BB AR BT B o

Ha A

MEFRN EMWATHREARKISSAE T
(2020F: AR#176B8T)  TEHRBIFM
BE T E ARK62H & (2020%F - AR10.08

b —

BIL) °

B 58, (B1R)
ARERBRSER MRS FEARYSIEE
Tt (20204 : E AL R BARMIIEET)
HA R T A R Mk RRBRT S
BITAATFERYZ KaaFfE-

HE KD
REAREFNELENHERDHEHAZRARE
469B BT (20205 : ARB217E&ET) 2
HEREERE EFAE-
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l\/lanagement Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ER B RED @

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses incurred during the Reporting Year
amounted to RMB62.2 million (2020: RMB57.3 million). The increase
was mainly due to the recognition of share award expenses during
the Reporting Year.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased to approximately RMB1.2 million (2020:
RMBO.2 million), which was primarily due to an increase of bank
borrowings (note 24) during the Reporting Year.

Income tax credit

The Group recorded an income tax credit of RMB10.2 million (2020:
RMB4.1 million) mainly due to the write back of over-provision of
income tax in prior year during the Reporting Year.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the Reporting
Year (2020: Nil).

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group principally meets its working capital and other liquidity
requirements through operating cash flows and proceeds from
bank borrowings. The Group anticipates that it can sufficiently meet
funding needs for working capital and capital expenditure. As at
31 December 2021, the Group had current assets of RMB524.3
million (31 December 2020: RMB423.3 million), of which bank
deposits and cash (including pledged deposits) were RMB63.3 million
(31 December 2020: RMB142.6 million).

The Group’s cash is generally deposited with banks and
denominated mostly in RMB. As at 31 December 2021, total banking
facilities utilised as at 31 December 2021 amounted to RMB74
million (31 December 2020: RMB 27 million) and these were mainly
denominated in RMB and USD. All of the Group's banking facilities
were subject to the fulfilment of certain covenants, as are commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions.

As at 31 December 2021, the current ratio and quick ratio were
4.9:1 and 3.7:1 respectively (31 December 2020: 7.7:1 and 5.6:1
respectively).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Pledge of assets

As detailed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, as at
31 December 2021, the Group pledged its land use rights, buildings,
other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and pledged
deposits to secure for certain banking facilities.

Capital expenditure

During the Year, the Group's total expenditure in respect of property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and non-current
deposits for acquisitions of property, plant and equipment amounted
to RMB17.8 million (2020: RMB6.6 million).

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Except for note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, there
were no significant capital commitments for the Group. There were
no significant contingent liabilities for the Group as at 31 December
2021.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL
ASSETS

There was no significant investments, material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries by the Company during the reporting year.
The Group currently has no plan to make any substantial investments
in or acquisitions of capital assets, but will continue to seek out
potential investment or acquisition opportunities according to the
Group’s development needs.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group's sales are mainly denominated in AUD, USD and
RMB while our cost of sales and operating expenses are mainly
denominated in RMB. Therefore, the Group's profit margin would be
affected if RMB appreciates against AUD and USD as the Group may
not be able to reflect the appreciation in selling prices to overseas
customers that were determined in AUD and USD. In response to this,
the Group manages fluctuations in the exchange rate of RMB against
AUD and USD by entering into foreign currency forward contracts
mainly denominated in AUD and USD against RMB with banks when
sales contracts were entered with overseas customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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At 31 December 2021, the Group had foreign currency forward
contracts with their fair values recognised as derivative financial
instruments (assets) of RMB5,077,000 (2020: RMB1,619,000) and
derivative financial instruments (liabilities) of RMB896,000 (2020:
RMB157,000). The changes in fair value of the foreign currency
forward contracts were recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. All of the foreign currency forward contracts are to be
settled within one year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, we employed a total of 383 (2020: 340) full-
time employees, mainly in the PRC and Hong Kong which included
management staff, product designers, technicians, salespersons and
workers. The Group has been consistently increasing production process
automation, strengthening the training of staff with an emphasis on high-
technique processing with a mission on the continuous development
and enhancing of competitiveness. The Group offered competitive salary
packages, as well as discretionary bonuses and contribution to social
insurance to its employees.

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employee which will be reviewed periodically.
Apart from the provident fund scheme operating (In accordance with
the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
Hong Kong employees) or social insurance (including retirement pension
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, injury insurance
and maternity insurance for the PRC employees), discretionary
bonuses are also awarded to employees and directors according to
the assessment of individual performance. Since the adoption of the
share option scheme on 15 June 2012 and up to 31 December 2021, no
options have been granted.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ERETREIN

On 20 April 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company has resolved
to award an aggregate of 66,618,016 Shares (the “Award Shares”) to 13
selected participants under the Share Award Scheme (“2021 Award”).
The award of Award Shares has been settled by way of: (i) issue and
allotment of 36,970,000 new Award Shares pursuant to the general
mandate granted by the Shareholders to the Directors at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 29 May 2020 to issue, allot and
deal with new Shares not exceeding 20% of the total number of Shares
in issue as of 29 May 2020 (i.e. 148,240,080 Shares) (the “New Award
Shares”) and (i) issue and allotment of 29,648,016 new Award Shares
pursuant to a specific mandate obtained in the extraordinary general
meeting on 31 May 2021 (the “Connected Award Shares”).

Under the 2021 Award, out of the 66,618,016 Award Shares granted
to the 13 selected participants, (i) 36,970,000 new Award Shares were
granted to 11 selected participants who are mainly senior and middle
management of the Group and/or staff who served the Group for a
long period of time, and (i) 29,648,016 Connected Award Shares were
granted to two of the Directors of the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Group has no material events after the Reporting Year.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEREAHRE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The Board believes that a high standard of corporate
governance will provide a framework for the Company to formulate
its business strategies and policies, and manage and lower the
associated risks through effective internal control procedures. It will
also enhance the transparency of the Company and strengthen the
accountability to its shareholders and creditors.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and certain
recommended best practices. The Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions in the Code throughout the Year
except for the deviations disclosed under the sections headed “The
Board” and “Accountability and Audit” in this report.

THE BOARD

The Board oversees the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Directors are accountable for making decisions
objectively in the best interest of the shareholders as a whole.

The Board is responsible for making decisions on all major aspects of
the Company’s affairs, including the approval and monitoring of key
policy matters, overall strategies, business plans and annual budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions,
major capital expenditure, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board may delegate aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management. In particular, the
day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the chief
executive officer of the Group, Mr. Wu Zheyan, and his management
team.

The Company has throughout the Year met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management expertise.
At all times during the Year, the independent non-executive Directors
represent at least one-third of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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The Board is expected to meet regularly and at least four times a
year. The Directors have full access to the information of the Group
and independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days
prior to the meeting. For other meetings, the Directors are given as
much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.

Details of directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Committee
meetings and 2021 Annual General Meeting held during the year are
set out in the following table:
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Meeting attendance/number of meetings

SHHEREEHAY
2021 Risk
Annual Audit Remuneration  Nomination Management
General Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors EX&R —Z--% #FHERE FHZRE REZRE RREEZRE
BRAEXE EFeel -4 -4 -4 -4
Executive Directors BITER
Ms. Xie Qingmei (Cairiadl) HEELL(2E) n 3/4 N/A i N/A i N/A i N/A i
Mr.Wu Zheyan (Chief Executive Offcer)  REE R4 (7TH##) 01 3/4 N/A i N/A i N/A i N/A i
Independent non-executive BUEURTESR
Directors
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBLE 01 44 22 22 22 212
Prof. in Zhongwei LEAYR 01 44 22 22 22 22
Prof. Su Wengiang BIEHR o1 44 22 22 22 22
Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board meetings #HBESFE Z TRIEXEAIINE EEeeHE

should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. The Board only held two regular meetings during the Year to
approve the interim results of 2021 and annual results of 2020 whilst
other matters of the Board were dealt with by written resolutions or
ad hoc Board meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out in
code provision D.3 in the Code, including the development of policies
and practices on corporate governance, monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, reviewing the compliance with the Code, disclosure in
this report and legal and regulatory requirements of the Group.

THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Ms. Xie Qingmei, an executive Director of the Company, is the
chairlady of the Board.

Mr. Wu Zheyan is the chief executive officer of the Company.

Further details are disclosed in the section headed “The Board” of
this report.

DIRECTORS AND COMPOSITION OF THE
BOARD

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of two executive
Directors and three non-executive Directors. Further details of the
composition of the Board are disclosed in the section headed “The
Board"” of this report.
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Corpo rate Governance Report (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in
the fields of accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise
and number in the Board ensure that strong independent views and
judgement are brought in the Board's deliberations and that such
views and judgement carry weight in the Board's decision-making
process. Their presence and participation also enable the Board
to maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other
mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company
and the Company.

Each independent non-executive Director gives the Company an
annual confirmation of his independence. The Company considers
such Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each Director, upon reasonable request, is given access to
independent professional advice in circumstances he may deem
appropriate and necessary for the discharge of his duties to the
Company, at the expense of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND ROTATION
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
15 June 2021, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other. Each
of the non- executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors have been appointed for a term of three years commencing
from 15 June 2021. None of the Directors has entered into a service
contract with any member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring
or determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-third
of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for the Nomination
Committee to consider and make recommendations to Shareholders
for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors
to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

Q)

reputation for integrity;,

accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service,

qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference to
the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing
Rules;

Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board; and

such other perspectives appropriate to the Company'’s
business.
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Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need
for an additional Director or a member of senior management, the
following procedure will be followed:

)

The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify potential
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the selection
criteria, possibly with assistance from external agencies and/or
advisors,

The Nomination Committee and/or the Company Secretary of
the Company will then provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

The Nomination Committee would then make recommendation
to the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

In the case of the appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board should obtain all information in relation to the
proposed Director to allow the Board to adequately assess
the independence of the Director in accordance with the
factors set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any
amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from
time to time; and

The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
committee.
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According to the Articles and in the opinion of the Board, Mr. Wu
Zheyan, Prof. Su Wengiang and Prof. Jin zhongwei shall retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. All of the above retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
same meeting.

Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates will be proposed and
put forward to the Board by the Nomination Committee (as defined
below) as set out below under the section headed “Nomination
Committee” of this report.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Remuneration for executive Directors and senior management
is determined in accordance with performance, professional
experiences and the prevailing market practices. The remuneration
of non-executive Directors is subject to regular assessment by the
Remuneration Committee (as defined below).

TRAINING, INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of
his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of the Directors.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the relevant code
provision. The Company had received from each of the Directors the
record of training the Directors received.
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DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiry to all the Directors, the Company confirms that all
the Directors have complied with the standards as stipulated in the
Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up four Board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination committee
and the risk management committee (collectively the “Board
Committees”), for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Ccompany’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and Prof. Su
Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee shall assist
the Board in fulfilling its corporate governance and overseeing
responsibilities in relation to financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems and internal and external audit
functions. The Audit Committee is further authorised by the Board to
investigate any activity within its terms of reference, and is tasked
with recommending to the Board appropriate actions emanating from
such investigations. The Audit Committee has unrestricted access to
personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk assessment
and assurance and senior management, as may be appropriate in
the discharge of its functions.

rate Governance Report (Continued)
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During the Year, the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities

by:

making recommendations to the Board on the reappointment
of the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor,

monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standard, and discussing with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial
statements of the Company and the Company’s interim report
to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced
assessment of the Company’s financial position;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems;

reviewing the Company's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material
queries raised by the external auditor to the management, if
any, in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and the management’s response to such
queries; and

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Code on
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain external

legal

or other independent professional advice and to secure the

attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it
considers necessary in the performance of its functions. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources by the Company
to discharge its duties. The Audit Committee’s specific terms
of reference are available on request to any shareholder of the
Company and are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website, www.merrygardenholdings.com.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee together with management
has reviewed the Code, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed the Group's internal control
and financial reporting matters, including a review of the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2021, with recommendation to the
Board for approval. The Audit Committee has also recommended to
the Board that Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited (“Ascenda Cachet”) be
re-appointed as the external auditors of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei
and Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zhongwei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(@ to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(c)  to make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(e) to review and approve management's remuneration proposals
by reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

ate Governance Report (continued)
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(f)  to review and approve compensation payable to the executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to

dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

(h)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure of the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, and offered advice on the
same to the Board. The Remuneration Committee also resolved to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei
and Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zzhongwei is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@ to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;,

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
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to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

=

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Group.

Where vacancy on the Board exists, the Nomination Committee
will carry out a selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company's needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations, and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of candidates
for directorship.

The Nomination Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, conducted performance evaluations to
assess whether the non-executive Directors have spent enough time
in fulfilling their duties, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, and had been keeping under review the
leadership needs of the organisation, both executive and non-
executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
organisation to compete effectively in the marketplace.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company and to enhance the quality of
performance of the Company. The Policy aims at achieving diversity
on the Board.

Measurable Objectives and Selection

In designing the Board’'s composition, a number of perspectives
which include race, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, industry experience, technical and professional
experience, knowledge, skills, length of service, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates will be taken
into consideration. The Company will also take into account factors
relating to its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that
the candidates will bring to the Board. Candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Board currently consists of one female member. The Board will
take opportunity to increase the proportion of female members
over time when selecting and making recommendation on suitable
candidates for Board appointments. The Board would ensure that
appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference to
stakeholders’ expectation and international and local recommended
best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to gender
parity. The Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion of
Directors who have direct experience in the Group’s core markets,
with different ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting the Group's strategy.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
board diversity policy and report to the Board annually.
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei
and Prof. Su Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Risk
Management Committee.

The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

@)

to review the Group risk, capital and liquidity management
framework, the Group’s risk appetite, its risk policies and
standards, and supporting risk limits, including the parameters
used and the methodology adopted, and the processes used
for identifying and assessing risks;

to review material risk exposures of the Group, including
market, credit, insurance, operational, liquidity, and economic
and regulatory capital risks against the Group's risk
measurement methodologies and management actions to
monitor and control such exposures;

to review the standard for accurate and timely monitoring of
large exposures and certain risk types of critical importance,
and the Group's capability to identify and manage new risk
types;

to receive reports and recommendations from management on
the Group's attitude to and tolerance of risk, including financial
and non-financial risks;

to oversee the Group's processes and policies for determining
risk tolerance and review management's measurement and
effectiveness of, and compliance with, approved Group risk
tolerance levels and policies and standards, and the resultant
action in respect of policy breaches;

to review the risks inherent in strategic transactions and
business plans and provide the Board with input on the risk/
reward trade offs implicit within those plans; and

to review the Group's capability to identify and manage new
risk types, and the Group's stress tests to ensure they are
rigorous and the Group responds adequately to the results.
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The Risk Management Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Risk Management Committee has evaluated and
assessed the effectiveness and adequacy of the Terms of Reference
of the Risk Management Committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company to ensure that these
financial statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards.

The statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 57 to 66.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Pursuant to Code provision C.1.2, the Management should provide all
members of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the issuer's performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has deviated from C.1.2 in that while the management
has updated most of the Directors on a monthly basis about the
business operation and performance of the Company, not all the
Directors received such updates as the monthly updates were
conducted on-site at the Group's factory in China. Members of the
Board who did not attend such on-site meetings did not receive the
updates. However, the management would provide detailed updates
to all the Directors on a half-yearly and yearly basis. In the event
there are any significant updates to be provided, the management
will update all the Directors as early as practicable for discussion
and resolution. The Company also has in place a system for every
Director to make enquiries with the senior management about the
business operation of the Group and to give suggestions or feedback
in the event such Director is not able attend the monthly on-site
updates session.

FEfERZE e TRESE T EADAR
R SKE B R P RO B 22 P A i S AR X R 48
(www.merrygardenholdings.com) °

RERN BRERZEGENHRAREREZS
ERESENERUERT R

GEVSE: 2

B R RS
EFARREARARUFAANUBRE
DA B (R 4 25 B 75 9 5% 2 R PR B A 75 R o
MRTEEATFH2S-

RBE RS BT B AN ETE66HE M E L
BRI

EEMTABEMEAREERARRFELE
ENBEFRNEHHIERNEHENEKRTHHA
e

RETANRIXFECI2GK EEEBARANES
EERNERHEIER JMAEBEITAR
B ARRAFORERZAOFAN G EE
EEERNBEFAURELTRAEI08GR
FIBEEITRS -

HAEEEBEBARNAZHESTREEHEARRA
EBLEMKRNEFER EARNEANE
IR ASEBEBEN THIRSET Atk
E2RESWIEBERER  ARAREEEC.2
BeRHERSEZENETENELBLIE
MER - AWM ERESSXFRRFASRE
EREFANEFEN -MBRETFNEEZD
FHEM EEEERATERATERTME2E
EEREEHEMUNEETI®RRFE AR
ATHEHE MEEERELFETARSE
MER AARNSREEEENLAEEERLSE
EHRAERTREERIRE-

PRAEMERERAE

T —FFR

33



34

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

ALl A4 N =+ .
EEIRWMS (8)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent
auditor's independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives a letter from Ascenda Cachet the independent
auditor, confirming their independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with representatives of Ascenda Cachet to consider
the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it.
The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and retention of Ascenda Cachet.

The remuneration paid or payable to Ascenda Cachet of the
Company for audit services for the Year was approximately
RMB815,000.

The remuneration paid or payable to Ascenda Cachet of the
Company for non-audit services for the Year was nil.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged Modern Assurance And Business
Services Limited, an external service provider, and Mr. Wong Wai
Lun has been appointed as the Company’'s company secretary.
Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Wu Zheyan, an
executive director of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There are no significant changes in the Articles and the memorandum
of association of the Company during the Year.

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, members holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Year, the Board complied with the Code provisions on
risk management and internal control as set out in the Code. The
Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group. The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or l0ss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting
records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to
achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review
of the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. The Company also has an internal audit function to carry
out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to keep
information confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of
interest. Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent
the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.
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The Company has established and maintained procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Company has adopted a code of conduct for dealing
in the securities of the Company by the Directors in accordance with
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Other employees of the Group who
are likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company
are also subject to dealing restrictions. Any inside information and
any information which may potentially constitute inside information
is promptly identified, assessed and escalated to the Board and for
the Board to decide on the need for disclosure. Inside information
and other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules will be announced on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company in due course.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD AND
PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS

Shareholders or investors can contact the Company in the following
ways to make enquiry or to provide suggestions:

Tel: (852) 3904 1867

Postal Address: Unit 1909, 19/F, 212 Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the Company's principal place of business
stated above.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business and its outlook are set out in
the sections of Chairlady’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis. Certain financial key performance indicators are
provided in the section of Financial Summary. The Group has no
material event affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the Year.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the "SFO") for the disclosure of information and corporate
governance. The Group also complies with the requirements of
Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational
safety for the interest of employees of the Group.

The Group respects the environment and is committed to minimising
its carbon footprint as a socially responsible enterprise. Carbon
footprint is defined as the total amount of direct and indirect
emissions of Green House Gases (GHGS) expressed in terms
of the equivalent amount of Carbon Dioxide of (CO,) emission.
Non-hazardous wastes produced from the Group mainly consist
of used paper such as office papers and marketing materials. To
minimise the impact on carbon footprint and the environment, the
Group implements the following practices to use paper efficiently:

o Duplex printing is set as the default mode for most network
printers;

o Employees are reminded to practice photocopying wisely;,
o Employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper;
o Paper is separated from other waste for easier recycling; and

o Boxes and trays are placed beside photocopiers as containers
to collect single-sided paper for reuse purpose.
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Electricity consumption is identified as having an adverse impact on
the environment and natural resources. A typical commercial building
uses more energy for lighting than for other electric equipment. The
Group is determined to reduce energy consumption and implement
conservation practices to reduce the effect of carbon footprint.
Air conditioning and light zone arrangements reduce unnecessary
electricity usage; employees enforce good practices in maintenance
of lighting and electric equipment to ensure they are kept in good
and proper condition to maximise efficiency.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of
the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely monitors
changes in government policies, regulations and markets as well as
conducting studies to assess the impact of such changes. As far as
the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied with
all related laws and regulations in all material aspects which may
have significant impact on the Group during the Year.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in parts
of business to improve performance and efficiency of the Group.
While gaining the benefits from external service providers, the
management realises that such operational dependency may pose
a threat of vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service
including reputation damage, business disruption and monetary
losses. To address such uncertainties, the Group engages only
reputed third-party providers and closely monitors their performance.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit packages career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.
No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents occurred
during the Year.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner.
The departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just
manner. The Group's requirements and standards are also well-
communicated to suppliers before the commencement of a project.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels, including usage of market research
to understand customer trends and needs and regular analyse on
customer feedback. The Group also conducts comprehensive tests
and checks to ensure that only quality products and services are
offered to the customers.

RESULTS & DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on pages 67 to 68. Other movements in
reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 72.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (2020: Nil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s profits and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter
alia, the Group’s financial results, the general financial condition of
the Group, the Group’s current and future operations, the level of
the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant
financial covenants, liquidity position and capital requirement of the
Group, surplus received from the Company's subsidiaries and any
other factors that the Board deem appropriate. The Company's ability
to pay dividends is also subject to the requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and all relevant applicable laws, rules and regulations in
the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong and the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company. The Company does not have any pre-
determined distribution ratio. The Group's dividend distribution record
in the past may not be used as a reference or basis to determine the
amount of dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company
in the future.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 5 and 6 of
this annual report.

Hﬁ/%\ﬁ%

ARADRARESBER ([REKEK]) &t
ARAR A AARRBBIR (TRR]) 5K &K R
BOERRENDZARR ZEMAR - BEFEA
REGER/RFIERREFT R R -

EXeHARYBBRRAERMNEMNRENE
& MAEMKRSRE 2 E IR ALBRRIA 7
AEE-EEHRRBEAREE EFRTHE
B(EREE)AKBEMBERE AEEEEE
B AEE B AT R R EE ARE BB
R R BEARD H X R AR M REKE K
SERBESMRAREAFTR ARFMHER
AW RZBBRREEERRBEE ZEFME
MAZ - ARARETIRNBRETAZBEHRA
RHABRARES LHRRNZRE RAER
MRASES BERARRABERMARNZE
FER R RBIRIRP o 7] X 7 A M | 5E ([ B
DKL E - ARABBENRE D IKEERTERA
FEEARAARAEERIKMNHREEE
2 E K

EFeNRBERTRERE TREEE-R
BEWISEMBEREH BT R/ HEBREHK
R-BEBRETEHBAAR B AR NEM R
ELBHRE 2 BEROR AR X/ RSK
RAAZEBEAERRIRERBE

MBHE
AREBERENREEHEERAERAE
BERRAFRESROE -

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021



Directors’ Report (Continued)
ESTWE @

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 28(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’'s aggregate amounts
of reserves available for distribution were approximately
RMB639,589,000 (2020: RMB634,832,000), of which nil (2020: Nil) has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES

Details of the Group’s debentures are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 52.9% (2020: 42.0%) of the Group's total revenue
and the Group’ s largest customer for the year accounted for
approximately 14.0% (2020: 10.3%) of the Group’s total revenue.
The Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
52.5% (2020: 61.8%) of the Group’s total purchases, while the largest
supplier for the year accounted for approximately 25.3% (2020:
27.1%) of the Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates or any of the shareholders of the
Company who owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
Throughout the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors
Ms. Xie Qingmei
Mr. Wu Zheyan

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Prof. Jin Zhongwei
Prof. Su Wengiang

A description of the Directors is set out in the section headed “Board
of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, will be as follows:
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Interest in shares IR =
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
SRR B
EEns S BaEH"E 378 4= B LE(%)
Mr. Wu Zheyan Interest in controlled corporation/ 89,929,482 10.58%
Long position (Note)
REBELE RESEENER TR (M)
Beneficial owner/Long position 17,024,596 2.00%
E=EEAN TR
Ms. Xie Qingmei Beneficial owner/Long position 16,750,684 1.97%
AEFER L EnBAN TR

Note:  Mr. Wu Zheyan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Green Seas
Capital Limited, his wholly-owned company.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had interests or in short positions in the shares,
underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation defined under the SFO
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein or which will be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company), who had interests or short
positions in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, were as follows:

Interest in shares

FERRRNA QTR KRR G
MR R XE
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RN EBRIBEZLFRPERAEXVBE2R
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
SRR B
£ K8 S BaEH"E Ein 8 E B LE(%)
Green Seas Capital Limited Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 1) 89,929,482 10.58%
E=EAN B (K1)
Hong Kong Cheng Kun Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 2) 86,000,000 10.11%
Holdings Limited
ERKBMIERAR A EnBAN TR (Kit2)
Ms. Wong Shun Yi Interest in controlled corporation/ 86,000,000 10.11%
Long position (Note 2)
s:lsi‘ﬁj: X?I%IJ/EIE‘]4{E /;Z?)E (/}/jufZ)
Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 3) 140,350,000 16.50%
Capital Holdings Limited
BEEETEEERIERERA E=EANTE (#1:t3)
RRHEMIZRBRA F
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
¥ B Bt ¥
28 e B #aK™ iz 8 E B (%)
EERE T 28BN AR AR Interest in controlled corporation/ 140,350,000 16.50%
Long position (Note 3)
ZEtlEEnER TR (ME3)
Mr. Wang Xin Interest in controlled corporation/ 140,350,000 16.50%
Long position (Note 3)
ERRE Rt AR ER TR (H23)
Mr. Han Jin Beneficial owner/Long position 61,883,860 7.26%
BeLEEBERBAEAN TR
Ms. Han Hong Beneficial owner/Long position 64,152,860 7.54%
BLELLTEZBEAN TR
Notes: Mst -

The entire issued share capital of Green Seas Capital Limited is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. Wu Zheyan, who is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Green Seas Capital Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Cheng Kun Holdings Limited is
legally and beneficially owned by Ms. Wong Shun Yi, who is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Hong Kong Run De Holdings Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Capital Holdings
Limited is legally and beneficially owned by biSHIE) T ¥ R #EZERAERA
7). The 98% issued share capital of E/8H18) T ¥R EEREMR AR is legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. Wang Xin, who is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Capital Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any person,
other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above, who had an
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares that

were

required to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and

3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded pursuant to Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO as of 31 December 2021.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on
15 June 2012, the Company has conditionally adopted the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
recognising and acknowledging the contributions the eligible
participants had or may have made to the Group. The Board may, at
its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
to the Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors), the directors
of the Company’s subsidiaries and employees of the Group and
any other persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the
Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group. The Directors were authorised to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company and to allot, issue
and deal with the ordinary shares pursuant to the exercise of options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and to take all such steps as
may be necessary and/or desirable to implement and give effect to
the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue
immediately following completion of the Global Offering (as defined
in the Company'’s prospectus dated 25 June 2012), being 100,000,000
shares, excluding any shares that may be issued under the options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme (or any other share option schemes of the Company), unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting and/or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.
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Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue of
the Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by our
independent non-executive Directors. Unless otherwise approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules, the number
of shares that may be granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue, having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised, and the period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, however, no options shall be exercised 10 years after they
have been granted. The subscription price of a share in respect of a
particular option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the official
closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the shares on the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal
value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the
date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10
years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and
unconditional and up to the date of this annual report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of ordinary
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
85,036,841, representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company.
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Save as the Share Option Scheme and share award scheme as
disclosed in this report, at no time during the Year was the Company,
its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or and
other body corporate.

Other than the Share Option Scheme and share award scheme as
disclosed in this report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares, or that require the Company
to enter into any agreement that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares, have entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 December
2020, adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
for the purpose of (i) to align interests of eligible persons, being
the employees, directors, officers, consultants or advisors of any
member of the Group, with those of the Group through ownership
of ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”), dividends and
other distribution paid on Shares and/or increase in value of the
Shares; and (i) to encourage and retain eligible persons to make
contributions to the long-term growth and profits of the Group.

The aggregate number of shares to be made pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme (the “Award Shares”) will not exceed 20% of the
total number of issued shares capital as at the adoption date of the
Share Award Scheme (i.e. 20% of 741,200,400 Shares). The aggregate
number of Award Shares which may be awarded to a selected
person under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 2% of the
total number of issued Shares as at the adoption date of the Share
Award Scheme.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the board
of directors, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a term of 10 years commencing from the adoption date.

The Award Shares, once issued, will rank equal to all other issued
Shares at that time and are not subject to any vesting condition. The
selected persons will therefore have the right to receive dividends,
dispose of and/or exercise the rights of the Award Shares as per his/
her own wishes once the Award Shares were issued.
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On 14 December 2020, a total of 42,550,000 Award Shares were
issued to 12 eligible persons (the “2020 Selected Persons”). The
Award Shares were settled by way of issue and allotment of new
Shares on 30 December 2020 pursuant to the general mandate. The
42,550,000 Award Shares represented approximately 5.74% of the
total number of issued Shares and approximately 5.43% of the total
number of Shares in issue as enlarged by the issue and allotment
of the Award Shares. The 2020 Selected Persons are (i) senior and
middle management of the Group and (i) staffs who served the
Group for a long period of time.

The 42,550,000 Award Shares had neither any vesting period nor
condition, accordingly, the fair value of 42,550,000 Award Shares
was determined by the closing market price of the Company on
30 December 2020, of which, expenses of HK$6,808,000 (equivalent
to RMB5,777,000) were recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

On 10 May 2021, a total of 36,970,000 Award Shares were issued to
11 eligible persons (the “2021 Selected Persons”). The Award Shares
were settled by way of issue and allotment of new Shares on 10 May
2021 pursuant to the general mandate. The 36,970,000 Award Shares
represented approximately 4.72% of the total number of issued
Shares and approximately 4.50% of the total number of Shares in
issue as enlarged by the issue and allotment of the Award Shares.
The 2021 Selected Persons are (i) senior and middle management of
the Group and (i) staffs who served the Group for a long period of
time.

The 36,970,000 Award Shares had neither any vesting period nor
condition, accordingly, the fair value of 36,970,000 Award Shares
was determined by the closing market price of the Company on
10 May 2021, of which, expenses of HK$4,990,950 (equivalent to
RMB4,108,000) were recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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On 4 June 2021, a total of 29,648,016 Award Shares were issued
to Mr. Wu Zheyan and Ms. Xie Qingmei (the “Connected Selected
Persons”). The Award Shares were settled by way of issue and
allotment of new Shares on 4 June 2021 pursuant to the general
mandate. The 29,648,016 Award Shares represented approximately
3.61% of the total number of issued Shares and approximately 3.49%
of the total number of Shares in issue as enlarged by the issue and
allotment of the Award Shares. The Connected Selected Persons are
the Directors of the Company.

The 29,648,016 Award Shares had neither any vesting period nor
condition, accordingly, the fair value of 29,648,016 Award Shares
were determined by the closing market price of the Company on
4 June 2021, of which, expenses of HK$4,328,610 (equivalent to
RMB3,598,000) were recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2021 and the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company had 39,072,064 Award Shares available for
awarding to eligible persons under the Share Award Scheme, which
represented approximately 4.59% of the issued Shares as at the
respective dates.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchase, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules requires that at least 25% of an
issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public. Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained sufficiency of public float at all times during the Year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, there was no transaction of the Group constituted
non-exempt continuing connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules (2020: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in
the normal course of business are provided under note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, and none of which constitutes
a non-exempt connected transaction as defined under the Listing
Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed
of Non-Competition”) with Mr. Wu Zheyan and Green Seas Capital
Limited (collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”) on
15 June 2012 so as to better safeguard the Group from any potential
competition and to formalise the principles for the management
of potential conflicts between them and to enhance our corporate
governance in connection with the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed compliance
by the Controlling Shareholders and confirm that based on
confirmations and information provided by each of the Controlling
Shareholders, they were in compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Year.

The independent non-executive Directors were not required to
review any matter in relation to compliance and enforcement of the
Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No management contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Group were entered into or existed during the Year.
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DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group supported a wide variety of charitable
activities in Hong Kong and the PRC. Donations of approximately
RMB5,202,000 (2020: RMB205,000) were made by the Group to
various charitable organisations.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware that any holders of securities of the
Company are entitled to any tax relief or exemption by reason of
their holding of such securities.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited resigned as auditor of the Company on 5 November
2020 and Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited has been appointed as the
auditor of the Company on 5 November 2020. There have been no
other changes in auditor during the preceding three years.

Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the reappointment
of Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Xie Qingmei
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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Board of Directors and Senior Management
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Biographies of each member of the board of directors and senior
management team of the Company during the Year and/or as at the
date of this report are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wu Zheyan (Mr. Wu), aged 42, is an executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as
a Director on 17 October 2011. He joined Fujian Zhangping Kimura
Forestry Products Co. Ltd (“Zhangping Kimura”) as a workshop
director since 1997 and obtained knowledge and experiences in the
timber products industry including the production process, research
and development works and the invention process of new timber
products. Mr. Wu became the general manager in May 2000 and the
director and legal representative of Zhangping Kimura in January
2006.

Mr. Wu graduated from Sichuan University in June 2009 with a
Diploma in business administration (Distance education). Mr. Wu is
the visiting professor of Central South University of Forestry and
Technology and Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University.

Xie Qingmei (Ms. Xie), aged 54, was appointed as an executive
Director on 15 June 2012 and as the Chairlady on 23 May 2016.
Ms. Xie is primarily responsible for procurement matters in respect
of the Group. She has over 20 years of experience in corporate
management and procurement. Ms. Xie joined the Group in 1999,
and she has been a deputy general manager of Zhangping Kimura
since 2001 and a director of Zhangping Kimura since 2006. Ms. Xie
was in charge of the sales department of Zhangping Kimura as well
as supervising procurement from June 1999 to December 2000, and
has been running the procurement department of Zhangping Kimura
since 2003.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Hin Chi (Mr. Lam), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 15 June
2012. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and associates member of The Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, and The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, respectively. Mr. Lam graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional Diploma in
Management Accountancy and a Bachelor of Arts degree (Honours)
in Accountancy. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of experience in finance,
audit and accounting. Mr. Lam was a senior personnel of a number
of companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam is currently an executive director of Qianhai Health Holdings
Limited (stock code: 911) and an independent non-executive director
of VSTECS Holdings Limited (stock code: 856), which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Professor Jin Zzhongwei (Professor Jin), aged 84, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. He is an expert in wood preservation with over
40 years of experience in wood preservation. Professor Jin graduated
from Nanjing Forestry College in 1961 and majored in forestry
products chemical processing. He studied wood preservation and
modification technologies in the United States as a government-
appointed scholar from 1981 to 1983, and was a visiting scholar at
Oregon State University and Mississippi State University from 1994 to
1995 respectively.
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Professor Su Wengqiang (Professor Su), aged 66, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. Professor Su has more than 30 years of
experience in the research of forestry and timber products. Professor
Su was awarded as Model Member of the Communist Party (1855
ZE# 8 ) from 2006 to 2007, and was appointed as various positions
in timber industry, e.g. - council member of Standing Committee of
the Heilongjiang Province Chemistry Society (2# I 4t T 2%
HEE) (in December 2004), committee member of Wood Science
Institute of the Chinese Society of Forestry (M E & KRl
&) (in April 2010), member of Board of Experts of Standardisation
Committee of China Timber and Wood Products Distribution
Association Wood Preservation Committee (7 Bl /K #4 82 A 5L &
MBHEAMNBREXEZESERIEELZEF) (in December
2009), member of Board of Experts Committee of Standardisation
Committee of China Wood Preservation Industry Association ( /B
MIRETEHEERZEZ) (in October 2011), committee member
of the Wood Preservation Research Committee of the Wood Science
Institute of the Chinese Society of Forestry (B EE & KM Rl &2
DERMIRENEEZES) (in April 2007) and editor of editorial
committee of Biomass Chemical Engineering published by Institute
of Chemical Industry of Forest Products ( & B4k 2 Rl £ 81 55 B pkEE
{EETEMREM CEME(LETHE) ) (in December 2010). Professor
Su graduated from Northeast Forestry University in July 1982, major
in professional chemical processing of forestry products (#RE1k
BT THREE) and obtained a Doctorate Degree in December
2008.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chen Tianfu (Mr. Chen), aged 56, is the chief financial officer
of our Group. Since joining our Group in 2009, Mr. Chen has been
responsible for our Group’s accounting and financial management
affairs. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen was in charge of the
financial departments of Jiangxi Sanhua Real Estate Co. Ltd. (7
=EEFH¥AEMR AR and Fujian Dufeng Sugar Factory ({824 &
I 1% & ) respectively. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experience in
corporate financial management and possesses the qualifications of
an accountant in the PRC. Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian Quanzhou
Supply and Sales School (@324 F M AL EHER) in 1986 majoring in
financial accounting with a secondary vocational school diploma.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Wai Lun (3 {Ef& ), aged 38. He was appointed as the
Company Secretary on 1 July 2021. Mr. Wong Wai Lun obtained a
bachelor degree of commerce from the University of Queensland in
December 2004. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and has over 15 years of experience
in the field of accounting, auditing, corporate finance, financial
management and corporate governance. Mr. Wong Wai Lun is
currently the director of Modern Assurance And Business Services
Limited.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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Ascenda CACl‘EE

(RIEIZE

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL
TECHNOLOGY AND BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on
pages 67 to 220, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significant in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RRNER
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

B AZ AR E (8)

Key Audit Matter
RARERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENERMIEEZER

(i) Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and investment properties

(i) #%E BERRBRREYELETRGE

Reference is made to notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated
financial statements for the Directors’ disclosures of the
related accounting policies, judgements and estimates,
respectively, and notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements for further information.

F2RGE MR RIBERES HRIRE A
BRI HE R RSP BRERMT12RI13E H
E—FER -

The carrying amount of the Group's property, plant and
equipment (the “PPE") and investment properties (the “IP")
were approximately RMB399,500,000 (net of accumulated
impairment of approximately RMB162,318,000) and
RMB30,358,000 (net of accumulated impairment of
approximately RMB12,529,000), respectively, as at
31 December 2021.
R-ZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H' B£ENDE KR
B (W% BEREE]) RIREMZE (TREWE])
M EREE LD Bl A AR #399,500,0007T (1B EFHRE
# A R 162,318,0007T ) & A K %30,358,0007T (1B &
FHREL A R#12,529,0007T) °

During the year, no further impairment of the PPE and the
IP was provided.

REN BESVE BERREBRREMEELRE
B

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of the PPE and the IP included:
EENTEEUDE BERRBRIREYME 2 RERT
HWRFBE:

- Discussing with management and the independent
professional valuer to understand the basis of
valuation approach and methodology;
HEBERBIEENGEMN R THREERE
RFHAERE:

= Challenging the management and the independent
professional valuer on the adoption of the
assumptions and estimations in the valuations;
HRTHEANBRRAEAEREEERB YR
FIhER:

- Evaluating the independence, professionalism
and the accuracy of the work performed by the
independent professional valuer;

SHE B EEGMEMETIIENBLE BEMER
A
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Key Audit Matter
RAREERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEMNERNIEEZER

(i) Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and investment properties

(Continued)
(i) #H%E BERRBRLZEYEAEFE ()

For the purpose of performing impairment assessments,
the directors (the “Directors”) of the Company made
reference to certain valuations prepared by an
independent professional valuer to determine the
recoverable amounts of the PPE and the IP. which required
significant management judgement to determine the key
assumptions.

RETRENE BRAREF(EX))E2ZEUE
FLERARGIEE T HERIEDE BB KRB RKR
BEYENAROeE HFFEERHAGUEEETER

The recoverable amounts of the PPE and IP were
determined based on the fair value less costs of disposal
by using the cost approach, with key assumptions
adopted in the underlying valuation, including (i) market
price of the land in similar location; (i) price index; (iii)
repairs and maintenance costs; and (iv) economic useful
life of each of the PPE and the IP. Such assumptions and
valuation technique involves significant unobservable
inputs.

W WEREERREYEN AT 585 A KA
ERRAFERELERAETE WEERBEPERAT
FARER 2REOVECHE T TISER: (MERE
e (IVEENREER: RIVIE BELERBLEKRE
MEZBHNKEFRASH ZEREILBERMTIRE
AR B AE-

For this reason, we identified the impairment assessment
of the PPE and the IP as a key audit matter.

EHit  E5#R 2 ME BEERREBEREEMEZRE
L AR EREIE

Evaluating the reasonableness and appropriateness
of the key assumptions adopted in the impairment
assessments of the PPE and the IR, including
comparing against comparable data through internal
or external sources; and

SHEME - BE RERERIREMERENERERA
WRAR RS EMEFES T BEEER Ak
HNEB PR B AT L BUR AT EL B s |

Recalculating the recoverable amounts of the PPE
and the IP and assessing the sufficiency of the
accumulated impairment as at 31 December 2021.
BHFEDE BERERBERREMENFKE S
BUWAER T —F+A=+—RRREE
B 78 B M e
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

B AZ AR E (8)

Key Audit Matter
RARERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENERMIEEZER

(ii) Allowance for expected credit loss of the trade receivables

(i) WBEKZHTZ RHIEREGIEERT

Reference is made to notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated
financial statements for the Directors’ disclosures of the
related accounting policies, judgements and estimates,
respectively, and note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements for further information.
F2RGENBEMERMN I RIEHEES AR BRE KR
HEEETECR - AE RAF RESMBRERMT198 H
E—FER -

The carrying amount of the Group's trade receivables was
approximately RMB97,242,000 (net of loss allowance of
approximately RMB19,810,000) as at 31 December 2021.
RZZBZ—F+ZA=+—H' EBEEENEBFHEKX
THR BRI EL A A RK7,242,0007T (FBREEBEHEOA
R #19,810,0007T ) °

During the vyear, the Group has provided a reversal of
expected credit loss (“ECL") of trade receivables of
approximately RMB2,529,000.

TR BEEEREBEZREKFENEREEERE ([BH
FEEEE])FHRBEIE L AR %2,529,0007T ©

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment
of the allowance for ECL of the trade receivables included:
EENEEEHE I RIGIAZ BEEBERE 2T
HHEFBE:

- Discussing with management and the independent
professional valuer to understand the basis of
valuation approach and methodology;
HEBERBIEEGEMN R TREETER
7R E%E

- Challenging the management and the independent
professional valuer on the adoption of the
assumptions and estimates in the valuation;
EREEEANBRREAERNEEERBE LS
FIhERD:

- Evaluating the independence, professionalism
and the accuracy of the work performed by the
independent professional valuer;

FHE B EEMEMETIIENELE MR
AERE N
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Key Audit Matter
RAREERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEMNERNIEEZER

(ii) Allowance for expected credit loss of the trade receivables (Continued)

(i) WBEKBHRFAZRAHIEREGEZR (&)

For the purpose of performing the assessment of the
ECL, the Directors engaged an independent professional
valuer to perform a valuation (the “ECL on Trade
Receivables Valuation”) regarding ECL on trade receivables
based on the Directors’ assumptions which required
significant management judgement to determine the key
assumptions underlying the ECL on Trade Receivables
Valuation, including (i) expected credit loss rates
("ECL Rate”) for each category of trade receivables; (ii)
ageing and overdue analysis of the trade receivables;
(i) information regarding the ability and intent of the
customers to pay and historical data on default rates; and
(iv) shared credit risk characteristics of trade receivables
groups and market conditions. The Group calibrates the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information.

HAGHEHEEBENS EFZEB LI EMGEMEB
BEEHNEBRRYEREZFIBENBEEEBEETHE
(MHERKEZRIENEREESE]) EFE2EHE
X#‘Jﬁﬁz‘ﬁ%#i&tfﬂ&ﬁﬁ JELETREEEBENEZER
FRBEONSEESERFEGRAEEBEX([EEH
BE]) (VB ZEVFIERNRR RaBRESRS T (hE
BEBASZNENREBNERARELERMNBARLS:
M(VE 5 RYGRIEAN N EREERR SRS S5
ERIEEEAZIMEEERARBTEEEELR

For this reason, we identified the allowance for ECL of
trade receivables as a key audit matter.

AR EMRE EE5#HAEWE SRIB2BHREREERE
BiErEREZSIE

Checking the information used by management to
develop the provision matrix including ageing and
overdue analysis of trade receivables, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items in the analysis
with the relevant sales invoices and review its credit
terms,

HMEREEREMAER  UHEaERKE 2%
HAERE T AR EREREREKE S FIBOER
R RBHESRON - TP ERIIEE EEEHEE %
EREERFETHE:

Evaluating the reasonableness and appropriateness
of the ECL on Trade Receivable Valuation and the
assumptions, information and parameters used in
the model,

TEERE S RBAEBEREEBENGHERR
LA)SZE%E%T?)%FHE’MEJ‘“ AR R2EHNE RN RE
B

Checking subsequent settlements from customers
relating to the trade receivables as at 31 December
2021, on a sample basis; and

HEREEENR T —F+-A=+—H®E
WESRBREREREPBHRER: &

Recalculating the allowance for ECL of the trade
receivables, if any, and assessing the sufficiency of
the loss allowance for ECL as at 31 December 2021.
ENFTERRKESFIENEREEBEERE (W0
B) YR T —F+-A=+—HZHEH
EEEERENTEME-
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Group's
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs promulgated by IASB and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

FHzHfE R
ENREFAHAMANARRT LEN
BERN EEEFROEN BTHRAMER
RRESORBMBE -

FHRAMBRRFENER T BREHM
B mEEFTEHEMERBERERATEAN

RESERGEAVBRRME BEENEER
FMEEMER KMEEREMENELTEEA
MHEBERIESEEZBRETEENERFHE
BEANR U FEEEARBERRL - HEESE
AERBETHNIHERSEMEMBREKRNER
Rt EERREEHEEE LU BEFBAE
H¥RE -

EERGMBRRARENER

BERRESAREREEBRETENEEEMN
B2 BRI RS R R BB R ARG
BEX RUAEMATRBIBERNEGS M
BRE REFETHRAEGAVBBREL
ENABARER MEXEFEAUBRERT
SEEANMGFRERMERNE R RRAL -
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

BREMRBRLRE
HEE

PR MR AESRE

VERREEEENFRAMBRRER
‘\T—EEB NIRFF SRR AR T B B B AR
THEHEEESERNRHBMERES 2
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Wan Kin Man, Tony.

Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Kin Man, Tony
Practising Certificate No. P05506

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022

REEEBBNERT BERENLERY
AHEEMBRENBIRA/EE AMHEX
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or LoSS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZE—T=—F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN & E57)

2021 2020
—e-—%¥ —E_THF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
it AR#®TT AREEFTT
Continuing operations BEBEER
Revenue A 4 608,074 492,589
Cost of sales $H & P AR (486,390) (485,241)
Gross profit £ 121,684 7,348
Other revenue H A A 5@) 15,783 17,626
Other net gain/(10ss) Hiblzs,/ (BER) F58 5() 8,435 (39,416)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HERAX (46,860) (21,721)
Administrative expenses THRHEX (62,155) (57,269)
Reversal of/(Provision of) expected TREEMNEREESEZ
credit loss on financial assets 15, () 79 2,529 (3,933)
Finance costs LR YN é@a) (1,245) (162)
Share of losses of associate DG E R R EE - (287)
Profit/(Loss) before tax from KEBEREEBE®N
continuing operations BIaaF (§58) 6 38,171 (97,814)
Income tax credit FristiE o /(@) 10,153 4,119
Profit/(Loss) for the year from KEBEBEEED
continuing operations FREFN(ER) 48,324 (93,695)
Discontinued operation BIEES
Loss for the year from a KB IEEBHFRNEE
discontinued operation 11 (612) (587)
Gain on de-registration of Oy =NSIE: G =Rk eD)
a subsidiary, net W55 71 - 1,183
(Loss)/Profit for the year from RERLEEBEHER
a discontinued operation (EGR) &% (612) 596
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEERF(HR) 47,712 (93,099)
FREYERERAT

ZEFF®

6/



Consolidated Statement of Profit or LOSS (Continued)

EEBEmK (B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B E =T =-—F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN #5177 )

2021 2020
—e-—%¥ —E_THF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

K i AR®FT ARETT

Attributable to : AT & 77 A -
Owners of the Company PAN/NEIESESDN 47,092 (93,099)
Non-controlling interest FEE i 620 -
47,712 (93,099)
RMB RMB
AER% AR
Earnings/(Loss) per share EATYRERES
attributable to ordinary BEBAEKZ
equity holders of the Company SRi&F ~(&8) 10
Basic YN
— Profit/(Loss) for the year —AEEHH,(EBE) 0.057 (0.128)
— Profit/(Loss) from continuing —FEREEBNATE
operations wm Al (EE) 0.058 (0.129)
Diluted e
— Profit/(Loss) for the year —~REEBHN,/ (BE) 0.057 (0.128)
— Profit/(Loss) from continuing —RBELCEEBNREE
operations wmA (EE) 0.058 (0.129)

The notes on pages 74 to 220 form part of these consolidated — F748 & 5220B W it ARG A M EHRE N —
financial statements. oo
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Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
e EMmEmEmiaEx

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE T -—F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN & E57)

2021 2020
—E-—% —EFF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Profit/(Loss) for the year ERET(FEHR) 47,712 (93,099)

Other comprehensive income, net of tax HM2\EkS (MNKRRIE)

Itemn that may be reclassified subsequently HERJEEHN 7 HE
to profit or l0ss: BamaEs -
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINEB I B
financial statements of foreign operations EEMELER 2,521 2,262
Itemn that will not be reclassified subsequently HETSEHSHEE
to profit or loss: PEami)IEE -
Equity investment designated at fair value ETE RIE A FEF AEA
through other comprehensive income: ZHEWERRAEE
- Changes in fair value —’A$T§“§b (58) (648)
— Income tax effect — e E 9 97
Oother comprehensive income FREMZEAWRS
for the year, net of tax (MEME) 2,472 1,711
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZ2EKSEHE 50,184 (91,388)
Attributable to : AT & 77 Ak -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEEFEWN 49,564 (91,388)
Non-controlling interest FE P2 e 620 =

50,184 (91,388)

PRAEMERERAE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARE BRI R

At 31 December 2021 R=ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN & #5)

2021 2020
2% ZEZTF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
it ARBTT ARETFIT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz B R 12 399,500 450,260
Investment properties A E 13 30,358 =
Non-current deposits for acquisitions — WEE# % HE LRERN
of property, plant and equipment JERNERIR & 14 1,698 1,907
Other financial assets at fair value BEAFEFAEMEZERED
through other comprehensive income  Hth & g & & 15 2,342 2,400
Time deposit EHF 22 30,000 -
Deferred tax assets FEIERIBE B 17a 1,213 1,025
Total non-current assets IERBNE ERTE 465,111 455,592
Current assets B EE
Inventories FE 18 133,547 115,134
Trade and other receivables B 5 K EMERFE 79 229,487 134,800
Other financial assets at fair value BEAFEFABRRZ
through profit or loss HMemEE 15 92,842 29,174
Derivatives financial instruments PTESRMITE 20 5,077 1,619
Pledged deposits [REERiPEE=N 21 1,640 4,590
Cash and cash equivalents RehkIReEEY 22 61,671 137,969
Total current assets MBEELT 524,264 423,286
Current liabilities REIRE
Trade and other payables B 5 N A b e kI8 23 35,571 32,062
Derivatives financial instruments MEESMTE 20 896 157
Interest-bearing bank borrowings, FHERITIES B E
secured 24 54,000 -
Lease liabilities HEAaE 25 51 23
Debentures B2 26 4,376 =
Tax payables FERT IR 11,649 22,451
Total current liabilities M EETE 106,543 54,693
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
e AR R (')

At 31 December 2021 R-—ZE=-—&+=-A=+—8H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN & E57)

2021 2020
e —%F ZETHF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000

HiiE AR®TT ARETT

Net current assets RnBEESE 417,721 368,593
Total assets less current HWEERTEDEBR

liabilities 882,832 824,185
Non-current liabilities EREBAE
Other payables H fib &~ 5008 23 4,680 5,070
Lease liabilities HEAaE 25 - 53
Debentures B 26 - 4,535
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 17a 2,760 1,925
Total non-current liabilities IERBABERSE 7,440 11,583
NET ASSETS HERE 875,392 812,602
EQUITY e
Share capital [N 28b 35,345 32,591
Reserves & 834,527 780,011

869,872 812,602
Non-controlling interest IEE AR == 5,520 -
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 875,392 812,602
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RZZE-Z—F=A=+—HEZESTSHERE
31 March 2022. FETI) 8% o
Wu Zheyan Xie Qingmei
REE WMiEx
Director Director
E EF

PRAEMERERAE 7 /I
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SN}

—- N\ 7/

LT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z —
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN & #5)

— =

——F+ZA=t+—HLFE

Fair value
reserve Non-
Share Share  Exchange  Statutory (non- Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve recycling) profits Total interest equity
AFERE
123 KiER ERGH EERE  (FAHE) REaH 88 FEREE fasn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(o 280) (oo 2861) (ot Z8))  (note 280 (note 280))
(Wi280)  (Waz80m)  (WE2800)  (WE28e0)  (WEsom)
At 1 January 2020 RZ8-%%-5-A 25,544 677,305 14219 55,107 470 112,988 885,633 = 885,633
Changes in equity for 2020; ZEITERGER:
Loss for the year FREE - - - S S 9309) 93,09) - 93099
Other comprehensive income ERER2ERE (MEHE)
for the year, net of tax - - 2262 - (551) - il - 1M
Total comprehensive income ER2ENRRE
forthe year - - 2260 - (551) 93,099) (91,388) - 91,389)
Issue of new shares (1ot 24() R (i) 521 7338 - - - - 12,580 - 12580
Shares issued under share award REROREHIETRE
scheme fnote 291) (HE90) 1805 3972 = o o = 5711 - 5771
7047 1310 = = = = 18357 = 18357
At 31 December 2020 and RZBZEE+ZAZ+-AR
1 January 2021 R-BZ-%-5-A 2591 688,615 16,481 95,107 81) 19,889 812,602 S 812,602
Changes in equity for 2021: ZEC-FERER:
Profitfor the year R S S - - - 47092 4709 620 am
Other comprehensive income EREMRENE (MERE)
for the year, net of tax - - 252 - (49 - 2472 - 2472
Total comprefiensive income for the year — FR2ERELE - - 251 - (19) 1709 19564 0 50,184
Contribution from non-controllng interest ~ FEiRRER A E - - - - - - - 4900 4900
Shares issued under share award RERDRBETTRA
scheme fnoie 29) (HiE290) 275 495 - - - - 7,706 - 7,706
2754 4,952 - - - - 7,706 4900 12606
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-£+ZRA=t-H 35,345 693,567 19,002 55,107 (130 66,981 869,872 5520 875,392
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SEeEEeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE T -—F+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN & E57)

2021 2020
—EZ—%F ZETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B it AR®BTRT ARETT
Operating activities BEEE
Cash (used in)/generated from LEER (FTH) /3R E
operations 22(b) (98,329) 60,776
Income tax refunded/(paid) BiR/(BA)FTSH 7 (50)
Net cash flows (used in)/from EEEE (FRA) FRERe
operating activities mEBRHE (98,322) 60,726
Investing activities BEEE
Payment for the purchase of property, FEBEWE - HE&
plant and equipment BEANEN (13,203) (6,602)
Payment for the additions of DRI B ENT K
investment properties 13 (4,611) -
Interest received B URE 2,953 3,344
Decrease in pledged deposits 217 508 2,950 3,017
Dividend income received Bz B IR A 195 983
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE- Jﬂ% &g
plant and equipment Fr 1S 3% 439 =
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B — WJE NG| 27 - (1,627)
Repayment of amount due to an B8R E A a ER A
associate - 96
Advance to non-controlling interest SANECEIS O (2,500) -
Increase in time deposit mHﬁT— SREYIE BN (30,000) -
Net cash flows used BREIBFRARSRERHE
in investing activities (43,777) (789)
Financing activities MEES
Obtained new bank borrowings MERITHER 32(a) 74,407 7,720
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER 32(a) (20,129) (7,766)
Interest paid =ANEESS 32(a) (1,235) (124)
Repayments of lease liabilities 18 ﬁfﬂi\ =i 32(a) (27) (215)
Contribution from non-controlling FEIERERERTE
interest 4,900 -
Net cash flows from/(used in) MEIBFRARSRERHE
financing activities 57,916 (385)
Net (decrease)/increase incash HRe&RHRLEED
and cash equivalents (WD) Bmss#E (84,183) 59,552
cash and cash equivalents BH—A—HHEE&R
at 1 January BHeEEY 137,969 76,024
Effect of foreign exchange EFXfgmpnse
rate changes 7,885 2,393
cash and cash equivalents B+-A=+—HHRER
at 31 December Re%ED 22(a) 61,671 137,969
FREYERERAT

T —FFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

/\\/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B R5N U R BZR)

BRI T

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 17 October 2011 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The Company was listed on the Main Board of the The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
6 July 2012. The registered office of the Company is located at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and the principal place of business
in Hong Kong is located at Unit 1909, 19/F, 212 Texaco Road,
Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 comprise the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”). The consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue by the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) on 31 March 2022.

At beginning of the year, the Group’s was principally in (i)
manufacturing and sales of wooden products; (i) retail sales
of outdoor wooden products; and (iii) manufacturing and sales
of renewable energy products. As detailed in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group discontinued its
operation of retail sales of outdoor wooden products during
the year.

—REH
RREMIZERER AR ([RAAA]RZ
E——FT+ATtERERESESEN
FBRERNAE(—NAN—FEHIEINR
Kirea R ERERSFMX L AR
BREBERAB -ARAAIR_TE—Z_F+
RAARBEEBBERZAAERAE ([H
RO ERET - AQAEMPEEFR
£ Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands e BB X EEE I AE S L E2E
T H E2125% 19181909 =

BE_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—RHLFEW
HFAEPBRRBEARAMEHBAR (5
BIAEEDNMBRER -SAEMBEER
BARAEE([EF])R_F__F=
R=+—B&RET

EE AEBEZEREHENEERE
EAREM: (WEEPIARRE: Ri)EE
MHEBERRER FRREAMBEH
RMENHEI ARERFEARLET
TEPIRHERZEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEFEHE

(@) Statement of compliance @ HHREH
The consolidated financial statements have been UL B R T iR R B B 5T 22 A
prepared in accordance with International Financial ZEg ([ERegtEAZES )R
Reporting Standards (“IFRSsS”) (which include all 1 8 B BR B 75 S 5 AR R (TR BR B 75
International Financial Reporting Standards, International HREEA]) (BE—ERM SR
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) HAER)  BIR g &R ([BEREE
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards LR RZERE)  UAREBRTERD
Board (“IASB") and the disclosure requirements of the BEATHRE HEFHEEUBRE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated NREEABMERIMBERAAE
financial statements also comply with the applicable FEMAB(TEWHRAL) MBEAH
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing BIEX - ANEBERMNERNSH R
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong KREHI|WOT -
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated b #HZHEVBERREREE

financial statements

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand. The measurement
basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that () equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (i) other financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss; and (iii) derivatives financial
instruments which are stated at their fair values (note
2(n)).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

HEERAMBREIAAREZ25H
TMEAAZHELT L - BELK
AU BREMRANTELEARR
SRAE  EOEAFEFARME
ERaET 28 2 BRARE ()R AF
Bt \BEs 2z HthemEER
(iNFTES BT A TR AT (H
#2(n)) e

RIFERPBREEL REREF
AUBHRRE BEEELAELY
ERREAREE BE WARE
2R BN HE - BT REBRR %
ERhF RAERRRIDRBEELR
REEEBATHRAGENZRE
HtWRAEXAER BH&ERELAY
BELAEEMKBRREGNEERAR
B AR E B 1E M BT R R IR - B A
RAEARINZEHET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\\/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B R5N U R BZR)

BB ERR W (@)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements (continuea)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

Adoption of revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2021

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s consolidated financial
statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
- Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS39, IFRS7, IFRS4 and
IFRS16

Amendments to IFRS 16  Covid-19-Related Concessions

Amendments to IFRS 16  Covid-19-Related Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021 (early
adopted)

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

(b)

2. EREFEE®)

FMRARMBIELE (&)

ZEHARARBREFETUR
Bl-me st et eI ESHELE
RIMHIEELETE MEBER(E
SEZPEAER MEFEEN
ERTHRERARAEIELTE

A& A (RIS /T HA R AR SR H3 RS
MR -

& IR B IR A BB B 5 e o 2 BB P
EHEAMBRREEATENH
BA R B TR ZN T2 RR
FE M 23 & 7 o

R G TR IS B S s
R =T =
— B
AEECUAFEEEMBEHREE
IRER AN A 8818 5T B R B 75 3 5 2%
ZU

EEMBREEINENE AREEYE
AR gt REER -E-KR
F30% ERMBRE
ERIET75% - BIRE
HEEBFARR

Gl S Sl
F6% 25T
BB A R R A COVID-1913EEHE &
F65 2 AT P
B B R R Ik Sk YN
F63 2 AT =ZTEZES
COVID-1918
ReBEE (RF
Ra)

WA 4F [ A B O % S 2R R4
RAIAHAEERFERBEFEN
FHERRRKRBR R RANGE B
BEMBCBEDBEEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity, directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

@

2. EREFEE®

fra R
HAVBBRRERAEBREE_T
T+ A=+ -HAILFENH
BRER-MWEBRR T —RAARRA
EERARAEENNER - EAEH
H2HBIEHREB T BB HRA
ERRXFAEFNAREZBE K
BEHRWEN (MAEBEERE T
NAETEREHRABEBORTF
M) % B % 5 I R - BNES 2 I
o

HMARPEEIBERFTONKE
HRAZBIREEIACUER - A
AEBRFHEESEHRAHREY
FMENBEEE—VHBEER
B B

@ HEEHSKEMERERFEAN
BRIRHE:

b)) HMAHLTHEENER:
Al

© FAEBENREERBERE
fEe

2 AR A D A — B B 3t
BORERARES SRR -
B 23 7 4 2 4 o S B 1
B2 ARTINRA EERAHE
FILE AL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\\/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B R5N U R BZR)

BB ERR W (@)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continuea)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it categorised
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognise (i) the fair value of
the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

@

2. EREFEE®)

IMEEE ()
$Elﬁ“ﬂ&#ﬁ%%éﬁﬁA
DEERAE R ERA LS B
fWﬁW@mﬂaﬁ#¢hh$%
HEBABH AEEKEAFY
P 32 5 FF 22 A 0 P 4 B 0 B EE D
BN WA FHAES RS
EHEAERRB2EE M.

\\

fidd = B M B R B R £ XA ey =18

THREEZ -BRZAHNRE
AEEEEHAHERTERNRE
R -MEARMNMAEEERE
CRBREEGE) RESIHA
BE o

MAKEREL —FHEBARME
B A EBROZMBARNEE
(BEBEB)MEE (NMEMIFZER
R ES O IREEEMNEERA
RO EXH) RATEE S E R ¢ A R HERR ()T
WHRENRFE (MEFRENER
B R EMAGNER R R B ST
EENBHRIBEE - UEEME
T U A P BE BB 7R 5% (B R {1 AR (0 1
HWARBEEXRHENBEERAR
RERNEREEFEE WENHE
ERAHREEN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R50 U R BEZR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

©)

Investments in associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The Group’s investments in associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in
the associate, except where recognised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associate is
included as part of the Group's investments in associate.

When an investment in an associate is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

BEASHHE®)

©

ERNRREBEEE —RTLR
20% Bt RENRYED WA

HHBBEAZEINER-BEX
TERSARREENMBRER
SRR R 7 B R I 3R 2K R 4
AZEBR

BEaEHEA AREREERA
R E - AR B 5% & ER T
R ERE R a MK K7
R EAAREFENHREFBE
EEHARBBEZ B/ B

AEBEREBERAWBREER
HitzmPasnhlit AEaBE R
RAERERER UL HERN
ERAMESEREMES AKX
SEERGARREHRBERHRE
HEMES (MER) - NEBEE
BERRRERX SN ARSI W K E
BRUAEERBERRNKRES
PREH HEMARERBERQAEER
BERENEE WEKE QRN
BRIBARERBLERARRNAE
EEMREN—FD -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

wm

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B R5N U R BZR)

BB ERR W (@)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at fair value at the acquisition date fair value
which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its fair
value at the acquisition date and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

®

2. EREFEE®)
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EZRETIANE BB Z R FER
E ZRFEANEEMEERZE
E-ASEHBERBLIZAEEA
AR Z BE R AR B BT IABREU
WS BRER KBRS
NFHEZBHN -REXBEHMS
AEBAERIARNFEREWET
AEpEEFRBEZRIGLN TE
REEETBREEAEE= AR
BRERTESAEARLISEE
EFEZ KB SF RS- JF
TR ES AR MBI NRAFE
FHE-WERBEKAREER -

ERBEN-—EEBREERS R
RYRIEELNENEERERDN
—HERAR-BEEEURF A&
BRAEC KB EEK-

EAEEKE -BEBE SRE
ABRET REBRERZRBERE
REBGREFEAAZEzEREE
&@1% NERBEZDBRERE
s HEPERBRKBIESHN
EPZW TTETRETHRE

EEBAMOBBIETT RILATA
FRERE B E R ATEERAE
FELZEMKaBENIERE

e
=7
s ©

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R50 U R BEZR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continuea)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or l0ss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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WESTREE ZEMIARERR
WEEHZAFEER - "BERE
EFRBEIRARERAFEFE
RFEZEFIRNBEAER D8R
RESZIARBELESHIE
MmEREERERD AR

BENSRANESE D EE
RE IFEREEERZBE N
AEBELRFA 2 BRI g 2
B A F{E 2 420 - FB 8P YE AT
BANEEFERPAAERZRBE
FEZEBR - WERREREMEA
BZBEMEREEEEFE LR
J?E'EUEAE%EEWM&E%%EH%%
BaAERSRERE RS-

R FHERR AERKAERE
MRFBREBRAE-BHEASF
TR BRI B - A R A AR
BREEWREREEAER D
AlgE AT ETAR AEER
ToA=+—RETREZFER
B SETRENS BEBE
HmMEEzHEBRERSED
RERHATAAMH 2 MRARETE
B AREERCELBNSRS
ELABUARN MAmAEEEAM
BEXREERERERTEMK
BIER -

PRAEMERERAE

T —FFR

31



82

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continuea)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment 0ss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments
and other financial assets at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

©

Fair value measurement (continuead)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, recognises the use of
relevant observable inputs and recognises the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
recognised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

©

Fair value measurement (continuea)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit
for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets

(Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Company if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

() has control or joint control over the Company,

(i) has significant influence over the Company;
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)
() Related parties (continuea)
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group; (If the
Group is itself such a plan) and the sponsoring
employers of the post-employment benefit
plan,

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(viiy a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viiy the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

The shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years
after the date of completion

- Buildings

- Leasehold improvements  Over the unexpired term of lease
but no more than 5 years

- Plant and machinery 10 years

- Furniture, fittings and 5years
equipment

- Motor vehicles 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to
earn rental income rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
depreciate the cost of each item of investment properties
over the shorter of (i) the unexpired term of lease; and (i)
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 20 years
after the date of completion.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment or investment properties under construction
and equipment pending installation, and is stated at cost
less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction and installation during the construction
period. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant
and equipment when the asset is substantially ready for
its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the construction
in progress until it is substantially completed and ready
for its intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(M) Lease
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

@

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Where applicable,
the cost of a right-of-use asset also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Land use rights Over the lease term

Leased properties Over the lease term

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(M) Lease (continuea)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(e)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g.,, a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(M) Lease (continuea)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office premise
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of
its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. When a
contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss due
to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective
of the business model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continuead)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded
in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &Rk AN REESIR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
also recognised as other income in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured
at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or 10ss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

J the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

Derecognition of financial assets (continuea)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(P)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLS are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (@ 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held), or (2) a breach of contract such as a default or past
due event.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(P Impairment of financial assets (continuea)
General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLS except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(P)

Impairment of financial assets (continuea)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLS at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, bank borrowings, lease liability, debentures and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(@ Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS
9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for the
gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk
which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or 10ss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@) Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets
when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the
fair value is negative.

The fair value of commodity purchase contracts that
meet the definition of a derivative as defined by IFRS 9 is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or 10ss
as cost of sales. Commodity contracts that are entered
into and continue to be held for the purpose of the
receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance
with the Group’s expected purchase, sale or usage
requirements are held at cost.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except for the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or
loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

V)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

wm

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B R5N U R BZR)

BB ERR W (@)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R50 U R BEZR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B R5N U R BZR)

BB ERR W (@)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it
is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by
way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

v

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(2) Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

0

Sale of goods

The principal activities of the Group are
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products, retail sales of outdoor wooden products
(discontinued during the year) and manufacturing
and sales of renewable energy products.

The Group’s revenue is derived from selling
goods with revenue recognised at a point in time
when control of the goods has transferred to
the customer. This is generally when the goods
are delivered to the customer. There is limited
judgement needed in identifying the point control
passes: once physical delivery of the products to
the agreed location has occurred, the Group no
longer has physical possession, usually will have a
present right to payment (as a single payment on
delivery) and retains none of the significant risks
and rewards of the goods in question. There is
generally only one performance obligation. Invoices
are usually payable within 90 —180 days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

T N =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

v

(@a)

(bb)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources
(i) Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and
a share award scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments.
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BB ERR W (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (%5 B RSN YA REZTR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(bb) Share-based payments (continuea)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants of shares under the share award scheme
during the year is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted, further details of
which are given in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXgTBE

(Continued)

(bb) Share-based payments (continued) (bb) AR D BEEE 2 MK ()

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

BB ERR W (@)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(cc) Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiary which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group are required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

(dd) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(ee) Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the Directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“"RMB"), which is the Group’s functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B R5N U R BZR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEREIBEEK )

(Continuea)

(ff) Foreign currencies (continued) (fH) SN )
Differences arising on settlement or translation of HEEdmEEKBEEEENEE
monetary items are recognised in the consolidated ARGEBEERER ERIEEE
statement of profit or loss with the exception of monetary AR EE BN ERIREFE—
items that are designated as part of the hedge of the HomE®BBEBERIN-ZZEBEEH
Group's net investment of a foreign operation. These are RiFEEMmE2EREER B2 N
recognised in other comprehensive income until the net EREFE ERRITRBETS
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative HEHFeBmx ZSEBEEN
amount is reclassified to the consolidated statement ER%%Ef{EE’J%RIEEﬂSE&E%U‘F
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to RérE B2 mEas

exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in consolidated other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of RELKAGTEZIIEIFEEIER
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated DEHEBAERRGBHzERBE-
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial BATHEFEZINEIEEEIEAE A
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value HKABET AFERR EERS®RE

in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange HRBRERATEAEZIFERE
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The B BT EE A &9 W 2 oS 18 70 B 3 B B
gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary BRZEBEAAFEZH (AWM
item measured at fair value is treated in line with the ZBEEMAFTEZH N EREER
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of ANz Hib 2 Em LB HE
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose HEBNDHEF AfZe B2 HEHK
fair value gain or loss is recognised in consolidated other B °

comprehensive income or profit or l0ss is also recognised
in consolidated other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFBE®
(Continuea)
(ff) Foreign currencies (continued) (fH) SN )

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Renminbi
as the primary economic environment was in Hong
Kong Dollars. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or 10ss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of subsidiaries are translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into Renminbi at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

REEVNHRERRBEE BRAX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
Statements:

(i) Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatments of these transactions are
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes
in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for deductible temporary differences. As those deferred
tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management'’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets, if any, are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

SR HE R A5

BEANEEREMBHRRE EEEAE
HEXERMERVA A -BERAE
MRS REREBHEERIABBERE
A E - B RBRR - BEZERR LM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o= A
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continuea)

Judgements (continuea)

0)

(ii)

Income tax (Continued)

The Group's determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
those subsidiaries in the PRC according to the relevant
tax jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing of
the payment of the dividends. The estimation process is
highly based on assumptions, which are influenced by
projected future market and economic conditions and
future financing requirements of the Group, and it is not
probable that those subsidiaries will distribute dividends
in the foreseeable future.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
an investment property, and has developed criteria in
making that judgement. Investment property is a property
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both.
Therefore, the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise
a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes (the “Owned Used Portion”). If
these portions could be leased out separately, the Group
accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be leased out separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
for use in the Owned Used Portion. Judgement is made
on an individual property basis to determine whether the
Owned Used Portion are so insignificant that a property
does qualify as an investment property.

S HE R AR 2)
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(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR ISR M R ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continuea)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

(i) Provision for inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the
Group and makes provision against obsolete and slow
moving inventory items which are identified as no longer
suitable for sale or use. Management estimates the net
realisable value for inventories based primarily on the
latest selling price and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review at the end of each
reporting period and makes provision against obsolete
and slow moving items. Management considers various
factors, including the condition of products, ageing of
inventories, estimated selling prices less cost to sell.
Management reassesses the estimation at the end of
each reporting period.

The identification of obsolete and slow moving inventory
items requires the use of judgements and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact on the carrying
values of inventories and the provision for inventories
recognised in the periods in which such estimates have
been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continuea)

Estimation uncertainty (continuec)

(i)

Allowance for expected credit loss of trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product
type, customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed credit loss rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical settlement
records, past experience and forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions
(i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate
over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults, the historical credit loss rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
credit loss rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed credit loss rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLS
is sensitive to change in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit 10ss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of a customer’s actual credit
loss in the future. The information about the ECLS on the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in notes 19 and
35(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ra

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

BB ERR W (@)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continuea)

Estimation uncertainty (continuec)

(i)

(iv)

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment and investment
property are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The management
reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
investment property

Property, plant and equipment and investment property
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair
value less costs of disposal. These calculations require
the use of judgments and estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continuea)

Estimation uncertainty (continuec)

(iv)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
investment property (Continued)

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as a
result affect the Group's financial condition and results
of operations. If there is a significant adverse change in
the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment
charge to consolidated statement of profit or 10ss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

BB ERR W (@)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continuea)

Estimation uncertainty (continuec)

(v)

(vi)

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing
rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it
needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates
the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-
alone credit rating).

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group’s
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continuea)

Estimation uncertainty (continuec)

(vi)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The fair value measurement of the Group's financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used
in determining fair value measurements are recognised
into different levels based on how observable the inputs
used in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”):

o Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted),

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in
the period they occur.

The Group measures a number of items at fair value:

° Derivative financial instruments

o Other financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

o Other financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the items above, please refer to note
35(f) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

(@)

Revenue @)
The principal activities of the Group are (i) the
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden products;

(i) retail sales of outdoor wooden products; and (iii)
manufacturing and sales of renewable energy products.

During the year, the Group discontinued its operation of

retail sales of outdoor wooden products (note 11).

Revenue from contracts with customers within the scope
of IFRS 15 is as follows:

WAR 2 2],

WA
REENTEEBRONEERKE
POMRE M (NEEPIMRE MR A

RNEENBEBERREMR R
FRN RAEERIETEEPINKRE
i EE (PEE1T) -

T BB B 75 ¥ & 22 I 5515557 6 B
MEFAHOMEIT

2021 2020
—E-—% —EETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBEF T
Sales of outdoor wooden products HE P INRELR 601,968 486,102
Retail sales of outdoor wooden products Z& FIMRE G = -
Sales of renewable energy products HEBERRER 6,106 6,487
608,074 492,589
Revenue KA :
- Attributable to continuing operations ~ —R4RABERKRBRZ
reported in the consolidated FRE G B IEG
statement of profit or loss 608,074 492,589
— Attributable to a discontinued — 4R IFFERSREAE (FTEE11)
operation (note 11) - =
608,074 492,589
Information about major customers EREXTERFNESR
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the BEPWAEREBKA BT K
total revenue who are from the manufacturing and sales BEEREEPIIAREERD 0T
of outdoor wooden products, are as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—% —ETF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT
Customer A EFH 85,238 N/A 38 A *
Customer B ®FZ 66,575 50,581
Customer C ®EFPA 65,776 N/A 713 A *
217,589 50,581
L The corresponding customer did not contribute more than 10% of . HEEPR EFALTEERBREAEE

the total revenue of the Group in previous year.

YA EE10% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDBEH 2
(Continueq)
(@) Revenue (continued) @ WA ®)
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHNWE
Disaggregation of revenue information WA 7 2B
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by TREFZEMWEMmG TEERK
primary geographical markets, major products and timing WATEREE D BEBA -

of revenue recognition.

2021
ZE--f

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

BREERE RIERE

Manufacturing

Manufacturing  and sales of Retail sales

and sales of renewable of outdoor

wooden Energy wooden
products products Sub-total products Total

£ER EERME SERH
HEAHR BERFESR &t REA E:h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AERFT AR®FR AE®TR AERTR AE®TR

Primary geographical markets* FEEmHE*

The People’s Republic of China REARLAE
(the “PRC") (place of domicile) ([RE]) (FFrit) 81,832 6,106 87,938 - 87,938

Australasia BRFIAE 438,912 - 438,912 - 438,912

North America EEM 40,953 - 40,953 - 40,953

Europe B 29,777 - 29,777 - 29,777

Asia Pacific exclusive of the PRC) GAE (TREFE) 10,494 - 10,494 - 10,494
601,968 6,106 608,074 - 608,074

Major products TEER

Wooden products RER 601,968 - 601,968 - 601,968

Renewable energy products BERRER - 6,106 6,106 - 6,106
601,968 6,106 608,074 - 608,074

Timing of revenue recognition Iy A RER IR

Product transferred at a point intime ~ EREBBH AR HE 601,968 6,106 608,074 - 608,074

L The geographical location of customers is based on the location at * BEEMMEAEDERINEDHLE

which the goods were delivered. M5E °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDBEHR @)
(Continuead)
(@) Revenue (continued) @ WA &)
Revenue from contracts with customers EFAWE (&)
(Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue information (Continued) WA SEER (B
2020
ZEo%E
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BELEERE RIEET
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of Retail sales of
and sales of renewable outdoor
wooden energy wooden
products products Sub-total products Total
EER EEREE g
HEAER BERRER At POMRER e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTR ARETFT ARBTT

Primary geographical marketst *E#EmH§*

The PRC (place of domicile) FE (i) 94,119 6,487 100,606 = 100,606
Australasia BANES 224,551 - 224,551 - 224,551
North America JEEM 137,708 - 137,708 - 137,708
Europe B 25,337 - 25,337 - 25,337
Asia Pacific (exclusive of the PRC) GAE (FaE+E) 4,387 - 4,387 = 4,387
486,102 6,487 492589 - 492,589
Major products IEER
Wooden products REH 486,102 - 486,102 - 486,102
Renewable energy products BARRER - 6,487 6,487 = 6,487
486,102 6,487 492 589 - 492,589

Timing of revenue recognition AR RHHE

Product transferred at a point intime - EREB BN ERH 486,102 6,487 492,589 - 492,589
e The geographical location of customers is based on the location at e BEEZMBUBEREBRNERMEMLE
which the goods were delivered. €
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

4. WARDHER %)

(Continuea)
(@) Revenue (continuea) @ WA
Revenue from contracts with customers EFENWE (&)
(Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue information (Continued) WA RIEER (B)
The following table provides information about trade TREAINELPENRAFBESE
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with WRIBRENEERNER -
customers.
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—5 —E-F
+=-BA=+—H +—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREBTT
Trade receivables (note 19) B 5 RIE (#519) 97,242 55,489
Contract liabilities (note 23(i)) AHEE (K722230)) (9,477) (5,698)

The contract liabilities mainly relate to receipt in advance
from customers for goods that have not yet been
transferred to the customers. The contract liabilities as at
31 December 2020 of RMB2,505,000 has been recognised
as revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
performance obligations satisfied due to the received
orders before 31 December 2020 has been fulfilled.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group's existing contracts is
RMB9,477,000. This amount represents revenue expected
to be recognised in the future from completed purchase
orders from customers. The Group will recognise the
expected revenue in future when or as the goods is
transferred to customers, which is expected to occur in
the next 12 months.

EHBEEEPRBRHERAEF
EEEYNEFRPREBE-E_Z_F
F+ZA=Z+T—HHNEHEESYD
AR ¥E2,505,000 B BITRAOE
AR tHERAEBE-_T-_—F+=
R=+—BIEFERRKA-

R-F-_—F+=-A=+—8"
Eﬂi$%liﬁﬁé\lﬂﬁ%TE@E%’U%
B HERBESARE?,A477,000
T th & B R IR A5 R IE R RE
RHPWAEPHNREFE -AKE
BERRKEEMER R TP
RIEHOBA - ZBATRRERK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\\/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B R5N U R BZR)

BB ERR W (@)

4.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continuec)

(@)

Revenue (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sales of outdoor wooden products, retail sales of
outdoor wooden products and sales of renewable
energy products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the outdoor wooden products and renewable energy
products. Except for the payment of retail sales which is
cash on delivery, the payment is generally due within 90—
180 days from delivery. Payment in advance is normally
required from its customers.

Segment reporting

In @ manner consistent with how the Group managed
its business and the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’ s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has identified
three reportable segments, namely (i) manufacturing
and sales of wooden products, (i) manufacturing and
sales of renewable energy products and (i) retail sales
of outdoor wooden products. During the year, the Group
discontinued the operation of retail sales of outdoor
wooden products. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the above reportable segments.

o Manufacturing and sales of wooden products:
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products to both domestic and overseas
customers, and trading of timber.

o Manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products: manufacturing and sales of biomass
pellet fuel to both domestic and overseas
customers.

o Retail sales of outdoor wooden products: retail
sales of outdoor wooden products through self-
operated retail shops, which has been discontinued
during the year.

@)

4. WARDHER %)

WA (&)

EEAHWE (B)

BHEE
BRAEEEHE T 0E Rt m
—F :

HEFPHIKER TE
FIHEBERREMR

F AN EL &

BHEARRNPEIARERERBE
EREGRHRERT - BREERUR
SRKEELEEIN KB —RRRA
REET90-180 K N EIH - BF — R 7A
B R e

7 HB 2 ¥

BESAREERLES LS
X RERERDERERFE D
FRE SR AN L R —

éﬁlﬁ’ﬁj‘i AEBEBE=[T2
o BN()EE RIHE AR - (i)
i?&ﬁ%%ﬁiﬁéiﬁé%%&(iii);ﬁ
ERPIINREM RFE  REBKIE
TZEERPIIRE Mz EE - NEE
WA EE D F B L] 2
e

s HERHEAHSD: ABEA
ERFEERMEPIARKR R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R50 U R BEZR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continueq)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) ) DEZRE)
(i) Segment results (i) DEEE
For the purposes of assessing segment Bl D BRI RN S 2 B
performance and allocating resources between SEER AEESRERERE
segments, the Group’s senior executive BT EEERREZTZ2R
management monitors the results attributable to DEPEVFELE

each reportable segment on the following bases:

Reportable segment revenue represents the
revenue derived from the Group's external
customers by manufacturing and sales of wooden
products, retail sales of outdoor wooden products
and manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products, respectively.

The measure used for reportable segment profit/
(loss) is “profit/(loss) for the year (excluding the
after tax effect of government subsidies)” of
manufacturing and sales of wooden products,
retail sales of outdoor wooden products and
manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products, respectively.

Segment assets exclude other financial assets,
deferred tax assets, derivative financial instruments,
pledged deposits, time deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial
instruments, interest-bearing bank borrowings,
debentures, tax payables, deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

A E2HDBBADRIEEER
HEARE M TEFINKEM
A RAEREEBEERER
i B 2 S B 51 2R % P A S H
Ae

A 2| EHEF, (EIE)
RANAEEMREEREE
AR TEPIARRRIARK
AERHEEBLRRERD
[FREH,/ (B8 (Te%
BT HRL 2 B2 ] -

SHEETEFHMERE
E RBEHEREE TE2#
TEA BEMEFER EHEFEX
ReERReFEY REMK
SEBHREERGEEE B
RZEEEFREBEETS
e

ABEETRETESHRT
B FrERITER BEH E
NBIE - RERIEAE KM
KA@M EREREEARE:
EAZEABIEAEEARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &Rk AN REESIR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDHEHK %)

(Continuea)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) b)) HE=ZHw#)
(i) Segment results (Continuead) () DWEE(E)

REE—_ZTE-_—FR_F=F
F+-_A=+—HILFE &
BIRDEE & ERRFTERA
SEESEEERENEHELN
EE 2RO BHERIHF 0

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 December

2021 and 2020 is set out below: T
2021
—E--§
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
RHEEERE BIERE
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of Retail sales of
and sales of renewable outdoor
wooden energy wooden
products products sub-total products Total
EER
EER HEBE Bt
HEARR ERER Al RSN ARE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ABBTT ARETT AB®TT ARRTR
Revenue derived from the REREENPRR
Group’s external customers [ ON 601,968 6,106 608,074 - 608,074
Inter-segment revenue DHEBMA 5,843 3,482 9,325 - 9,325
Reportable segment 2R BEA
revenue 607,811 9,588 617,399 - 617,399
Reportable segment profit/loss) 71 2H/ A 8A,/ (E18)
(profit/(oss) for the year (FREdl/ (BE)
(excluding government (TREBRHL
subsidies, net of tax)) HEz2)) 57,104 (2,209) 54,895 (612) 54,283
Depreciation charge on property, 9% BB kREZTE
plant and equipment (32,112) (507) (32,619) (260) (32,879)
Depreciation chargeonland — BEREREEEL
use rights included in TiFERENE
right-of-use assets (1,476) - (1,476) - (1,476)
Depreciation charge on RENETE
investment properties (3,444) - (3,444) - (3,444)
Fair value gain on derivative (TEeRITAATENKE
financial instruments 4,637 - 4,637 - 4,637
Fair value gain on other EtheREEATEKS
financial assets 1,225 - 1,225 - 1,225
Gain on disposal of property,  HEWE - BERREL
plant and equipment Yozs 103 - 103 - 103
Impairment of non-current WENE BERZERD
deposits for acquisitions of FREREHE
property, plant and equipment (1,907) - (1,907) - (1,907)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R50 U R BEZR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDHMEHK #)

(Continuea)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) b)) HE=ZH#)
(i) Segment results (Continued) () DWEE(E)
2020
it St 23
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
FELEEE RIEERE
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of Retail sales of
and sales of renewable outdoor
wooden energy wooden
products products Sub-total products Total
EER
FER HERE €
HEAHR wRER = POV B &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARETFL ARBTR ARETFT
Revenue derived from the REAEENIRP
Group's external customers [N 486,102 6,487 492,589 - 492,589
Inter-segment revenue PHBEMA 5,164 2,650 7814 - 7814
Reportable segment TERFBEA
revenue 491,266 9137 500,403 - 500,403
Reportable segment profit/loss) A2 HA HEH,/ (ER)
(profit/(oss) for the year (FRET/ (BE)
(excluding government (T REBMHERL
subsidies, net of tax)) REyE)) (8401) 458 (83,553) (587) (84,140)
Depreciation charge on property, 1% BEkREZTE
plant and equipment (34,245) (507) (34,752) (269) (35,021)
Depreciation chargeonland B ERFEREEEL
use rights included in THEBREINE
right-of-Use assets (1,519) S (1,519) = (1519
Fair value loss on derivative TESRIAATEER
financial instruments (8,684) - (8,684) - (8,684)
Fair value loss on other EtheBEEATESE
financial assets (1,201) - (1,201) - (1,201)
Gain on de-registration of MEARBEE NS
a subsidiary - - - 1,183 1,183
Gainon disposal of property,  HEWE BERZEZ
plant and equipment Wi 1782 - 1782 - 1782
Impairment of property, nE BERZERE
plant and equipment (24,641) S (24,641) S (24,641)
Gain/(Loss) on de-registration  B¥A 7 T%‘ﬁé;‘ Eulif)
of associates, net Wi/ (B8) 58 1,181 (422 759 - 759
RRMEYIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &Rk AN REESIR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDBEHR @)
(Continuea)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) b PEEFRE)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) TERSFWAETZ2HKD
revenue and reportable segment results EENHER
2021 2020
8% —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARBTIT

Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue A2/ H WA 617,399 500,403
Elimination of inter-segment K 8H 5 F AU
revenue (9,325) (7,814)

Consolidated revenue ERAE WA 608,074 492,589
Revenue: KA :
— Attributable to continuing —REFREEERBERL

operations reported in the HELEESEN

consolidated statement of

profit or loss 608,074 492,589

— Attributable to a discontinued ~ —#R |- ¥ FE(G (HaET1)
operation (note 11) - _

608,074 492,589
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IS EmERMEE (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDHBE®R #)
(Continuea)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) b)) HE=ZH#)

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) TUE2HAMWYRAETZ2HD B
revenue and reportable segment results EENYHE (&)
(Continued)

2021 2020
—E-—5 —E-F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBFT
Profit/(Loss) &% (BR)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) R B AEE N ZRFH
derived from the Group's A2HHE
external customers wH (BE) 54,283 (84,140
Government subsidies (net of tax) BT 8L (FERFLE ) 5,280 8,537
Depreciation charge on HEMEZTE
leased properties (77) (149)
Unallocated interest income RO EHA 3,601 3,344
Unallocated interest expense RAOBRAEFREZ (1,245) (162)
Unallocated head office and ROMBRERERTERST
corporate expenses (14,130) (20,529)
consolidated profit/(0ss) FAREZEEETN (E18)
for the year 47,712 (93,099)
Profit/(Loss): ®BF,(BHR):
— Attributable to continuing —RiEEABERERY
operations reported in the HEQEETS RN
consolidated statement of
profit or loss 48,324 (93,695)
- Attributable to a discontinued  —#% [F ¥ RE/G (FEE11)
operation (note 11) (612) 596
47,712 (93,099)
RREMERERA T

ZEFF®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &Rk AN REESIR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDW2R #2)
(Continuea)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) ) DEBZFR &)
(iii) Reconciliation of segment assets and (i) PHEEREGEHE
liabilities
2021
ZE--f
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
RHEBERE RIERE
Manufacturing
Manufacturing  and sales of Retail sales of
and sales of renewable outdoor
wooden energy wooden
products products Sub-total products Total
£ER
£ER HEBE 28
HERRS EEER &t FOREE L h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Segment assets ABEE 792,363 1,564 793,927 - 793,927
Corporate and other unallocated ¥R EMANEEE

assets 195,448
Total assets BEBE 989,375
Segment liabilities AWAR 27,256 622 27,878 - 27,878
Corporate and other unallocated ¥R EMAA R EE

liabilities 86,105
Total liabilities BEEd 113,983
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDBEH 2
(Continuea)
(b) Segment reporting (continuea) b DEHZ2FHRE)
(ili) Reconciliation of segment assets and (i) PPEEREBEHER(Z)
liabilities (Continued)
2020
43
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BELEEK RIEER
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of Retail sales of
and sales of renewable outdoor
wooden energy wooden
products products Sub-total products Total
EER
EER HERE €
HEREM WRER At FoMRER b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Segment assets ABEE 699,131 2,071 701,202 618 701,820
Corporate and other unallocated (¥R EMASEEE

assets 177,058
Total assets BEBE 878,878
Segment liabilities ABAH 35,363 517 35,880 4 35,921
Corporate and other unallocated ¥R EMADEEE

liabilities 30,355
Total liabilities BEEeE 66,276

(iv) Geographical information (iv) higER

Non-current assets FEmEEE
Over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets 8 1B90%H) FE R BN & E AL
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no further TR BEBIEEBIERE
geographical information of non-current assets BEMMISERMELBE-

were disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ra

B IR RERMEF (@

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN/ 5. HtARHAakz -~ (F5E)
(LOSS) R
(@) Other revenue @ HauA
2021 2020
8% —T_FTF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTFT
Interest income on bank deposits TERFBIRA 3,601 3,344
Government subsidies* EKW AL 6,212 10,044

Dividend income from the equity
investment designated as fair value

BEABEAFEFA
HEmprmilas 2 RAKRE

through other comprehensive A& BURA (K72 15(a))
income (note 15(a)) 195 983
Rental income e A 1,046 96
Others EAfth 4,730 3,159
15,784 17,626
Other revenue: Htlg A -
- Attributable to continuing —RiFEEERBAR
operations reported in the SEKC R ETSEG
consolidated statement of
profit or loss 15,783 17,626
- Attributable to a discontinued — IR IEETEREAE
operation (note 11) (HteE11) 1 -~
15,784 17,626
& The Group received unconditional government subsidies of & RBE_T-_—F+_A=+—HILF

RMB6,212,000 (2020: RMB10,044,000) during the year ended
31 December 2021 in respect of its normal operating activities.
There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attaching to

these government grants.

JE - 7R 5 B 5 ELIE 5 208 0% B WU 1R
14 BT 4 Bh A R #6,212,0007 (= F =
T4 AR ¥10,044,0007T ) © % E BT
R I BRI R R RIS B F IR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN/ 5. Hth ARHE Mz (&8)
(LOSS) (continuea) REE (&)
(b) Other net gain/(I0ss) by Hfzs (E518) 58
2021 2020
—E-_—% —E-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBEFT
Net foreign exchange gain/(10ss) MUz (E518) /F8 4,635 (8,090)
Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative PTESRIARNTE
financial instruments Wz, (EE) 4,637 (8,684)
Fair value gain/(loss) on other financial ~E & gt & E 2 F(E
assets Was,/ (EHE) 1,225 (1,201)
Gain on de-registration of M AR BIEERLR
a subsidiary, net W zs i F 58 - 1,183
Gain on de-registration of TR MNIE &z ko=
associates, net W ek F 58 = 759
Gain on remeasurement of previously ~ E ¥zt S kT RE L
held equity interests in an associate NaELz e 2 Was
(note 27) (K1:227) - 159
Gain on disposal of property, HEVE BEREREZ
plant and equipment W %5 103 1,782
Impairment of property, Y WE R EERE
plant and equipment (note 12) (Hfet12) - (24,641)
Gain on early termination of leases IRATARIEHAE 2 W - 3
Impairment of non-current deposits W= B MR EN
for acquisition of property, JEENHRR € RE
plant and equipment (1,907) =
Gain on bargain purchase EE W W= - 697
Others Hth (258) (200)
8,435 (38,233)
Other net gain/(loss): Hthlr @~ (E518) B8
— Attributable to continuing —RiFEBEERBARY
operations reported in the FERE XN
consolidated statement of
profit or loss 8,435 (39,416)
— Attributable to a discontinued — 4R IF TSR
operation (note 11) (KiaE11) - 1,183
8,435 (38,233)
FREYERERAT

B —FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIADEF, (EBE)
Profit/(Loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRELATEF, . (E58) &Mk (5T AT
P EIEEB
(@) Finance costs @ REERA
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARBETIT

Interest expense on bank borrowings  SRITE XA FI B 1,103 22
Interest expense on debentures BEHFAEFAZ
(note 26) (Hi&t26) 138 133
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABRNFBERX
(note 25) (K7:225) 4 7
1,245 162
Finance costs: MERE:
- Attributable to continuing —RiFEEERPR
operations reported in the SE TS EAS
consolidated statement of
profit or loss 1,245 162
- Attributable to a discontinued — RN (HtEETT)

operation (note 11) - _

1,245 162
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o= A

e ISR MIRE (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued)

(0)

Staff costs (exclude directors’

BRBANEFR, (&) (@)

(o)

BETIRA(TBRESEH

remuneration) )
2021 2020
2% —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREEFIT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHEMBET 23,158 27,173
Contributions to defined contribution & 28 FUE Rt 214 3¢
retirement schemes 6,936 890
Equity-settled share award scheme VAR 4 4 B 0 B 1) 2D &1 &
expenses (note 29(b)) R (K1aE290)) 4,108 5,777
34,202 33,840
Staff costs: BTIRF:
— Attributable to continuing operations  — 15 & &S K RE(L 33,893 33,556
— Attributable to a discontinued —R\E TG (EETT)
operation (note 11) 309 284
34,202 33,840

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC, the Group's entities in the PRC participate
in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
(the “Schemes”) organised by the local authorities
whereby the entities are required to make contributions
to the Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020. Contributions to the Schemes vest
immediately. Under the Schemes, retirement benefits
of existing and retired employees are payable by the
relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group had no forfeited contributions under its retirement
benefit scheme in the PRC and under the MPF Scheme
in Hong Kong which may be used to reduce the existing
level of contributions as described in paragraph 26(2)
of Appendix 16 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange.

RIEH B A RE S AR RAR
REBENMNATFEMNEREZ M
ERERNTHEEFRKENE
([Zst8) B - E@AEBEAR
HE_Z - —FR-F-_TF+=
A=+ BLEFERAEKREEY
B — & B D LA T SIME L 5K
HZAEMEEHNEFRANERERE R
BEEE BERERKEENR
AEFEBBEETEEEREIN
BREEHFIIN REEEE—FE
Fo

HE_Z - —FR-ZF_FF+=
A=+—BLEE AEEEFH
FRARBEFEMEENBRE S
BT Em e e g5k 1T A RR
DR R ATE S TR BIM 821658
26(B% ATl By BR 5 R K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R M EE (')

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRBADEF (EE) (@)
(c) Other items ) HMIEHE
2021 2020
—E-—5F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARETT

Cost of inventories recognised as REGFEKRAZER
expenses (note (i) (H1aE0)) 486,390 485,241
Depreciation charge — continuing ME—FELEER
operations (note 12) (Bia12)
— Owned property, plant and —BEWE - BEREE
equipment TEXRE 32,619 34,752
— Right-of-use assets: —(FREEE:
- Land use rights — T A 1,476 1,519
— Leased properties —HEWE 77 149
— Investment properties (note 13) —REME (K:13) 3,444 -
Depreciation charge — discontinued TE -4 IEER
operation (note 17) (B7a£11)
— Owned property, plant and —BBEWE WEREE
equipment 260 269
37,876 36,689
Lease payments not included in TEEEHEAED
measurement of lease liabilities MEZ W 371 -
Research and development costs Tt 82 Ak AR 19,517 16,282
Donations B 5,202 205
Gain on bargain purchase on FREWE—ERBERARZ
acquisition of a subsidiary (note 27) HEWBN S (Fa227) - 697
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B 815 875
Note: st -
(i) Cost of inventories includes RMB52,143,000 (2020: RMB44,911,000) 0} Hz— —F+-_A=1+—HLLFE"

for the year ended 31 December 2021 relating to staff costs and
depreciation, which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 6(b) for each of
these types of expenses.

TE@ZZK@%E/\EMSZ,'MaOOOTE(f%
—ZTF: AR¥44,911,0007T) % R E T
RARFE ARSBERCITFARLEX
P e B EZ SR EBWEN
BEBEAR-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

7. INCOME TAX CREDIT
(@) Taxation represents:

7. FiBHER
@@ #BiI|EE:

2021 2020
2% —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTFT
Current tax - PRC corporate EPRARMIE-—PEILEFRFR
income tax
Charged for the year FREE 65 39
Over-provision in previous years BEFEREREE (10,874) (4,255)
Deferred tax expense BIER AR
Charged for the year (note 17(a)) FARE (Wit17@) 656 97
Income tax credit FrigFiig % (10,153) (4,119)
FREYERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &Rk AN REESIR)

7. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 7. FhiEHiER #)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax credit ) ZEABERFENHIER
and profit/(loss) before tax at applicable % EBRFBANEF (EB)
tax rates: Y ¥ AR -

2021 2020
—Z--% “ToTE
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
AR®TR B ARETTL Bt
Profit/(Loss) before tax from continuing 7 B B R4 £ 7
operations BREAET (B8) 38,171 (97,814)
(Loss)/Profit before tax from REKIEES
a discontinued operation KA (B18),/ &7 (612) 596
37,559 (97.218)
Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5% BETERE165%TEZ
Fia (1,820) (4.8) (1,913) 19
Tax at the statutory rate of 25% BETHEB%TE Y
Hia 12,147 323 (21,406) 220
Tax concession (notes (iv) & (v) WBEE (WRY) (5,450) (14.5) 8,572 (8.8)
Effect of non-taxable income BAFRBRBARNTE (333) (0.9) (232) 02
Effect of non-deductible expenses MR HREE 2,489 6.6 2,066 2.1)
Effect of bonus deduction HEATEZNRG
for research and development % 4
expenses (2,791) (7.4) (1,221) 13
Tax losses (utilised)/not recognised (BEER)/KERZ
REEE (3,164) (8.4) 14,406 (14.8)
QOver-provision in previous years BEFERERE (10,874) (28.9) (4,255) 44
Others Hip (357) (1.0) (136) 0.1
Income tax credit at the Group's AEERERHEY
effective rate RIEH L (10,153) (27.0) 4,119 42
Income tax credit from continuing REBRHE 2 RABE
operations at the effective rate REEBIHBES (10,153) (27.0) 4,119 42

Income tax charge from a discontinued HRER R Z 7 KRG (F

operation at the effective rate

EBzRRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

7. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 7. Fi5®iER &)

(0)

Reconciliation between income tax credit

and

profit/(loss) before tax at applicable

tax rates: (continued)

Notes:

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC corporate income
tax at the statutory rate of 25% unless otherwise specified.

Zhangping Kimura (as defined in note 16) applied and was
approved for the renewal of High and New Technology Entities
("HNTE") qualification under the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its relevant regulations during 2019, and therefore is entitled
to the preferential income tax rate of 15% for a period of three
years from 2019 to 2021.

b HEAMETENRIER
REBRFEADER, (E8)
RETER : ()

Wit -

BHE-_Z-_—r=-Z-FF+=A
E+—BIEFE REEYERRES
AE B FGB M (E o] B RBURE F - #
EREBFEBHREE -

i. A ) BB D7) 8 1R25%)% T B
FHMPBELEMREN SHEAER
Hho

ii. BIEAN GEREMZIOBER TN
FREFECEMETOAREBEER
AR S AT R O 2 ([ BT Bl
TEDHRBER AR -_FT-NEFE
CEC-F-EAFEUHAEZA%
MBEMREHBE -

V. Under the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, the CIT rate applicable iv. BBRCEMBRE FeBTERE (B
to small-scale enterprises with law profitability that meet certain FE PSR B B T2 @ A R %3,000,000
conditions including the assessable profits not more than TIZBAGENREZNECEERAZ
RMB3,000,000, shall be reduced to 20%. Six of the Company’s CEMESH (REMESHRDBERGRE
subsidiaries (2020: five of the Company's subsidiaries) have been 220% AN RERANHEHKEAR (=
designated as small-scale enterprises, pursuant to which, (i) the T_ZF - AHNBARERETER
first RMB1,000,000 of assessable profits (the “1st Assessable NI (VZERBRAREA
Profits”) of these subsidiaries are effectively taxable at 2.5% (i.e. R #1,000,0007T 2 F& SR Bt a A (& 8t
20% on 12.5% of the 1st Assessable Profits) (2020: 5%); and (ii) FERBLE A | ) 32 BB A %E2.5% (BIIR
the remaining assessable profits not over RMB3,000,000 (the 12.5% & #t FE 3R 505 | 2. 20% ) # % (=
“Remaining Assessable Profits”) are effectively taxable at 10% (i.e. ToTE %) RBTAEZRAR
20% on 50% of the Remaining Assessable Profits). #£3,000,0007T 2 FE AR B A ([ 85 T FEER

B A 1) B4R B BR B X 10% (BN 4250%
BT FE SR B Fl 220% ) BB -
V. According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant V. BREPECEMRGEEREERER -

regulations, dividends receivable by non-PRC resident corporate
investors from PRC resident enterprises are subject to withholding
income tax at 10% unless reduced by tax treaties or arrangements,
for profits earned since 1 January 2008.

Since the Group can control the quantum and timing of
distribution of profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC,
deferred tax liabilities are only recognised to the extent that
such profits are expected to be distributed through dividend
payment by the Group's PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable
future. As at 31 December 2021, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to
overseas holding company amounted to RMB206,584,000 (2020:
RMB138,534,000) and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities of
RMB20,658,000 (2020: RMB13,853,000) have not been recognised.

FHEEREEENTEEREXRA
TR NF— A — B REE 5 T 6 R
W B R IR10%M Bt R U TR B - 16
BB RA L PR R B S 1Rl ©

HRANEE A A A EBEF RO T
AEIFESENSEMEER B ET
TEHAAR SR BAY P B 7 A R FE A TE R AR
FBBR B XD BEFEARTIR TR
BEREHAB-R-T=_—F+=A
=t—B - BAEERBEMBRRRD
EFEEGIMER AR BN EREEE
A AR #206,584,0007T (—F —F4F:
A R #138,534,0007T ) }% 4R & 3 FE 71 08
B & AR #20,658,000C (—E-F4F:
AR 13,853,000 ) RIEFER

PRAEMERERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &Rk AN REESIR)

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEFHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) BIEE B R BMEHI E383(N & kA Al (3
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BERMEERN) RO E2HRER T &
Ccompanies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of EFHEMT

Directors) Regulation is as follows:

2021
ZEZ-§
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme award
fees in kind honuses contributions scheme Total
Fe RER
XS EWig BEEL  BUHHBES RORBHE &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTR  AR®TR  ARBTT AR®RTRT ARMTR  AE®TR

Executive directors BiTEE

Wu Zheyan REE 360 974 - 8 1,799 3,141

Xie Qingmei BB 53 - - 1 1,799 1,853
413 974 - 9 3,598 4,994

Independent non-executive  BIFHTEE

directors

Lam Hin Chi B 100 - - - - 100

Prof. Jin Zhongwei PERYK 100 - - - - 100

Prof. SU Wengjiang BRI 100 - - - - 100
300 - - - - 300
713 974 - 9 3,598 5,294
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR IS RAR I & ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R50 U R BEZR)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

8. EEHFM o

2020
23
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2R
=g EWFa BEEL  BARGEIHRR @ar
RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000
AR®ETT AR®FT AREFT ARBETTT AR®FT
Executive directors RITES
Wu Zheyan REE 360 1,639 - 3 2,002
Xie Qingmei HEE 53 1 4 - 58
413 1,640 4 3 2,060
Non-executive director ERTES
Wu Dongping (note a) REY (Hisza) 60 - - - 60
Independent non-executive BJIEHRTES
directors
Lam Hin Chi ERy 107 - - - 107
Prof. Jin Zhongwei LERYE 107 - - - 107
Prof. Su Wengjiang B 107 = = = 107
321 - - - 321
794 1,640 4 3 2,441
Note (a): Retired on 29 May 2020 Kiit@ : R—Z_TFRA-THhARE

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the Directors
or any of the highest paid individuals set out in note 9 below
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2021 and

2020.

REBE_FT_—Fk_ZF_FF+_-A
St HALFE - AEEHSERAEELT
XM OB EM RS HMA LTk
EERRIE  FRRIIESEMBEARE
IR MBARERNESD KA RBER
BE-RBE_ZT_—FR_ZF_FTF+_
A=1t—BLFE EEMERBEAL
PEME KRR B HEE B -

PRAEMERERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9. BREHFMAL

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, there were ﬁi474*¢+ A=+—HLFE"
two (2020: one) directors for the year ended 31 December LEEFMALTH —E (22 2FF:
2021, whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The —%)7%%%'?&%W%Eﬂiﬁ’\ﬁﬁaﬂ%&aﬁo
aggregate of emoluments in respect of the other three (2020: MT=2(ZZ_FF M%&) AL HB
four) individuals are as follows: LmEaanr

2021 2020
8% —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARBETIT

Salaries and other emoluments o K& E b 363 364
Discretionary bonuses B IEIEAL - 19
Equity-settled share award scheme expenses A& 8 &5 & &) B (0 22 Ep
eI 1,808 3,435
Retirement scheme contributions BRI 16 13
2,187 3,831
The emoluments of the three individuals (2020: four individuals) ZHR(ZETF OB )& FMALH
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands: AT TER:
2021 2020
g% —EZFEF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A8 AER
Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz A R%1,000,0007T 2 3
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR #1,000,001t 2
A R #1,500,0007T 1 1
3 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IS EmERMEE (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

10. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculations of basic earnings/(loss) per share are based

10. XAREBERESIEE AENL

ZBRER, (EE)

FRERERN, (BR)IRATEFHE:

on:
2021 2020
—E-—5F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TT AREFTT
Profit/(Loss) ®F, (BR)
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to e BB EARRF
ordinary equity holders of the Company, (BE)NEAFTERSB
used in the basic earnings/(loss) per RARF L BRER
share calculation BEAEERR, (BE) 47,092 (93,099)
Attributable to: FEAG
Continuing operations HEL S 47,704 (93,695)
Discontinued operation BRIEZETE (612) 596
47,092 (93,099)
Number of shares
Bine B
2021 2020
¥ —E_TF
Shares ;3]
Weighted average number of ordinary shares At EGREREF],
in issue during the year used in basic (B8 2FRE T
earnings/(loss) per share calculation T 3E AR N S 15 B 824,549,598 726,582,000
RREMERERAT

T —FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

10. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

11.

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (continuec)

The weighted average of 824,549,598 shares (2020: 726,582,000
shares) for the year ended 31 December 2021 are derived from
783,750,400 ordinary shares (2020: 617,667,000 shares) in issue
as at 1 January 2021 after taking into account the effect of (i)
the issuance of 66,618,016 (2020: 42,550,000) award shares
under the share award scheme (note 29(b)) during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and (i) the issuance of other new
shares of 123,533,400 (2021 Nil) ordinary shares during the
year ended 31 December 2020 (note 28) .

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same as the Group
had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group planned to focus
resources on its manufacturing and sales of wooden products
and renewable energy products business. Accordingly, the
Group has decided to cease its retail sales of outdoor wooden
products. The retail sales of outdoor wooden products were
classified as a discontinued operation and were no longer
included in the note for segment information of the continuing
operations.

10. XAREERESIEE AENL

11.

ZEBRERN, (E8) #)

BHE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HLFEZ
DNAE 15 $1824,549,5080% ( —F — T4
726,582,000l ) RER T - —F — A
—EIE§§172783750400(f7f$¢
617,667,0000% ) FdM& - WEF ROEZE =
E-—F+-A=+—BHLEFEEZBR®
RN ET 8 T #1766,618016( — T T F:
42,550,0000% ) £2 B A% 17 (BT 5E29(b) ) 2 &2
ER(IWEE=FE_EF+=-A=1+—H
1E 5 E %% 17123,533,4000% & i A% E 4 FT A%
(ZZT=—F:48) (M5E28) -

REBVERBE_S_—FR_ZT_F
FT_A=T-BULFEZEETEBER
EREFEEAE AtEREARES
SRR -

RIER

EEZRR AREFIBERETRAR
mR A LR RERNORERHEEER-
Bt REBERERIEEFPINRE M

ZE-PHAREMNTEEBRIBERER
HREEE THRREEREREERBD

BBEEHMIEEF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continuec) 1. BEER @)

The results of the discontinued operation for the year are REERIMEEERS 2 EENT
presented below:

2021 2020
—EZ—%F —ETHF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000

HiiE AR#®FT ARETTT

Revenue WA A(b)(ii) = -
Cost of sales $HE AR = =
Gross profit EA - -
Other revenue Habug A 5@) 1 -
Other net gain/(10ss) Hibleas / (B518) %58 5(b) = -
Staff costs 8 TR 6(b) (309) (284)
Depreciation charge e 6(c) (260) (269)
Other administrative expenses EM1TB A (44) (34)
Finance cost B E PR AR 6(a) = -
Loss before tax bR A A 1B (612) (587)
Loss for the year FAEE (612) (587)

Add: Gain on de-registration of Oy =MNSIE & oD
a subsidiary, net Wz 58 50b) - 1,183

(Loss)/Profit for the year from REKIEEBNFEA
a discontinued operation (E518) & (612) 596

RRMEYIERERAT /I 51
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

152

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 1. BIEEK 2
2021 2020
2% T
RMB RMB
AR® AR

(Loss)/Earnings per share: Tk (E18) &5F

Basic, from a discontinued operation AR RBEERIEFES (0.001) 0.001
Diluted, from a discontinued operation B REKRIEHER (0.001) 0.001

The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operation are

BRI EEBEENBESREFRET:

as follows:

2021 2020

2% T

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTT
Operating activities K EE (39) (20)
Investing activities KEEE = =
Financing activities BhE & & = -
Net cash flows used in RemeEMAFE (39) (20)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% -BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand fittings and Motor ~ Construction Right-of-use
Buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Subtotal assets Total
il ] (1Y
| &3 WREE  BERER  REREG AE HRIR Mt ERARE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABWTR  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARWTR  ARWTR  ABRWFR  ARRTR  ARKTR
CosT 23
At 1 January 2020 R-S-%%-5-H 566,849 5818 135,233 6,053 9533 279 752,308 83,569 835877
Acquisiion of a subsiciary (rote 27) Y- ANB R - - m 3 - - 804 - 804
Addtions AE 4178 > 11014 S n S 15633 165 15798
Disposals ] > > m) S (630) S (1,40 = (1,400
Transfers 5 183 - 2317 - - (151) - - -
Impairment losses fnote 5/6) - - - - - (24,641) (24,641) - (24,641)
Written off S (5848 = S S = (5848 (366) (6214)
Exchange realignment EX A% o o o o S S = 0 0
At 31December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZBZBE+ZRAZ+-HR
Z3--%-R-A 572,861 > 148564 608 9344 S 736,85 83359 820214
Addtions AE 1060 > 1139 140 654 S 13203 o 13203
Disposals L& - - (579) o 83 o (662) S (662)
Transfer to investment properties (rote 19) BRERENZ( (18315) - - - - - (48315) - (18315
Impairment losses WEEE - - - - - - - - -
Written off Lt o o o o o o S S S
Exchange realignment EXLA% - - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 RZB--%+ZA=+-8 525,606 S 159,334 6,226 9915 = 701,081 83359 784,440
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RFEREEER
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At 1 January 2020 R-S-8%-5-8 218864 5818 65,052 5132 559 = 300489 3050 340,083
Charge for the year ERE 288 S 11,598 168 967 S 30 1,668 36,689
Eimination on disposals RLERELE - - (%) - (59) - 694) - 694)
Writen off H# S (5848) S S S - (58%9) (274) (6122)
Exchange realignment EX 5% = o o S S S S @ @
At31December 2020 and 1 January 2021~ RZBZBE+ZRAZ1-AR
Z8--%-R-A 152 S 76,55 5300 5961 = 328968 40,986 369,954
Charge for the year FERE 18843 > 12819 N 1,066 S 32819 1,983 34432
Elimination on disposals REERES - - (47) o ] o (328) S (328)
Written off H o o o o o o o S S
Transfer to investment properties frofe 19 BEERENZ (W13 (19,124 - - - - - (19.124) - (19.124)
Exchange realignment EiRE - - - - - - - 4 I}
At 31 December 2021 Z22-5+ZAZ+-R 20871 > 89,187 5391 6948 S 2391 1543 384,940
NET CARRYING AMOUNT EERE
At 31 December 2021 RZB--%+ZA=1+-B 284735 > 70147 835 2967 = 358,684 10816 39,500
At 31 December 2020 ZBCBETIAZT-R 331,709 > 72,009 786 3383 S 407,887 2373 450,260

PRAEMERERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. ME-BERZE®

(Continued)

Buildings are held for own use and are situated in the PRC.
At 31 December 2021, buildings with net carrying amount of
RMB128,427,000 (2020: RMB31,780,000) were pledged to banks
for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note 30).

Impairment assessment of construction in
progress

31 December 2020 and 2021

The carrying amount of construction in progress of
RMB24,641,000, before impairment loss of approximately
RMB24,641,000, represented the Group’s new manufacturing
complex under construction (the “Suspended Property”). The
construction of the Suspended Property commenced in 2018
with an aim to increase the Group's production capacity to
meet the then expected increasing demand, and the Group had
entered into an agreement with the constructor in February
2019 to put the construction on hold. After the reassessment
of the market conditions, particularly in the United States,
the Directors considered that it was appropriate to suspend
the construction plan of the Suspended Property as at 31
December 2020 and 2021, the related incurred construction
costs of approximately RVMB24,641,000 had been impaired in
full during the year ended 31 December 2020.

URPENEFHEEEEA-
——%+zZA=+—8" ﬁ%ﬁ@fﬁ%)\
R¥128,427,000L (ZE =T F: ARK
31,780,0007T) 2 EFE IR FIRIT £ R
REEERNE TIRITIREEE 2 HF (M
#£30) °

R TIRRER A

—B-EER-F-—5+t=-A=+-8
FRIREEEREEASEEREE
PR ERER ([TEME])HHE
AR 24,641 OOOE(fk'EﬁWEEﬂE A
R#24,641,0007C) ~EEWER =T —N
FHIAER SHEIE ZK%IE@EEHELAﬁ
RERBHTEHERNEZER YERZE
—NEF_AREERITIBEAREEH
BE -EEHAETSRR(LERER)
B EERBE RN_E_TFR=-F=—
FH+- A+ REENMERBEED
EMEEAZNERE YERT-_TFK
:;ﬁ:—¢+fﬁz+—az¢mmﬁﬁﬁ
B A SR AN 4 A R #624,641,0007T
B EPRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. ¥ -BERKE#)
(Continuea)
Impairment assessment of property, plant and M- WENMEE (BRERIRE
equipment (other than the construction in HN) BB G
progress)
Other than the construction in progress as mentioned above, BRIA LT R TN NREEE MY
property, plant and equipment of the Group were subject to ¥ BWELRBOEETRER

impairment review.

31 December 2020 and 2021 —ECEFR-E--F+=ZHA=t+-—H
The Directors engaged an independent professional valuer EECDLZBEREARER RKEBRE T
with recognised qualifications and experiences, to determine EXHEMEEYE BELKE&E (KRE
the recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment BTN ([ BEREE]) AT
(other than the construction in progress) (the “PPE"). [l %58 o
The recoverable amount was determined based on the fair Al EERAFERLEXKANEE (A
value less cost of disposal (i.e. the higher of fair value less A FER SR (BARK A A 4R 1) 82
cost of disposal (by using the cost approach) and value in FHEEMEZEREETE-REARA
use). Pursuant to the valuation reports dated 31 March 2021 —E - F=A=1+—HMHERS ([=
(the “2020 PPE Valuation”) and 28 March 2022 (the “2021 PPE Z_EFEYE - BERIEBEIHDR-F
Valuation”) respectively, no provision for impairment of the PPE T ZHF=ZRZ+\BMHEERE(ZF
was necessary during the years ended 31 December 2020 and Z—FYE BEREZENE])  REA-
2021. mYE - BRERRETEDRERE-
RIS R A E

B —FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B BB R M T (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

ra

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. ¥ -BERSE#®)

(Continuea)
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Leased Land use
properties rights Total
HEME T Hb(E A& #at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®ETT AR®EFT
Net carrying amount: BREFE:
At 1 January 2020 RZEZFEF—H—H 214 43,761 43,975
Additions NE 165 - 165
Amortisation B (149) (1,519) (1,668)
Written-off on early IRAIAR IEH SRR
termination of leases (92) - (92)
Exchange alignment b H 5% @) S @)
Net carrying amount: BREFE:
At 31 December 2020 and RZZTEZZTF
1 January 2021 +-A=+—HK
—2-—F—H—H 131 42,242 42,373
Amortisation By 77) (1,476) (1,553)
Exchange alignment b H 58 & (@) S (@)
Net carrying amount: BREFE:
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—HF
+=-—A=+—H 50 40,766 40,816

At 31 December 2021, land use rights with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB29,632,000 (2020: RMB14,764,000)
were pledged as securities for certain banking facilities granted
to the Group (note 30).

RZEZ—F+A=+—H RHEHEE
BARM29,632,000C (ZEZFTF: AR
#£14,764,0007T) B+ E AR IERE T
REEMETFRITREVEERD (KT
30) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IS EmERMEE (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. REYE
construction
Buildings in progress Total
L ERIE @
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR AR®FR AR®TR

COST &
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—-%—H—H - - -
Transfer from owner-occupied property RERMESN (F1i212)

(note 12) 48,315 - 48,315
Additions NE - 4,611 4,611
At 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H 48,315 4,611 52,926
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZRHiTERRESE

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE=-—-%—H—H - - -
Transfer from owner-occupied properties mERMEEN (H712)

(note 12) 19,124 - 19,124
Charge for the year FAYH 3,444 - 3,444
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+-A=+—H 22,568 - 22,568
NET CARRYING AMOUNT FHESE
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+-A=1+—H 25,747 4,611 30,358

The Directors considered that certain owner-occupied
properties were leased out for earning rental income,
therefore, the properties were reclassified from property, plant
and equipment to investment properties during the year.
The Group's investment properties were stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

In addition, the Group incurred a construction cost of
approximately RMB4,611,000 for its investment properties
during the year, which are still under construction in progress
as at 31 December 2021.

EEZRAp ETERMECHANURRE
WA AL FARSEVEADE BE

REEFTOBRAREVE -ARENK
BMETEKARREITE MBE (1F)
IR

BSh REMRFNERRAMEES
TRBAA A REL611,0007 =B
——F A=t -BpERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

13.

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continuea)
Impairment assessment

The Directors engaged an independent professional valuer
with recognised qualifications and experiences, to determine
the recoverable amount of the investment properties as at
31 December 2021.

The recoverable amount is determined based on the fair value
less cost of disposal (i.e. the higher of fair value less cost
of disposal (by using the cost approach) and value in use).
Pursuant to the valuation report dated 28 March 2022, the fair
values less cost of disposal of investment properties and the
construction in progress were approximately RMB29,400,000
and RMB4,611,000, respectively. Accordingly, no provision for
impairment of the investment properties and a construction
in progress is necessary during the year ended 31 December
2021.

NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS FOR
ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

The amount mainly represented the prepaid construction cost
for plant and machinery. An analysis of non-current deposits of
construction cost is as follows:

13. BEWE »)

14.

B RS
EFERAHARAERSROBILEE
EEE EERANMER T —F+=
A=+—AMA KBS -

AT E SRR A ER L ERAETE (R
RN FERE SRR (ARKAERS) 8
FREEMETHNERSEET BRIEAH
RIBEZZF=A-+)\BREERS
BEMENATFERLEXNROABARE
29,400,000 - MAER TR WE LD
BARKEAL6N000 Bl HEZT = —
F+_A=+—BLEFE EFTREED
ERERTREDRMERRE-

WIBYI3 - BB KR AV IE AN
BE

ZEREIREBEIMSETRENBNTIRE
PR JEENE TR AR 2 DT

2021 2020
—E-—%§ ZEZTF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AER®TR ARBTT

Deposit for other constructions and HMBEUARYE BER
property, plant and equipment BENEE 1,698 1,907
1,698 1,907
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o= A

H

JIA Ay /\ﬁﬁ%i&%l}fjg\f (IZ“E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

15. Hth&mEE

2021 2020
2% —ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Equity investment at fair value through BEAFEFAEMER
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") Wzt ([BAFERA
(note a) Hih 2 E W) B
RAKE (Kiita) 2,342 2,400
Other financial assets at fair value RATEFTAER
through profit or loss ("FVTPL") (note b) (MEAFEFAER])
WEMSBEE (#FD) 92,842 29,174
95,184 31,574
Less: Current portion W BNEREL (92,842) (29,174)
Non-current portion JEBNEAER 2,342 2,400

Notes:

The equity investment represents unlisted investment in 5% equity
interests of a PRC local bank in Zhangping City, Fujian Province, the PRC.
The equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the Group considered these investments
to be strategic in nature.

The dividend income received related to the equity investment for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB195,000 (2020: RMB983,000) (note
5(a)).

Other financial assets represent (i) commodity investments with an
authorised PRC bank of RMBNIl (2020: RMB30,007,000); (ii) investment
products of PRC banks of RMB10,592,000 (2020: RMB368,000); and (iii)
certain debts instruments (the “Debts Instruments”) with an aggregate
principal amount of RMB80,000,000 (2020: RMBNIil), in which, the interest
payments are linked to the relevant exchange rate between Euro and
United States Dollar. The Debts Instruments were pledged to secure the
Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings (notes 24 and 30).

Hiat -

ZBEAREBERPEEREETH —EAMR
TR IE LT IR E5% o BARIR B T Rl
Bl E AR A FEFALMEEKHEFIR-
REAAEERRZESEEBRIIMEE -

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE BK
B 82 % AN B AR R AR B B A R #5195,0007T
(ZF =T % ARM983,0007t) (KizE5@)) -

HEh EREERONFARPE—REERTH
EARMEREAREET(ZF_FF AR
#£30,007,0007¢) (iR A Bl —ER1TH IR & B
M AR¥10,592,000 (ZE=FF: ARK
368,0007T) * M (i) & 485 & A R #£80,000,000
T (2020%F - A RK)ME TEER ([EET
A1) - B 5SS EET S T R AR E X
Hm-FERETACKREMUERAEENGE
RITHE R (MHEE24%30) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
I\\/T\ ﬁﬁ.,% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ <,.E>

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B R5N U R BZR)

16. RB AT EDR
BEMBAFANEBEHINT -BREAS
RSN - R A KRR 1D 19 5 3 AR o

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries are set out below. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Attributable equity interest

Particulars of held by the Company
Place of incorporation/ issued and paid up/ FNFRGESERE
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
M/ BRITRBERE/

AL BRI MBS BEREFHHEE EE Mg TEXH

Green Oceans Investment The British Virgin Islands 10 shares of USD1 each 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Limited (the "BVI")

Green Oceans Investment KBRAEE 0RERIZTHRE 100% - REAER
Holdings Limited ((EBRRES])

King Wood (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HKD1 each - 100%  Sales of outdoor wooden products
Holding Limited

it (B#) ERERAR & 10,0008 & R 1E TR 1D - 100% HEPIKRER

Fujian Zhangping Kimura Forestry The PRC Registered capital of - 100% Manufacturing and sales of
Products Co, Ltd. (‘Zhangping Kimura”) RMB660,000,000 outdoor wooden products
(notes (i) and (i)

BREETANHEBERAR e &R AR #660,000,0007 - 100% HERHEEFIER

(DEFARK]) (Hz2pRam)

Merry Garden (Xiamen) Household The PRC Registered capital of RMB5,000,000 - 100% Dormant
Co, Ltd. (rotes (i) and (i)

ZEXE (EF)REGRAA HE 178 28 A R 5,000,007 = 00% EEXK

(He&i)

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea) 16. RHIE ARV (#)

Attributable equity interest

Particulars of held by the Company
Place of incorporation/ issued and paid up/ FOTFIFRHEERE
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
B3 e BRITRBERE/
LFER FR LB BEMEFMERE EE Mg TEXEH
Zhangping Merry Garden Import and The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Sales of outdoor wooden products
Export Co. Ltd. ("MG Import and Export”) RMB30,000,000
(notes (i) and (i)
EYTEBRRELAERAT e &R A R 30,000,000 = 100% HEPIKER
([ZBREELA]) (H#0z0)
Merry Garden Holdings Limited (note (i)) - Hong Kong 1 share of HKD1 each = 100%  Investment holding
FEZRERERAR (M) i 1RERETHRR - 100% REHR
Zhangping Merry Garden Biomass Energy  The PRC Registered capital of - 100% Manufacturing and sales of
Development Ltd. (notes (i) and (i) RMB20,000,000 renewable energy products
EYTEERRENERAE HE &R A K 20,000,000 7T - 100% FERHEBLERER
BRAR (B2 mRm))
Zhangping Ruisheng Wood Structure The PRC Registered capital of RMB3,000,000 = 100% Manufacturing and sales of
Materials Co., Ltd (rotes (i) and (i) wooden products
ETRARERHEERAR i A A AR 3,000,000 T - 100% HERHEAER
(HTEEmR )
Unicreed Holdings Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HKD5,653.39 each - 100%  Investment holding
HMAAEERRAR b 10,0008% & A%5,653. 39 T AR 17 = 100% REHER
Unicreed industry & trade Co,, Ltd. The PRC Registered capital of USD7,850,000 - 100% Manufacturing and sales of
(notes () and (i) outdoor wooden products
HRRARTIEERAR (WFORM)) HE & 77,850,005 7T = 100% HEREEPIAER
Zhangzhou Xingruixiang Supply Chain -~ The PRC Registered capital of = 51% Manufacturing and sales of
Management Co, Ltd. (notes (i) & (1)) RMB30,000,000 wooden products
EATERFHEEERERAR R #ff %30,000,000 - 5% FERBEEARD
(HinRm)
& All the percentages of equity attributable to the Company remain & REBRBAN MEARRIELMEZA D LY
unchanged with the previous year except when otherwise indicated. BEF B #IHFTE-

PRAEMERERAE

R -FFR

161



162

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\\/T\

B IR RERMEF (@

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B R5N U R BZR)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

Notes.

(0]

(i)

(iif)

These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the
PRC.

These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC and
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Zhangping Kimura.

The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

This entity is a limited liability company established in Hong Kong and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of King Wood (Hong Kong) Holding Limited.

This entity was newly established in the PRC with limited liability during
the year, in which, 51% of equity interest was held by the Group.

16. RIB A RIMVER (&)

(i) ZEERRNTEKINIINEBERE-

(i) ZEER AN TEKZAER DR REF AN

N2EMBAR-
(i ZERRMEREBERS2E AEABHIU
PR

(v  ZEBAREBKILNERIFRAN (FE)
ERERARNZEMBAR -

ZERRFAETRIRISBERAEER
B ENS1%HAAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e SRR M EE (')

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R50 U R BEZR)

17. DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax assets and liabilities

(@)

recognised

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

17. EEFIE
EERNELEHRBEEEN

@)

BE

FARGAEFBRRAEK T EERH

ERERBEE/ (BFE) B

Z*k

position and the movements during the year are as PN
follows:
Fair value
adjustments
Unrealised of equity
Unrealised gain/(loss) investment
gain/(loss) on  on derivative  PRC dividend Impairment  through other
other financial financial withholding under ECL  comprehensive
assets instruments tax model income Total
HARMRE
HtemEEs HERMIAN BARRE
FERRE FERKE RUGEHER RER
(B#) (BR) WERRRNR BRARE LFEAE o hy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-24-A-H = 59 (1,707) 831 83) (900)
Credited/(Charged) to profitor loss 3t ABE 2B/ ()
(note 7ia) (#iit7e) 180 (277) = = 97)
Credited to other comprehensive SAEMRERA
income - - - - 97 97
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEE
+ZA=+-A 180 (218) (1,707) 831 14 (900)
At 1 January 2021 RZB=-§-A-H 180 (218) (1,707) 831 14 (900)
Credited/(Charged) to profitor loss st ABR 2 H%/ (Ffh)
(note 7)) (Hit7e) (606) (409) = 359 - (656)
Credited to other comprehensive AR 2ERA
income - - - 9 9
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-§
+=B=+-H (426) (627) (1,707) 1,190 2 (1,547)
RRMEYIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

(900)
17. DEFERRED TAXATION (continuea) 17. EEBIE (2
(@) Deferred tax assets and liabilities @ EmRANEENMEEZEENR
recognised (continuea) BB
Reconciliation to consolidated statement of financial RERE MBI R P EERIOT -
position:
2021 2020
—e-—%F —E_THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT ARETT
Net deferred tax assets recognised REFA MR R R P ERE
in the consolidated statement of BEETIEE EFE
financial position 1,213 1,025
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised — R4R& B S AK IR 7 R FERR /Y
in the consolidated statement of EERIEEEFE
financial position (2,760) (1,925)
(1,547) (900)
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised () FERWNERLEHIBEE
A deferred tax asset has not been recognised on the AT 2 IRERITE & B R R -
followings:
2021 2020
—E—%F ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREETT
Unused tax losses, net RE AW IBEE TS 195,247 223,072

1 64 China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

(900)
17. DEFERRED TAXATION (continuea) 17. EEBIE (2
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised b)) RERMELEHIBEE (&)
(Continued)
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect F PR R 2RI B O B S AT TR ORI
of certain unused tax losses due to the unpredictability UL ARERE L AR AT IEBENIE
of future profit streams. The unused tax losses will be ERIBEE REAMNB KB LB
expired in 1to 5 years. E1E5FAEIHR -
18. INVENTORIES 18. &
2021 2020
2% ZETTHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ABR%®TT AR®EFT
Raw materials R 79,809 75,687
Work in progress TR 20,340 21,652
Finished goods BURK o 33,398 17,795
133,547 115,134
R AEYERERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

(900)
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. ES R EHAMEKRFRIE
2021 2020
2% ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBETT
Trade receivables B 5 WA 117,052 77,828
Less: Loss allowance W B ERE (19,810) (22,339)
97,242 55,489
Trade deposit for raw materials RBRMEESZE 104,756 68,466
Due from a related company (note 33(c)) i de ) NGRS
(B 3E33( )) 63 67
Due from non-controlling interest (note 33(c)) & Y JE 5 EHE 25 7 1B
(BFEE33(C) ) 2,500 -
Interest receivables F 2 B W IR 648 =
Prepayments and other receivables TR RRIE N A b JE U SR IE 25,528 12,028
Less: Loss allowance B BERE (1,250) (1,250)
132,245 79,311
Total trade and other receivables BHREMEBERREER 229,487 134,800
Amounts due from a related company and non-controlling FEN — R EHE R R R IFE R E R SIE R &
interest are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. HiF REREERER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)
(900)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continvea) ~ 19. B 5 R H I BUFIE (%)

(@) A ageing analysis of the trade receivable is @ EZZEWFIENEREDN
as follows: LUNNE
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss RBEBRR B HEWIE (HIRE
allowances) as of the end of reporting period, based on BEE) NRE ST (RER A7
invoice date, is as follows: )T
2021 2020
% —E_FTF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Within 1 month 1E AR 41,536 20,576
1to 2 months 1221@ A 38,667 21,361
2 to 3 months 2Z 31 A 13,566 2,986
Over 3 months @A E 3,473 10,566
97,242 55,489
Trade receivables are normally due within 90 days to 180 B 5 EUGRIE — R B2 A B ET90
days (2020: 90 days to 180 days) from the date of billing. HZE180R (ZZ =T 4 :90H £180H) A
Further details of the Group's credit policy are set out in M -AEEEERENE —FFHFHR
note 35(a). I 5E35(a) °
The Group recognised impairment loss based on the N BIAR R MY SE2(p)FT il ) B BT BUR FE R
accounting policy stated in note 2(p). VERI=E=E
RIS R A E

T —FFR

167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR ISR M R ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

(900)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuea)  19.

The below table reconciled the impairment losses on trade
receivables, amount due from a related company and other
receivables during the year:

B REMEWRE @

FRE S EWR  EUREEE R F R EAM
FEM SRR BB IR EI AR AT

Due from
Trade a related Other
receivables company receivables Total
HEREHRE BRREBLE EtBEERE - h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR®EF T AREFTL ARETTL
At 1 January 2020 RZE-FT5—-H—H 20,393 2 383 21,278
Impairment losses recognised FNERRAESE FE
during the year, net 3,068 - 865 3933
Amounts written off WAk E 2 SRR
as uncollectible (1,622) - - (1,622)
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZEF+ZA=1—H
1 January 2021 k=%2-—-%—-HF—H 22,339 2 1,248 23,589
Reversal of impairment losses FANEREBB @R FE
during the year, net (2,529) - - (2,529)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-Z—EF+ZA=+—H 19,810 2 1,248 21,060

The decrease in expected loss rate contributed to the decrease
in net loss allowance amounting to RMB2,529,000 (2020:
increase RMB3,068,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

In determining the impairment losses for trade receivable,
amount due from a related company and other receivables, the
Group has made individual assessment on the recoverability
of trade receivable, amount due from a related company and
other receivables based on historical settlement records, past
experience and forward-looking information.

BHEERRLSEREE T —F+=
A=+—BUEFEMNFEEBEEROAR
#2,529,0007c (ZE T F #EMARE
3,068,0007T) °

T E 5 BN BN L R R HA
FENR BB E B B - AR EIRIRE L&
Bt LWAKBRMATE T ENYE Sk
WK~ i A B ) R E A KRR B BT LR
BT T BETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

20. DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 20. fTE€RTA

2021
—E-—f
Assets Liabilities
gE =1
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR#®FT AR®TR

Foreign currency contracts HNEEE 8 (B 7235(0) 2 35(1) )
(notes 35(d) & 35(1) 5,077 (896)
2020
—E-EHF
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT
Foreign currency contracts HNEE G ) (B #£35(0) % 35(1) )

(notes 35(a) & 35(f) 1,619 (157)
The derivative financial instruments represented certain MESRTARKRESHEBEII NG T
foreign currency forward contracts entered with the financial INMEIREIE R ZEAKNRETE AR EH
institutions, which are not designated for hedge purposes BH Wik A FEF ARG E I+
and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes HNECRBRA AR A T ES E RS SR
in the fair value of non-hedging foreign currency forward ANFeBmRk -BEINEEREHNHE—
contracts were credited to the consolidated statement of profit FATE-

or loss as at end of reporting period. All of the foreign currency
forward contracts are settled within one year.
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e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

21. PLEDGED DEPOSITS 21. BIEFFER
Pledged deposits with banks have been placed as security for IR FRITHOERE AERITRAAEBE
banking facilities granted by banks to the Group (note 30). HERITRERE 2 IR (M3E30) -

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22. Eﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%f“%

(@) Cash and cash equivalents in the @ m ,m/\ ﬁﬂ‘kﬂk Nz &EEE
consolidated statement of financial ReEMERANE S LE
position and consolidated statement of EHEEVMBE:
cash flows comprise:

2021 2020
—E_—%F ZEZTF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Time deposit with banks R1TE BfF R 30,000 39,861
Cash at bank and in hand WITRFHERS 61,671 98,108
91,671 137,969

Less: Time deposit classified as W IERNHAER 0 2 FE HATE 3K

non-current portion 30,000 -
Total cash and cash equivalents ReRBEoFEYBE 61,671 137,969
At 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents in R—BE-_—F+=-A=+—08'5
the amount of RMB90,077,000 (2020: RMB8&0,353,000) 2 AR #90,077,000L (ZE =&
are denominated in RMB and are deposited in the PRC F: AR ¥80,353,0007T) IR & &
in the ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely ReFEWDHUARBEE IR
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of BEXEBBEPEFERRPE - AR
the PRC is subject to the relevant rules and regulations MW IFREREROERE #F
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC P& D& € 785/ B IR 95 My HNEE
government. B HIE G o E 3R FTBR ] o
The time deposit is made for 3 years and earns a fixed EHERAIFH RIETEHNEAR
interest rate at 4% per annum. FHZEL% o
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e IS EmERMEE (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

22. BERBEEEY #)

b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before tax to () BRERTEAF (E5E)EL
cash generated from operations: LEERBERSHEK:
2021 2020
—2_-F e S 3
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Viofz3 ARBTT AREFTT
Profit/(Loss) before tax: BREAEF, (BE)
From continuing operations REFELEER 38,171 (97.814)
From a discontinued operation REKIEER (612) 59
Adjustments for: RUATEBELRAR:
Interest expense on bank borrowings 1T R EHF 2
and debenture 6(@) 1,241 155
Interest expense on lease liabilities HESENAEME 6@ 4 7
Depreciation of property, ME- -BEREBEOTE
plant and equipment 6(c) 32,879 35,021
Depreciation of land use right BEEGREEEN
included within right-of-use assets THFERETE 6(c) 1,476 1,519
Depreciation of leased properties BREEFAEELZED
included within right-of-use assets MEMEZTE é(c) 77 149
Depreciation of investment properties R EMEMHE é(c) 3,444 =
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative TESBMIAERATFEF
financial instruments, net (M) /BB (4,181) (1,461)
Fair value (gain)/loss on other Hi S mEER
financial assets DEE (KR /B 5b) (1,225) 1,201
Interest income VON 5@) (3,601) (3,344)
Dividend income BB KA 5 (195) (983)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWME BEREE
plant and equipment Wiz 5b) (103) (1,782)
Share of losses of associate, FEREEE R AEE
net of tax MBRHIE 287
Gain on de-registration of a subsidiary £ 85 — &M B 2 AR s 5) = (1,183)
Gain on de-registration of associates & 5 & A Al M) Kz a(b) (759)
Gain on remeasurement of previously — E#FETE LATE A N2
held equity interest in an associate NG g 5(b) (159)
Gain on early termination of leases RAEKIEAE 2 W 5b) - €)
Gain on bargain purchase EEMERE 527 (697)
Equity-settled share award VARG 4 55 ) AR 1) 22 B
scheme expenses HERX (BREES
(including director's remuneration) ) 29(b) 7,706 6,075
Impairment of property, ¥ WEREERE
plant and equipment 50) - 24,641
(Reversal of)/Provision of expected CRMEENEHEERE
credit loss on financial assets 2 (E’) /i (2,529) 3,933
Provision for medical expenses BERASEE = 5,500
Impairment of non-current deposits WY % - BiE IR
for acquisition of property, FHESRE
plant and equipment 50) 1,907 -
Changes in working capital: HEESEE):
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories FEM, B (18,413) 110,410
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and 25 REMmEKFIE
other receivables =),/ mb (94,878) 10,767
Increase in other financial assets B TPERI AR L
at fair value through profit Hofth 4 RS B
or loss other financial assets (62,443) (29,584)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and B R EMENTA
other payables (g m), R 2,946 (1,716)
Cash (used in)/generated MELIER)/ EHE
from operations (98,329) 60,776
FREYERERAT
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e R R MR ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

. B REMEMNTRIE
2021 2020
—E_—%§ —E-TFE
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Trade and bills payables (note /) H RN B RENER
(Biati) 7,425 14,092
Contract liabilities (note i) AHRBE (W) 9,477 5,698
Due to a director (note i) R —RESRIE (M) 1 13
Other payables and accruals (note iv) HEupEMNRELRESTER
(Ktzziv) 18,268 11,869
Provision for medical compensation (note v)  BEEHE 2 Bt (A v) 5,070 5,460
40,251 37,132
Less: Provision for medical compensation Bk : SERNERER(D 2
classified as non-current portion BEMmEBE 4,680 5,070
Current portion B HAEB 17 35,571 32,062
Notes: st -

Included in the trade and bills payables were bills payables of RMB102,000
(2020: RMB10,574,000), the related banking facilities were set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

ii. The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The Group expects the
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations
will be recognised as revenue when the Group transfers goods to the
customer.

HORNFERENREEERNREARY
102,0007t (=& =F : AR #10,574,000) - 1878
RITREREHNGA M ERRMEEI0 -

BHNARERERENRIEERTKENER
ENRZEREE-ARERROEERTK
BHEENRZERERASBRNEFERE
R R A M o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

23. ESRHMEMNRKIE 2

Hiat: (&)

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continuea)

Notes: (Continued)

(Continuea)

The contract liabilities represented receipt in advance from customers
for goods that have not yet been transferred to the customers. As at
31 December 2021 and 2020, the contract liabilities mainly included the
receipt in advance received from sales of wooden products. The contract
liabilities increased by RMB3,779,000 (2020: RMB1,485,000) during the
year ended 31 December 2021 primarily due to the increase in sales
requiring receipt in advance.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities
recognised are as follows:

When the Group receives a deposit before the delivery of goods, this will
give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised exceeds the amount of the deposit. The amount of the
advance from customers, if any, was negotiated on a case by case basis
with customers.

(%)

AHBEEEREANEFEBENNEFR
B-R-IBZ—FRZZFZFF+_RA=+—
H e eBErEaEHeREakamiEk
RB-HE-_T-_—F+_A=+—HILEE"
BB EEINARES779,000T (ZE-FF:
AER#1,4850007T) T EHR T EZBUKRFER
SHE L INFTER o

HEBRRGHWEESHBRYEN —RIHE
AT

EAEEEXNENZAKEIZESR REH
RENFARBEEANEE EFRALKA
BERESE - HFREFPRENSE(WAE)T
RIE A B R LR R -

2021 2020

—EZ—f§ ZETF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETFT

At 1 January R—A—H 5,698 4,213
Amounts included in contract liabilities that RERNERBBRANENEEN

was recognised as revenue during the year 5 AR B9 7R IE (2,505) (1,613)
Cash received in advance of performance and RERBREBERFRL RERE

not recognised as revenue during the year WARBE S 6,284 3,098

At 31 December ®W+=—A=+—H” 9,477 5,698

Amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on
demand.

BN —BEEFERBER REARERE

iv. Balance mainly represents salaries, wages, bonus and other accrued V. HEHRTERFE TE CAREMETEM
benefits, and payables for the acquisition of property, plant and LEBEYE BEREEOEMNRIE:.
equipment.

V. The provision for medical compensation is mainly estimated based on the V. BEMEEFESIZNBIRRBUTHEE

assumption including past experience of the medical expenses.

All of the above balances are expected to be settled within one
year or repayable on demand.

BERZBMEER-

A L R IERT R — FRENHIRE

PRAEMERERAE

T —FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e IS EmERMEE (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &Rk AN REESIR)

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 23. EZRHMESE 2
(@) A ageing analysis of the trade and bills @ BIZENFELENERE
payables is as follows: HRREC AT T -
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables as at the RERERR ZEZERHRIIR - ES
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is JE R IE [ FE T R 45 89 BR e 9 AT 40
as follows: Se
2021 2020
% —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT
Within 1 month ME A A 4,811 1,215
110 2 months 122ME A 30 451
2 to 3 months 2%F3ME A - 2,618
Over 3 months FRE31E A 2,584 9,808

7,425 14,092

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS, 24. FHEBRITER BEA

SECURED
Effective 2021 2020
interest rate —EZ-% ZTTE
(%) Maturity date RMB'000 RMB'000
ERfE #®A ARBTT ARETT
Loan 1 v 28%  April 2022 “E--FNA 18,000 -
Loan 2 g - 28%  April 2022 —E--%MA 18,000 -
Loan 3 fB@= 28%  luly 2022 T -5+R 18,000 -
54,000 -
Analysis into: AMETHEE:
Interest-bearing bank B SRITEFZA
borrowings repayable:  {BiEFE :
Within one year —FR 54,000 -
The related banking facilities were set out in note 30 to the MHBETEEEHERN G AW REM T

consolidated financial statements.

30 -

1 74 China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e SRR (&

)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

25. LEASE LIABILITIES

25.

The Group leases an office premise in Hong Kong and the

HERE

AEBEEAHE-—RRAE AFEZ

movement in lease liabilities during the year is as follows: HEBGEHBERMT:
2021 2020
—EZ—%F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBETFT
Balance at 1 January R—H— B84 76 219
New leases FHE - 165
Interest expenses (note é(a)) MEBRZ (Hit6@)) 4 7
Payment of lease liabilities TRNEEAaRE (27) (215)
Derecognition of lease liabilities on early HIETERIBARIEEE 2
termination of leases HEAE - (95)
Exchange difference EHER (2) (5)
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—HWM&# 51 76
Less: Non-current portion W - SERNERER - (53)
Current portion BN ER &L 51 23
FREYERERAT

T —FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

I\\/T\ ﬁﬁ.,% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ <,.E>

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B R5N U R BZR)

26. DEBENTURES 26. &%
2021 2020
—E_—% ZEZTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREETIT
Balance at 1 January R—A— B8 & 4,535 18,035
Interest expenses (note 6(a)) BRI (HF6)) 138 133
Interest paid BB (132) (102)
Exchange difference EHER (165) (951)
Settlement (note (1) BEE (BEG)) - (12,580)
Balance at 31 December R+-—A=+—Hm4&s 4,376 4,535
Less: Non-current portion R FERNEARR - (4,535)
Current portion BNHAER 5 4,376 -

The Group entered into agreements with two independent
third parties for issuing unsecured debentures with principal
amounting to HK$20,000,000 in previous year. Its outstanding
amount was approximately at HK$5,350,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4,376,000) and HK$5,343,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4,535,000), respectively, as at 31 December
2021 and 2020. The debentures bear interest at 3% per annum,
unsecured and repayable on 29 August 2022.

Interest expenses on the debentures are calculated by applying
the interest rate of 3% per annum (2020: 3%) to the carrying
amount of debentures.

Note (j): On 22 December 2019, the Company entered into the subscription
agreements with debenture holders to partial capitalise the principal
amounts of debentures together with accrued interest thereon in the
amount of HK$14,824,000 (equivalent to RMB12,580,000 as at the
completion date (i.e. 14 February 2020) by issuing an aggregate of
123,533,400 new shares at HK$0.12 (note 28(b)).

RUARFE AEEEMEBIFE =7
7137 1% % - LA B2 1T K & #8 %8 /520,000,000
BTN ERBES R_TE-Z—F K=
T-TF+-A=Z+—HA HEXRZE
B5 349 45,350,000 7T (B HDARE
4,376,000) }5,343,000 7T (& AR
#5,343,000) - &% R F S3%:T 8 EE
W ERZZEZZF/\A=t+HhBEE-

5 3% 007 8.3 1 2 18 38 15 5 AR 3% FI &

(ZE-ZF:3%) BARNES BEE
-

K@) R=ZT—hhF+-A=+=8 AARHEH
hﬁ/\uTi;Zf@ﬂzu% il LKE}HXOQ,%E%E
176 $£123,533,4000 3T A% - i D EHA S K&
H e 5t FI| B 514,824,000 TT (ﬁé FEAk B Ef AN
—E-TF-At+MBIAE AREE12,580,000
T E AR (HiFE28(0)) °

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R50 U R BEZR)

27. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 27. WEBHIE 1 F)

31 December 2020

On 28 August 2020, Fujian Zhangping, a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the sales and purchases agreements
with two fellow shareholders of Ruisheng Wood, pursuant
to which, Fujian Zhangping acquired (the “Ruisheng Wood
Acquisition”) the remaining 55% equity interests of Ruisheng
Wood at an aggregate cash consideration of RMB1,650,000.
Prior to the Ruisheng Wood Acquisition, Fujian Zhangping held
45% equity interests in Ruisheng Wood which was accounted
for as an investment in an associate. Prior to the completion
of the acquisition, the Group shared of its loss of Ruisheng
Wood of approximately RMB287,000 during the year ended

—2_EF+-RA=+—H

ﬁéfjfji)\ﬁ —H\EI AR E B

NAEREEEFHREFREBOMAURE
RN EERE B BEAETUEE (TR
BImAAEB])BAEREBTH 5%
i - 835 & KB R/ AR ¥1,650,0007T °
WBmAREBE A BEAEFFER
FREIBASRIEHE - 2T AR AR &
REIMEE - WEZKA RS- F
+ZA=+—HLEE AEESERS
KRB B ARBE287,0007T A AEH
WER-_Z-_ZFNA+HBHZEKE LA

BAERNREDRE R FEARE,920,000
THETEFHE MEFtsREAAR
#159,0007T (BIaE5(0)) ' BEELZEEBER

31 December 2020. Upon the completion of the Ruisheng
Wood Acquisition on 10 September 2020, the previously held
equity interests had been re-measured at their fair value of

RMB1,920,000 with a gain on remeasurement of RMB159,000 R -

(note 5(b)) recognised to the consolidated statement of profit

or loss.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of WARGEER_Z-_TFHA TR (Al

ARBEBUEN K BB ORI BAIEE
RAENAFERAT:

Ruisheng Wood as at 10 September 2020, being the completion
date of the Ruisheng Wood Acquisition, were as follows:

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

U RS TR Y

AFE

RMB’000

AR®TT

Property, plant and equipment (note 72) L ﬁi%& S (Hit12) 804

Trade receivables B 5 IR 3,210

Prepayments and other receivables %Eiﬁm&ﬁﬁﬁf EWGRIA 442

Inventories rE 138

Cash and cash equivalents iﬁ/f&fﬁ% £(EY) 23
Trade payables =) NG (112)
Accruals and other payables FEETE A &E@E&EH?\XIE (238)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value AIH#REEFEEE (UNAFEHE) 4,267
Gain on bargain purchase Bl E (697)

Total consideration wRE 3,570

Consideration satisfied by: REZAFA:
- Cash -Re 1,650
— Remeasurement of previously held equity - AR ANREEFERN

interests in Ruisheng Wood RESHTE 1,920

Total consideration BRE 3,570
FREYERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B IR RERMEF (@

AR E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

27. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 27. WHEKB QT (#)
The gain on bargain purchase of RMB697,000 has been B U s A R 697,000 TTE RERE
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. T@ R 7% PR o
An analysis of cash flows in respect of the Ruisheng Wood BRBARGEHBNEETENRESREDT
Acquisition is as follows: U
2020
—EEF
RMB’'000
AR®TT
Cash consideration RERE 1,650
Cash and bank balances acquired EREe MRITE (23)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included  &EBEFHEANIE S REF BIEN
in cash flows from investing activities RERBEEBYRLFE 1,627
Following the completion of the Ruisheng Wood Acquisition, MAREBRBTKE WANEELE
Ruisheng Wood contributed RMB119,000 of consolidated E_T_EFE+_A=T—BLEFERAK

revenue and RMB1,388,000 of consolidated profit to the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Had the Ruisheng Wood Acquisition been taken place at the BMAE KNG
beginning of the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the
consolidated revenue and consolidated loss of the Group
would have been RMB493,787,000 and RMB110,197,000,

respectively, for that financial year.

EF BB G E WA ARE119,0007T & 4R
A% A R #1,388,0007T °

ERWERBEE T _FF
TZA=+—AZVBFEFVET A
REBEZTBREENRERARKEE
B9 R A A R#A493,787,0005T & A R #
110,197,000 7T

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R50 U R BEZR)

28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28. EX RERRE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances FAASEEGREERS BT REAR
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set MEBHERHEINGEEREFHR AR T
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details EmEBBIRNFEIORERANEHFEL
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of ™
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
(@ Movements in components of equity @ RmIOHEE
The Company b Y|
Share Share Exchange Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
(2.3 BRER ER R RiB#R HauE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBETT ARBTFT ARBFT ARBTFT
At 1 January 2020 R-B-Z%-f-H 25,544 678,732 67,056 (101,906) 669,426
Profit for the year FRHEH - - - 14,321 14,321
Other comprehensive income  FREM Kz E%E
for the year - - (34,681) - (34,681)

Total comprehensive income FREENEEE

for the year - - (34,681) 14,321 (20,360)
Issue of new shares (mote 26(j)  E1THI R (H73226()) 5,242 7,338 - = 12,580
Shares issued under share *E FR 17 B2 B 3T 15847

award scheme (note 29(b)) B (B7290)) 1,805 3972 - = 5,777

7,047 11,310 - - 18,357
At 31 December 2020 R-IEZEfF
and 1 January 2021 +ZB=+—-Hk
—E-_—-f5-A-H 32,591 690,042 32,375 (87,585) 667,423
Profit for the year FRmEA = - - 24,466 24,466
Other comprehensive income  FRE Az 8%
for the year - - (24,661) - (24,667)

Total comprehensive income FRZENEEE

for the year - - (24,661) 24,466 (195)
Shares issued under BIER 2B T2
share award scheme BRG (HE29m)
(note 29(b) 2,754 4,952 - - 7,706
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—-%
+=-A=+—-H 35,345 694,994 7,714 (63,119) 674,934

PRAEMERERAE /I 79

T FER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e IS EmERMEE (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &Rk AN REESIR)

28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28. EX -RHERKRE (2
(Continued)
(b) Share capital ()%
Authorised and issued share capital EERBBEITRA
2021 2020
bt Jub 2 e S5
Number of Number of
Par Value shares Amount Par Value shares Amount
BIAEE BiHBE & RIEE O Ex
(‘000) HK$'000 HKS (000) HK$'000
TB FHET BT Tk TAL
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary share L 2,000,000 100,000 0.05 2,000,000 100,000
2021 2020
k-~ Jet - 3 —T-%F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
1308 ] &8 BHEE &
('000) RMB'000 ('000) RMB'000
T AR®TR Tk ARETR
Ordinary shares of £3E8% (SBk0.05%T) -
HK$0.05 each, issued BITRBE:
and fully paid:
At 1 January ®—A—H 783,750 32,591 617,667 25,544
Issuance of new shares (note 26()  E4THAD (A1524()) - - 123,533 5,242
Issue of new shares under share 1R R 17 22Eh st 21 31T
award scheme (rote 29(b)) WG (Fraoan) 66,618 2,754 42,550 1,805
At 31 December ®W+—-—A=+—H 850,368 35,345 783,750 32,591
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28. EX-RERRKRE &)

(Continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves © HHEMENRED
(i) Share premium (i) ROHEE

(ii)

(iii)

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issue of
the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
currency differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of the entities with
functional currency other than Renminbi. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(ff).

Statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to PRC statutory
reserve are made in accordance with the relevant
PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company’ s subsidiaries
established in the PRC and were approved by the
respective boards of directors.

(i)

(i)

Pty B AR M AR HE
BT AN R BT UER P A5
HIBZHERERR -

RIEFAEHRBRARE ARA
Bt mERANESRIHEDIK
FTARRMER HEEEEZ
DIRRB B R AR R ZARE
SEN—RERBRET BN

&7 e

B 5

BE B B EAAREIAING
DR E¥RERHERY TR
RITELENMBINEEZE X
B IR B M E2() FEe e
AR -

EERE
BREENEREDBUEE R
TR RARRE T B AR A R AR B
VAR 22 B) #E o B AR S2 A B
NAMEBERMAAET X
CEAEEESE

PRAEMERERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28. EXR-RBEERE &)

(Continuea)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) C HEHEUMELRBEN &)
(iii) Statutory reserve (Continuead) (i) EERE(E)
The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to A A B A B 2B B 10%E)
appropriate 10% of its after-tax profit, as BRE &N (EDREPEE
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting SRR RBROIEE)ZE KL
rules and regulations, to statutory general reserve ERE EEREARETR
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the BARE50% 4 1 - R E K E
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve BIEMARER 9 IRAR B AT 1T
must be made before distribution of a dividend to
shareholders.
Statutory general reserve can be used to make —MEEHBRI ARFEERT
good prior years' losses, if any, and may be FEEE(E) WA ERE
converted into paid-up capital provided that the BERARN HBHERENS
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% ER TSR R T & AN #925% -
of the registered capital.
(iv) Fair value reserve (non-recycling) (iv) DEERE(FT2H)
The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises NEEFEE(TAEE)BE
the cumulative net changes in the fair value of RIRIBERIEE RIEA TFERA
equity instruments designated as measured at Hth2mEas 2 AT ARK
fair value through other comprehensive income in MEFTBRIEE KRR TER
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for AHMEERECBRATAZ
equity instruments designated at fair value through NEERFFEE -
other comprehensive income.
(d) Distributable reserves d FID RS
The aggregate amounts of reserves available for AMARRERFAEAD IR ZFEE

distribution to equity shareholders of the Company were
RMB639,589,000 (2020: RMB634,832,000).

After the end of the reporting period, the Directors
proposed no final dividend (2020: proposed no final
dividend).

458 A AN R 1#639,589,0007T (=&
— T AR#643,832,0007T) °

AR & B
k3% R HARR

BRE EZUEER
S(ZE2_FF :TER

IR RIS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28. EX-RERRKRE &)

(Continued)

(e) Capital management e BAXRER

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurate with the
level of risk and by securing access to financing at a
reasonable cost.

The Group defined “capital” as including all components
of equity. Trade balances and bank borrowings arise in
the course of ordinary business are not regarded by the
Group as capital. On this basis, the amount of capital
employed by the Group at 31 December 2021 were
RMB839,575,000 (2020: RMB771,205,000).

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustment to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Group.

Except for the banking facilities which require the
fulfilment of certain covenants as disclosed in note 30,
neither the Company nor any of the subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements in
either prior or current year.

AREEREANETERERED
SRR IR IR R K TR A O
REBEABRARGRE RE
AREBEEENES  AF R
40 0 75 R SR O 9 T A 24
A AR -

REEH BRI ERRBIEMEE
HHD AEBE—REBBIEF
EENBHEBRIBITERTHER
RER - BUPEE KEEBR-ZF
——F+ZA=+t—HEBEMHNEX
& %8 A A R#839,575,000t (=&
—ZTF: AR¥771,205,0007T) °

AEBEREEARARE UHEFE
BERROBREOGER ZEOHA
EERAFESMEREREZEIRR
MEARNEZLRE LAHFEAR
SENRERNZEHHENREHE

GELT

Bk 78 22 B BT RESOPT BB B B T 8 4
MIRTREREN RBEFENL
AEE AABHEMHERRH
BAEINBEMEART R

PRAEMERERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 29. BRESTEIRR MBS

AWARD SCHEME
(@) Share option scheme (@) EEMREETE

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders
on 15 June 2012, the Company has conditionally adopted
the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of recognising and acknowledging the
contributions the eligible participants had or may have
made to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to the
Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors),
the directors of the Company’s subsidiaries and
employees of the Group and any other persons (including
consultants or advisers) whom the Board considers, in its
absolute discretion, have contributed or will contribute
to the Group. The Directors were authorised to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company and to
allot, issue and deal with the ordinary shares pursuant to
the exercise of options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and to take all such steps as may be necessary
and/or desirable to implement and give effect to the
Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue immediately
following completion of the Global Offering (as defined
in the Company'’s prospectus dated 25 June 2012),
being 100,000,000 shares, excluding any shares that
may be issued under the options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
(or any other share option schemes of the Company),
unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time.

BREZERER_ZT—ZFA
THEBRBMNARRE ARAEAE
6 R A — TE BB AR A 5T 81 ([ BB AR
rEll) - ABEEREFGEA
HASEELEROEERZEA
ToRBBRESE - EEGARE
MEE(BRPTES FHTESE
RBIERITES) ARAMBER
A2ER AEBEEERESEER
EWERR I E AR EEIED
BERMERNEMAT(BREERE
FIkER )R ERE EFERE
REBRENRBERRARD &
e FTREERBERETS
I ERERITEMBITIHER
1% - DA B2 SRER Y B AT e AR AT & &%
FErERMEALERKEETH
— Y] BB  R IR AR A B R
Hih AR RIBRESIm KT A
BERENEERODEE &&£TF
BAREEKEE(ERRAQA
B AT - ~A=THA®
RIRER) T B BITRD LB
10% + B1100,000,000 f&f1n @ T8
FEAEMBIEBREST S (AR F]
FE{a] E A B AR A AT 1) B9 4R R K
B RS ARAE T Al BITRORR M) - R
NEIRBERERE EBITHER
3 AR BT RS A MR EE R
Hhe
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 29. BRETERKR D ERTE 2

AWARD SCHEME (continueq)

(@) Share option scheme (continuea) @) EERRERTE (#)

Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, the number of shares
that may be granted to an eligible participant under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue of the Company within any 12-month period
Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved
by our independent non-executive Directors. Unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules, the number of shares
that may be granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or their respective
associates under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) shall not exceed
0.1% of the shares in issue, having an aggregate value in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period.

BOEERRRBRRARBRRERA® LS
TTHAE TRIATERBRET SR
EREAMA R R B RET S A — %
AERZEERLNBROHEE (B
BRETERRITERERE)  T5&E
B B AL ] — {218 A #E &
BEETRMNI% -EAAESE K
ARAEBRITBABERETERE (F
ER TR KIEEAEENHE
A(EER EWRR) X TR BRE
AEBIFFATEESORE R
ARBBEREBRRAE ESITHE
B/ ETHRASERE  GRIRE
Bl g REMEMARREK
BAER T EIERRIEFBL
FATEFHEHZANBHEANK
BB (BRECTERRITEEKR
&) - NS E R —E1218 A #RE
BTG 0.1%5 & HEBEEB RS
BEET-
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 29. BREEIRKROEBEE
AWARD SCHEME (continued)

(@) Share option scheme (continuea) (@) EERRERTE (@)

There is no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised, and the period during
which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion, however, no options
shall be exercised 10 years after they have been granted.
The subscription price of a share in respect of a particular
option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the official
closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange; (b) the average official closing
price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of
a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from
the date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a
period of 10 years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became
effective and unconditional and up to the date of this
annual report, no share options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
ordinary shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 85,036,842 (2020: 78,375,040), representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company.

MEITEBRELITEALERE
B & 52 HARR - M B AR AT AT A HR
MEBESEG2EMBERTE A
BRENRDI0OFRETEITE-
ﬁfaﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁém REETEFER
To&mE: EAﬂﬁﬁ”FﬁlEiﬁﬁ{ﬁ
ﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁmaﬁﬂxfﬁqﬂlmfﬁ )£ #
TxHjEIESﬁHIﬂTIA%EIH‘JZ“FﬁlEI
#&Ei’%ﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁ'\]éﬁﬂx@?i@”ﬁmfg'
Okt EE -BRESESEHE
?ét}m A4 B R A B 5% B 10
FHERN—EBR-

B BB ET 8 R MK R B R AR
EEAFHAM HEREERE
FHEIR B AAE

RAFIRE B BERETEE A
HREEITH) I AR D 48 20 585,036,842
f% (= Z —2F:78,375,040) * {5 A A
BB EITAR1D A910% °
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 29. BRETERKR D ERTE 2

AWARD SCHEME (continueq)

(b) Share award scheme ) R EEEET Sl

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed on
14 December 2020, adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) for the purpose of (i) to
align interests of eligible persons, being the employees,
directors, officers, consultants or advisors of any member
of the Group, with those of the Group through ownership
of ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
dividends and other distribution paid on Shares and/or
increase in value of the Shares; and (i) to encourage and
retain eligible persons to make contributions to the long-
term growth and profits of the Group.

The aggregate number of shares to be made pursuant to
the Share Award Scheme (the “Award Shares”) will not
exceed 20% of the total number of issued shares capital
as at the adoption date of the Share Award Scheme
(i.e. of 20% of 741,200,400 Shares). The aggregate number
of Award Shares which may be awarded to a selected
person under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed
2% of the total number of issued Shares as at the
adoption date of the Share Award Scheme.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined
by the board of directors, the Share Award Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing
from the adoption date.

ARERE-_ZT-_ZTF+-A+m
FBEBHARE CRAKRNDER
sHEl (MR 22 EhET81)) - B W9 2()
EBARAERK(RMDIES
B-EREEAEERD2EME NS
ER/HRHEBE TEEBRAL
(AREEERKENREER EF-
BMAR BERRBAA) 2 FmE
REE M — B0 R B k% &
BERALHBAHASEELRR
WREAERZ RBER R HEN -

RAR A RE) AR L 2 PR A D
(IRBBRHBEAXIBEB
Rk REFHEZRDHITR
1 48 8,2 20% + (B1741,200,4008% A%
17 #920% ) < AR IE A% 00 SR ET B4 T
—HBBEEAT 2 RBRNHBETE
BERRABHREHITROBERZ
2% °

RFEFESRERANKLL TAIK
0 BRE A &I B IR B B R + 4
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 29. BREEIRKROEBEE
AWARD SCHEME (continued)

(b) Share award scheme (continued) ) R EEEIETEl (&)

The Award Shares, once issued, will rank equal to all
other issued Shares at that time and are not subject to
any vesting condition. The selected persons will therefore
have the right to receive dividends, dispose of and/or
exercise the rights of the Award Shares as per his/her
own wishes once the Award Shares were issued.

31 December 2021

On 10 May 2021, a total of 66,618,016 Award Shares
were issued to 13 eligible persons (the “2021 Selected
Persons”), in which, as to (i) 36,970,000 Award Shares
were issued on 10 May 2021 to the Company’s
employees pursuant to the general mandate; and (ii)
the remaining 29,648,016 Award shares were issued to
certain directors pursuant to the general mandate and as
further approved in the Extraordinary General Meeting on
31 May 2021 and issued on 7 June 2021. The 66,618,016
Award Shares represented approximately 8.50% of the
total number of issued Shares and approximately 7.83%
of the total number of Shares in issue as enlarged by
the issue and allotment of the Award Shares. The 2021
Selected Persons are (i) senior and middle management
of the Group; (i) staffs who served the Group for a long
period of time and (jii) connected persons.

The 66,618,016 Award Shares had neither any vesting
period nor condition, accordingly, the fair value of (i)
36,970,000 Award Shares were determined by the closing
market price of the Company on 10 May 2021, of which,
expenses of approximately HK$4,991,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4,108,000) and (i) 29,648,016 Award
Shares were determined by the closing market price
of the Company on 7 June 2021, of which, expenses of
approximately HK$4,329,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,598,000) were recognised as expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

BERO —K#T BEERKHMA
He #Thin ABFMERMBA - IF
PREMBEBIETEAR - EEAL
75 B e B R SR A AT IR 1R
WEN B B S  HER X
1T SRR RS0 RO AR BRFE )

~Z-_—%+ZA=+—H

R-ZZE-_—FHA+H 2ME13%
BERALT (228 EALET
& 66,618,016 S B AX 17 - H A ()
36,970,000/ HEIR K IRIE=—F =
FRAATH - REEMBEITHER
BB T (i8R T #929,648,016% 42 B
BoiRE T -_—FHA=+—H
BT AR R B K & B 89 R B %
BR-_ZE-_—FXAtEARARQ
Al TE BT 66,618,0160% HZE
BR1D FEE R B TR D 88 20 498.50%
REHTREZEREROEREZ
BT IR0 B E497.83% © 20213E TE
ATBRENFAEENESRRFEE
BAB:(WRBEAEAEEBRENE
Ki)VARRRES-

666180161%“@%1‘%)111&1’7}1‘1%{517%2
BHI SR B () 36,970 OOOHX
BERGZ A MEJB&K
_T__EﬁﬂﬂLEIZH&FEfEFZ
EEF - FX A #4,991,0000% 7T
(HHE RN AR 44,108,0007T ) :
(i) 29,648,0161% 2 B A% 15 2 A F
BE DNEARARRZZE-Z—FX
AtBzZWTEEE: ﬁﬁtﬂﬁ'ﬁéﬁ%
#14,329,0007 7T (FHE RN AR L
3,598,0007T) W R 4R B B R NHER
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 29. BRETERKR D ERTE 2

AWARD SCHEME (continueq)

(b) Share award scheme (continuea) () R EEEIETEl (&)

31 December 2020

On 14 December 2020, a total of 42,550,000 Award
Shares were issued to 12 eligible persons (the “2020
Selected Persons”) pursuant to the general mandate. The
42,550,000 Award Shares were issued on 30 December
2020. The 42,550,000 Award Shares represented
approximately 5.74% of the total number of issued Shares
and approximately 5.43% of the total number of Shares
in issue as enlarged by the issue and allotment of the
Award Shares. The 2020 Selected Persons are (i) senior
and middle management of the Group and (i) staffs who
served the Group for a long period of time.

The 42,550,000 Award Shares had neither any vesting
period nor condition, accordingly, the fair value of
42,550,000 Award Shares were determined by the
closing market price of the Company on 30 December
2020, of which, expenses of HK$6,808,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB5,777,000) were recognised as
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2021 and the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, the Company
had 39,072,064 (2020: 105,690,080) Award Shares
available for awarding to eligible persons under the Share
Award Scheme, which represented approximately 5.00%
(2020: 13.49%) of the issued Shares as at the end of
respective reporting dates.

—2_2f+-A=+—H

RZZEZZTF+_A+WmA B
Mm12% &6 & AT (12020 F A
+ 1) & H & 42,550 oooﬂxﬁﬁbﬂx
m BBRNVEE_T_TF+=
A=+ BRE—MimEIT RAELE-
42,550,0000% ZEEN A% 19 48 & I B #1T
AR 48 2R 495.74% R 45 B 1T K% i B 8%
B IEXE 2 BEETRG BHL
5.43% ° 2020 BEATEBRAE
ENTaEBERAS  RiVBEE
ERBEHBANET -

42,550,0000% 2 Bl A% 17 3 8 {7] 55 /88
HA Sk A6 45 A 1t » 42,550,0008% 4% B
Rz A FEDEARBR =
TF+-_A=tBHZKTEET

Heh 6,808,000 T (HHE RARKE
#15,777,0007C ) B X AR & B R

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—HE
I EGREMBRELEZH K
A RE39,072,064 (ZE=ZTF:
105,690,080) A% #ZEH AR 15 7T AR 1% A% 19
HEFERTEEBAL ERE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

30. BANKING FACILITIES AND PLEDGED

31.

ASSETS

The Group entered into certain banking facilities with certain
PRC banks with an aggregate amount of RMB236,700,000
(2020: RMB97,700,000), of which, as to RMB73,989,000
(2020: RMB27,485,000) (including the bank borrowings of
RMB54,000,000 (note 24)) have been utilised at the end of
reporting dates).

The secured banking facilities are secured by certain of the
Group's land use rights, buildings, other financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and pledge deposits amounting
to approximately RMB29,632,000 (2020: RMB14,764,000)
(hote 12), RMB128,427,000 (2020: RMB31,780,000) (note 12),
RMB80,000,000 (2020: RMB Nil) (note 15(0)) and RMB1,640,000
(2020: RMBA4,590,000) (note 21), respectively.

30. RITREFEEREKFEE

REBBRETFTHBENRITIILE TRTE
ERE ' 8o A ARK236,700,0007T (=
T T4 AR¥97,700,000)  HEF AR
#£73,989,0007T ( =& — T 4 : 27,485,000)
(B BIEIRITE A A R ¥54,000,000 ( Ff
H24) VR AFEHEHBER

EEMBTREREENARAERBE T+
WERE - EF RAFEFABEZ
Hth&mEERBERFTRS AER
P ANR 29,632,000 (Z T - T4
/\Eﬁ%14,764,000n) (MFEE12) ~ AR
#128,427,000 (Z 2T F: AR
#31,780,000) (BI&E12) - AR
80,000,000( — T =Z4F : #&) (FsE15(00))
R ARB1640000L (ZEZ2F: AR
#4,590,0007T) (FI&E21) °

COMMITMENTS 31. &
(@) Capital commitments @ BEAREE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December RZZFEZ—F+ZA=+—HHERK
2021 not provided for in these consolidated financial BITEIENERE T FRERNEHE
statements were as follows: KB AREEDT
2021 2020
% —ZE_F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT ARETTT
Contracted for =EES) 6,571 -~
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31. COMMITMENTS (continued) 31. EE®)

(b) Operating lease arrangements

The Group leases, as lessor, certain the investment
properties, (note 13) in the PRC were leased out under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year
was RMB1,046,000 (2020: RMB96,000), details of which
are included in note 5(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease rental
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as
follows:

(o)

EREZHE
REE(EFAHBAA)RELCERE
ZHHBAMRPENE FTIREME
(MH3E13) - HABGER—RERBE P
BMREE NEEBRFANER
HE WA B ARM046,0007T (=
LT F: AR¥96,0007T) 5 1B
BB SRR I FES(@) ©

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—A0 'K
& @R R B2 58 5 5T 3 /9 1 B e A
BN KR E R R ITIER
ca UM

2021 2020
—e-—%F —E_FTF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Within one year —F R 1,132 533
After one year but within two years —FREMRFA 1,143 518
After two years but within three years M4 E&1E =4 R 1,626 592
3,901 1,643
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 32. MEBEREXRMTE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from @ MEGBHEAMNBEZH
financing activities AR
The table below details changes in Group's liabilities TRFLAEEREETHEEANE
arising from financing activities. (EP4 Sl
Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings, Lease
secured  Debentures liahilities Total
HRET
&
FEAR &% HEAR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT AREFL AREFT
(note 24) (note 26) (note 25)
(Hiz24) (Hi7#26) (#17225)
At 1 January 2020 R-Z2-E5-A—-H S 18,035 219 18,254
Cash flow: RBeng:
- Repayment of lease liabilties —EEHEAE - - (215) (215)
~ Interest paid -BERFIE 22) (102) =
~ Obtained new bank -BEHETER
horrowings 7,720 - - 7,720
— Repayment of bank -BEBIER
horrowings (7,766) - - (7.766)
Non-cash flows: FREME:
— Capitalisation -\ - (12,580) = (12,580)
— New lease i) - - 165 165
- Interest expenses -FERAX 2 133 7 162
- Written-off for the year —FE R S S (95) (95)
- Effects of foreign exchange —E X2 46 (951) () (910)

At 31 December 2020 N_E_EF+”°A=1+-H
A

and 1 January 2021 R-B-—-%—-f-— S 4,535 76 4,611
Cash flow: Reng:
- Repayment of lease liabilties —(EEHEARE = S 27) (27)
- Interest paid -BRHE (1,103) (132) - (1,235)
- Obtained new bank ~BBHETER

horrowings 74,407 - - 74,407
~ Repayment of hank —BEFTER

horrowings (20,129) - - (20,129)
Non-cash flows: FHEME:
— New lease -5 S = - -
- Interest expenses —FERE 1,103 138 4 1,245
~ Written-off for the year —FRH A - - - -
- Effects of foreign exchange  —ERFE (278) (165) ) (445)
At 31 December 2021 R-EZ-%£+ZA=+-H 54,000 4,376 51 58,427
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 32. ZEBEERERMT 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Total cash flow of leases by HERERE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the FARERERMEERSMLER
statement of cash flows is as follows: T
2021 2020
% —ZEF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARETTT

Within operating activities ETEE N 4 (88)

Within investing activities WEEEA = =

Within financing activities BEEEA (27) (215)
(23) (303)

(¢) Major non-cash transactions © FEHRERH

31 December 2021 —E2-—-F+°"A=+—H

The major non-cash transactions during the year ended B2 -_—4F+=-A=+—H

31 December 2021 in respect of new shares issued for HFE BRETUREKALEER

the equity-settled share award schemes are set out in IR fn SE B 5T & M 1T AR D

note 29(b). WEZFBRERHDRH N

29(b) °

31 December 2020 —EEF+°"A=+—H

The major non-cash transactions during the year ended BHE-_Z-_ZEF+-_HA=+—H1Lt

31 December 2020 in respect of new shares issued for FE - BARABETESIBMERLM

the partial capitalisation of certain debentures and for the BT RD MARAREEHRD

equity-settled share award schemes are set out in notes HBAENFEEFRRERHDAHE

26(i) and 29(b), respectively. FBT EE26() K2 29(D) ©

hREYERERA T

T —FFR
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

In addition to the related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
the Group entered into the following significant related party
transactions during the years presented.

(@ Name and relationship with related parties

During the years presented, the Directors are of the view
that related parties of the Group include the following
entities:

Name of party
MBS B8

33. EXBB L X Z KERHE

BRIt 4R & BT 5 R B b 5 Fr# FR A9
B %&ﬁ?%ﬁ’}'\\*$‘ilﬁé‘ﬁﬁm$§ﬂ
S NHIE KBS R

(@) FAME 2 KRR T A
A&
RERFE EERA AEEOH
4T BT

Relationships
[RE7

Green Seas Capital Limited
Green Seas Capital Limited

Zhangping Ruisheng Wood Structure Materials Co., Ltd.
(“Ruisheng Wood")

EVRARERMRERRR ([RAKRERE])

Zhangzhou Senyun International Trade Co., Limited
BMNREHERESERA

* The English translation of the name is for reference only. The
official name of these related parties is in Chinese.

A private company controlled by Wu Zheyan. Wu
Zheyan is a director of the Company.
REEEHNLERR]  REERARAIES

An associate of the Group and became a
subsidiary of the Company on 10 September
2020.

AEBEMBERF RZEFFNATHK
BARRNRIRME AT

Non-controlling interest
I Rt 2

* FMOEXBRER2EZ - ZEMH S
HUAE BB BT X
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(b) Significant related party transactions

Particulars of significant related party transactions during

33. EXBAEEAR S (&)

b BABEE SRS

PIREERNERBE T XSNFE

the years presented are as follows: R
2021 2020
= —E_TF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARETT
Sales of wooden products to Min A REBHERER
Ruisheng Wood 14,201
Purchase of raw materials from )i A R I R AR
Ruisheng Wood 17,848
The Directors consider that the above sales and purchase EERR FMEER S THLAHERE
transactions are entered into with trading terms similar to FEHEE=FE LR LRZ G IENET
those with third parties. bk
() Amounts due from related company and © FEUEEE A A & IEE R
non-controlling interest K
RMB'000
AR®EFT
Amount due from Green Seas FElzGreen Seas Capital Limited
Capital Limited b
Balance at AR
-1 January 2020 ——ZE=ZTF—H—H 67
- 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 —ZZTZFTF+A=F+—HEK
—FE-—F—H—H 67
- 31 December 2021 -ZE2-—%+°"A=+—H 63
Maximum balance outstanding B REBEH
- during 2021 -R-EZ—F 67
- during 2020 —R-ZE-_FF 69
hREYERERA T

ZEFF®
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 33. EXRBHAERS (@)

TRANSACTIONS (continuec)

(c) Amounts due from related company and © MW A RIIEIERERS
non-controlling interest (continuea) SKIE (47)

RMB'000
ARETT
Amount due from ZzhangzZhou Senyun B ENGEBRREZERATIRE
International Trade Co., Limited
Balance at N
-1 January 2020 ——E-FTF—H—H -
— 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 ——ZE-TF+ZA=F+—HEK
—FE-—F—H—H -
- 31 December 2021 -—=E2-—%+-A=+—H 2,500
Maximum balance outstanding B REBEEH
- during 2021 -R-EZ—%§ 2,500
- during 2020 —“RIZETEF S
The amounts due from related company and non- FE U B8 Bk A B) J2 FE 5 AR R & AKIE B
controlling interest were unsecured, interest-free and MR R B RIREKEE-
repayable on demand.

(d) Key management personnel remuneration d EEZEEEABEHHN
Remuneration for key management personnel of the REBETEEBREAST N (B2E
Group, including amounts paid to the Company's MlsE8 R M sE9D B B M E A AR
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest AEERETHESFHEEMNNIE) N
paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows: T~

2021 2020

¥ —E_TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Short-term employee benefits MHEIEEREA 1,886 2,674
Equity-settled share award scheme VAR 45 S B i 1) B2 ED 51 &

expenses 53 3,598 1,675

Retirement scheme contributions RRET B K 21 12

5,505 4,361
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33.

34.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 33. EXBHMAERS (@)
TRANSACTIONS (continuea)
(e) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to e FEXZERz EMHEA
connected transactions
None of the above related party transactions fall under AR AR SHTER ETRA
the definition of connected transactions or continuing FUAEFMRTENBER HRTER
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the REERS -
Listing Rules.
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 3. RERETHNEREER SR
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEME
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial AEEeRmTANRAERAFEEOT:
instruments are as follows:
2021 2020
—BZ—-% —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®ETT
Financial assets SMEE
Amortised costs: B
Trade and other receivables 5 K H MW IR 117,974 64,440
Time deposit TEHFR 30,000 -
Pledged deposits BEBFR 1,640 4,590
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 61,671 137,969
Financial assets at fair value through IEERZERFEGTAEM
other comprehensive income: PEHRBZEBEE
Equity investments A g & 2,342 2,400
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEGABZH
profit or loss: THEE:
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA 5,077 1,619
Other financial assets HmemEE 92,842 29,174
Financial liabilities SaMaR
Amortised costs: B
Trade and other payables E 5 R HMER B 34,078 31,434
Debentures (EC 4,376 4,535
Interest-bearing bank borrowings, secured FTEIRITIER  BEA 54,000 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 51 76
Financial liabilities at fair value through #2\ -FEFFAEHH
profit or loss: THEE:
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTA 896 157

—_—==
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BB ERR W (@)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. ¢RiEREER AFE
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commodity price arises in the normal course of the Group's
business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group
places deposits with major financial institutions, which
management believe are of high credit rating. In order to
minimise the credit risk of liquid fund, the Group reviews
regularly the credit rating of the PRC local bank, which
they placed bank deposits in and performs impairment
assessment on bank balances individually.

EREENEEEBBRPEELFER
EXR N /)|L§j3§iﬂ|§ﬁ' N *'J%J—H&ﬁ N ‘E’ﬂ%ﬂ[ﬁﬁ
7 B o

AR B P AR O b 5 LB B AR R B B IR Ut

LR IR & LRI B IR I R AR 510
T M-
@ EER

AEENEERRIZEREBEI N

Hi Y RBRARRE LR EE

e %I@E%Uﬁﬂééﬁﬁﬁ WS E
ERMEHNEEFEER

AEENRERBECEEWEFR
ERERREESEEFRANTIE
CREBE-RERBESNERR
BRIRE AEBERRSEF
BRTERZTBEAMRITZEE
AR WHRITABRETERNRE
RRCK
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. 2RiEREER AFE &)
VALUES (continuea)

(@)

Credit risk (continuea)

In respect of trade receivables, the Group usually requires
upfront payment for sales of goods to new customers.
For export sales, the Group generally requests settlement
by letters of credit issued by financial institutions or by
wire transfer for certain customers with good trading
history. Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all new customers requiring credit over a certain
amount and are also performed on existing customers
on a periodic basis. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and may take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. The Group offers 90 days of credit to export
sales customers with good trading history and offers 180
days of credit to the existing domestic sales customers.
Generally, debtors with significant overdue balances are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At 31 December 2021,
13.0% (2020: 11.0%), of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group's largest trade receivable balance
and 53.5% (2020: 51.2%), was due from the five largest
trade receivable balances.

The Group applies the simplified and general approach
to provide for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS
9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for trade receivables and 12-month expected
credit losses for other receivables, cash and cash
equivalent and amounts due from a related company and
associates.

@)

EERR &)
RESENRETS AEBAY
BRI ECRBEE ML AEM K.
BEOHEMS AEEREER
e BEEHANEAEREE (3t
ETREBSRIINESTS )&
B AEBEEHMEERETEER
R EE Y E TR B e -
TE YR A EE TR A
o EFEIIRESBENT
B 3% 1< 2085 A TR 2 B 0 3 5
HEERBELHEERUARESE
EHEMMNEERRE AEBMEEA
RIFE SR OHERFE T
WEMEEBRYREERNKES
FRE1S0BMEEM —RM=
EHRBERME AEESBREK
REMBREEES SRR
E—AHEE BT AEEY
mEE RS RIS -

AEEAHMNEERR FEXE
BEMERSHBATEE mIIERA
BRI EMITESMERMER
EASEREENTEFPFMNEKNR
BE BELESESETHEERR-
R-_ZE-_—F+-A=+—H " B5
FEWRIBERBEFFIB0% (ZEF
F1M0%)BERAEBEREAER
B JE U 3B - T53.5% (- B - T4
51.2% ) Bl & fE W 7 KB 9 FE IR 3K
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EERIREG BRMBHREE
AIFBIRAEREZRYEFENE
HMEMBERBREMEKRE.
BEehReEEY BREK QA
FRIB K FE M B £ B SRIR 91218 A
BEHEEBRRE-

PRAEMERERAE

T —FFR

199



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continuea)
The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables, other receivables and amounts due from a
related company and a non-controlling interest:

3. cREREERAFE S

@ 1EERB#)
TERHIEHEAEENT 5 EKK
HHMENSE BERBLEE
W) - M R B R 7 3K IE R BB 3R 4
REARENEERBRREDEE
BBz &

As at 31 December 2021
R-E-_—f+Z-HA=+—H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate (%) amount  allowance
FHIERE (%) IREESH B R
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®T
Trade receivables BoERHRE
Current B &R 3.04% 100,136 (3,047)
Less than 1 month past due BEDRE A 40.55% 191 (78)
1 to 3 months past due BENE3@EA - = =
More than 3 months but less than #2318 A A L1 DR
12 months past due 1218 A - - -
More than 12 months past due BEI2E AN £ 98.94% 3,746 (3,706)
Specific provision for RS TER AR E
impairment provided* - 12,979 (12,979)
117,052 (19.810)
Other receivables Hfth fE Y R I8
Stage 1 F—PEE 6.43% 19,419 (1,248)
19.419 (1,248)
Amount due from R R & B RRIE
a related company
Stage 1 F—IEE 3.17% 63 (2)
Amount due from Bl IER R RE
non-controlling interest
Stage 1** E—REE - 2,500 =
g As the Group's historical credit loss experience of certain specific & MRAEEE THEEE ZRKZIENE

receivables have different credit history (where a one-on-one
credit loss analysis is carried out), the Group adjusted for factors
that are specific to these customers with significant increase in
credit risk.

ik The balance was fully settled subsequent to the end of reporting
period in January 2022, accordingly, the ECL is immaterial to the
consolidated financial statements.

*k

BE£&THAR (Bt ETENER
BRA2W) BAKERZEEREAR
BREEENNEPBANERELFE-

HREHEENFEE_T-__F—-AE2
2UBE Rt BHGEAEBEERYEA MY
BHRRWAEAK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. 2RiEREER AFE &)

VALUES (continuea)
(@) Credit risk (continuea)

@@ =ERR#)

As at 31 December 2020

RZZEZZTF+-A=1+—H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate (%) amount allowance
TEHAE X (%) FHEARE EBEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Trade receivables BoERRE
Current BN ER 3.26% 49,836 (1,627)
Less than 1 month past due BEDRE A 43.49% 3,143 (1,367)
1 to 3 months past due BWEMZ3E A 64.67% 1,220 (789)
More than 3 months but less than B EA3{E AL L1EDR
12 months past due 1218 A - - -
More than 12 months past due BE12E A 99.35% 1,086 (1,079)
Specific provision for HREE R E RS
impairment provided* - 22,543 (17,477)
77,828 (22,339)
Other receivables Rt R\
Stage 1 E—FEE 7.82% 9,244 723)
Stage 2 FERE = = =
Stage 3 E=FEE 58.99% 890 (525)
10,134 (1,248)
Amount due from BB A RRIE
a related company
Stage 1 F—BE 2.99% 67 ¥
E As the Group's historical credit loss experience of certain specific L ARAEEETIEEE S EKRENE

receivables have different credit history (where a one-on-one
credit loss analysis is carried out), the Group adjusted for factors
that are specific to these customers with significant increase in
credit risk.

HEs&TER (ERLETENEE
BEIMN) BAKERZFEARR
BREEENNBEPBANERERFE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ra

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. cRiEREER AFE &)
VALUES (continuea)

(@)

Credit risk (continuea)

Expected loss rates are based on historical debts
recovery rates over the past 3 years. The rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic data
has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

In measuring the expected credit losses, the trade
receivables have been assessed on a collective basis as
they possess shared credit risk characteristics. They have
been grouped based on the days past due.

Trade receivables are written off (i.e. derecognised) when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Failure
to make payments within 180 days from the invoice
date and failure to engage with the Group on alternative
payment arrangement amongst other are considered
indicators of no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Debt financial assets other than trade receivables
determine the ECL based on the 12-months ECLS. The
expected loss rates are simply based on the historical
debts recovery rate and adjusted by forward looking
factors including future economy conditions.

@)

SERR (&)
EHEBRRERBESFRNES
EHEWNE- LR EAEUR
B8 FF S 0428 Uk o A S 0 AT R
TR IR DA R 7 £ B U 2K TR B
B MEERRNE %o

R ERHEEBER BEZEK
RERABHARAGEERARE#EME
R EEETHE YO REH
RECETTN SR

B o REWFHIERE LS ETERTIK
Bl &5 F LA 85 (B EUH B3R ) ° K Bk
A% ZEHHR1808 A KL A AA
5 B AEGE LAE A 3R % HE S BB A
BRAEEEBERAWERIENEE -

BE 4 180 5] 7T S 00 18 1) JE KR TRDS I
ITHY BB OCEHENAERP

BB RGBS EE S BRE
ERBERZEANAHEMREREE
TRERHERBX -AHMBERXER
RESLBEHEWE  WERBEHEAKR
HAR A E N BTG 1 R AEAT
o
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continuea)

(@)

Credit risk (continuea)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose it to credit
risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in note 19.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at 31 December 2021 of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company are required to settle these liabilities.

3. cREREERATE S

@)

=ERR (&)
SEREERRESAMBRRER
MR R EREANEESRE
M BRTE (- A W3 R B K B
HEERRIR T ARER-

75 907 25 5 B 5 1 T 7 B
ERARGE 5 EERBRRHK
519 -

MENE & E
AEENBRAEHMERERPE
FRBEFEERZONRTE
NERASEEREHNESHE
RREZBEBIRGETEEOEGE
EXE-EMAREEHMRERAR
HELMFE

TERFHIIAEBERARAFENTES
mEERN T -_—F+t_A=+—
BREHSEHIHEA ZoHEE
DEREGHNAUBRSRE (B
EAEHF =K (M)FEB)) RS A
A RBRITREFEHFBMAFO
NEAREERAQRFEEREE I
LaENZEAHMmMTE-
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. cRiEREER AFE &)

VALUES (continuea)

(b) Liquidity risk (continuea) b mEEER (&)
2021
—B--§
More than More than Total
Within 1 year hut 2yearsbut  contractual Carrying
1year or less than less than undiscounted amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow 31 December
g |
—ERE BiE-% Ba—F HREE =+—H8
BEX BIRZE BIREE HeRESH BREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TE AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR
Debentures &% 4,464 - - 4,464 4,376
Trade and other payables BoRAMEMNTE 34,078 - - 34,078 34,078
Derivative financial instruments  $T4££BT A 896 - - 896 896
Lease liabilities HEBE 52 - - 52 51
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &+ B RITIE - BHER 54,563 - - 54,563 54,000
94,053 - - 94,053 93,401
2020
IS 2
More than More than
Within 1yearbut  2yearsbutless Total contractual — Carrying amount
1 year or less than than undiscounted at
on demand 2 years 5years cashflow 31 December
R+=A
—FR% BR—F BA=F FTHIARRGER =t+—-Bf
BEX BIRZF BIREE ReR2BEH REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETFT ARETT
Debentures &% - 4,721 - 4721 4,53
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMFHIE 31,434 - - 31,434 31,434
Derivative financial instruments — $T£&BT & 157 - - 157 157
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 51 - 80 76
31,620 4,772 = 36,392 36,202
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. 2RiEREER AFE &)
VALUES (continuea)

©

Interest rate risk ©

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (a) below.

a. Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s total borrowings at 31 December
2021 and 2020:

7 2= [ 2

AEBOMNXERTI2REEK-
BIF A K B E N REF B A ER
DHRAEETRAESRENER
SR AFEMERAR- NEEREM
ER AEENMNERAEN TX

FIRAR R
TERHFIR B —FR=-F
—EE+-_RA=+—RA4K£EE
BB RER I RARR -

2021 2020
BZ-§ S 23
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount  interest rate Amount
ERfE &f BRFx £k
% RMB’'000 % RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT
Fixed rate borrowings: EOER:
Unsecured debentures BERESR 3.13% 4,376 3.13% 4,535
Lease liabilities HEAE 5% 51 5% 76
Interest-bearing bank borrowings, secured £+ B AR{TIE S B 1 2.8% 54,000 - -
Total net borrowings BIETFE 58,427 4,611
Net fixed rate borrowings as ERBFFEERER
a percentage of total net borrowings  FEM A DL 100% 100%
Sensitivity analysis b. &SRBEDH
At 31 December 2021 and 2020 the Group's total RZE-—FR T _ZTF
borrowings are fixed rate borrowings therefore +ZA=+—H FKEEHE
sensitivity analysis is considered not necessary. RAERE TR EER Bt &
RETHRE DT
RIS R A E

ZEFF®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. cRiEREER AFE &)
VALUES (continuea)

(d) Currency risk d E¥EE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in
USD, AUD and NZD, currencies other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

During the years presented, the Group entered into
foreign currency forward contracts with major state-
owned banks in the PRC mainly to acquire RMB to
mitigate against currency risk on receivables, payables
and cash balances denominated in USD, AUD and NZD.
All of the forward exchange contracts have maturities of
less than one year.

The aggregate contract sums of the foreign currency
forward contracts outstanding as at 31 December 2021,
denominated in foreign currency, were US$3,480,000
(2020: US$15,510,000), AUD49,930,000 (2020:
AUD1,000,000) and NZD1,690,000 (2020: NZD Nil). At
31 December 2021, these foreign currency forward
contracts with their fair values were recognised as
derivative financial instruments (assets) of RMB5,077,000
(2020: RMB1,619,000) and derivative financial instruments
(liabilities) of RMB896,000 (2020: RMB157,000) (note
20). The changes in fair value of the foreign currency
forward contracts of approximately RMB4,181,000
(2020: gain of RMB1,461,000) were recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

AEBEHNEERR TERIN
ERMEEBEAINEELRBENER
XL RTRFAEMIT) FHER
ERRE (EERKIE  EBNRIE
R R MITENE KRR -

—~

FIRFER AEB AR
BHBERTILINEEHEHEAA
R ABEAERTT - RITRHMEW
TURTE R E YRR - B 5RIR KR 3R
SREABNEERR- A EBINE
BHMBMEHO R —FUAR-

RZBEZ—F+ZA=+—H" X
B EAR SN R HR A O ASNEE EHE A
A 44 %8 53,480,000 T (Z & =
= 4F 1 15,510,000% 70) 49,930,000
SBT (ZZF ZZF 4 :1,000,0002 7T)
1:1,690,000% AR (Z T T4 :

THART) RZE-_—F+=A
=T—B ZENINEERBAEHNHR
FEETESBRIAE(EE)ARE
5,077,000 (ZEZZF: ARK
1,619,0007T) RATHESHBIT A (AFE)
ARBZ6,000T (ZE=FF: AR
#157,0007T ) B =R (B 5520) - B =
—E-—F+A=+—HIEFE"
INERHEANATFEZBHOAR
#4,181,000C (ZZEZFF : lum A

R #1,461,0007T) DGR A Bk

=)
o °©
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. £RiEMEER AFE (&)

VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

The realised fair value gain on settlement of the foreign
currency forward contracts during the year amounted to
approximately RMB456,000 (2020: loss RMB10,145,000).

(i)  Exposure to currency risk

Except for the foreign currency forward contracts
as mentioned above, the following table details
the Group’s exposure at 31 December 2021 to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated
using the spot rate at the end of reporting period.
Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of the entities with functional
currency other than RMB into the Group's
presentation currency are excluded.

@

SRR &)
FRIMERRANBEEBEERA
F {6 Y25 40 7 A R #5456,0007E (=
T T F 5B AR®10,145,000
7T e

[\

() E¥EAR
BT LA 1R R @R B BR Y SN K
RHEH TRFWREER
—E_—F+ZA=+—HBHA
EBUANEEE AN EE
SHEREENECEREES A
EMELENEERE -BHE
27 BBREAARESR-
{5 PR 3R 5 HA RS 45 SRS 9 ) R 4R
H A AA REE LASNE TN 8
EERNEBMBERELE
RASEERNZEEEENZ

FERIBRAN o
2021
—E-—%
UsD AUD NzD
X b b HEBET

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®TRT ARWTRE

Trade and other receivables B 5 & H e IR 3,577 79,943 8,876
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 725 489 16
Trade and other payables Z5REMENFE (1,106) - -
Gross exposure arising from ERABERAR

recognised assets and liabilities EERE R AT 3,196 80,432 8,892
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. £RiRMEER AFE 2

VALUES (continuea)

(d) Currency risk (continuec) d E¥ERkE#)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) () E%EAR(£E)
2020
—TTHF
usb AUD NzZD
X BT HPET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT AREBTR
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H s R IR 26,630 23,136 702
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 31,463 5,308 4
Pledged deposits BEEER 59 = =
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTIE (11,357) = =
Gross exposure arising from ERREEREBE
recognised assets and liabilities EENERAE 46,795 28,444 706
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) WREDH

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit/(loss) after tax (and
retained profits) that would arise if foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. Other components of equity would not be
affected by changes in the foreign exchange rates.

TRINRAEE MR RE T
BEMERT AEENKRREK
wA (EE) (RREBEF)
A& HRERBERZS (K
SEARLEH AT ERER)
i E A ) B B S B o MmO L

M ER Y T RINEE R BB
TE-
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. £RiEREER AFEH &)
VALUES (continuea)

(d) Currency risk (continuec) d BE&ERkE#)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) BBEIF(E)
2021 2020
25 el a3
Increase/

Increase/  (Decrease) Increase/
(Decrease) in profit Increase/  (Decrease) in
in foreign after tax (Decrease) loss after tax
exchange and retained in foreign and retained
rates profits exchange rates profits
BRR&EEFR PR R T R

SER FERHN SN P REE A
t#/(FR) L#/(THE) LA/ (TH) LA/ (TR)

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

usb EW 5% 1,269 5% (7,266)
(5)% (1,269) (5)% 7,266

NZD AR IT 5% 813 5% (35)
(5)% (813) (5)% 35

AUD BT 5% 15,560 5% (1,673)
(5)% (15,560) 5)% 1,673
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. €@iEREER A FE (&)
VALUES (continuea)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (Continuea)

Results of the analysis as presented above
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit
after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into RMB at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of reporting period. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis at 31 December 2020 has been
performed on the same basis.

(e) Commodity price risk

(i)

The major raw materials used in the production
of the Group's products include fir and pinewood.
The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the prices
of these raw materials which are influenced by
the global market as well as regional supply and
demand conditions. Fluctuations in the prices of
raw materials could adversely affect the Group's
financial performance. The Group historically
has not entered into any commodity derivative
instruments to hedge the potential commodity
price changes. The Group monitors its commodity
price risk by widening its supply base and performs
bulk purchase when the price of raw materials is
low.

@ EEREk#)

(ii)

BRBEIN (&)

XE2JNDMEREAKE
%E%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁmﬁiﬁﬁ@&%%
FEENMREEEAERRED
B HY TR 3R S B 4 R B Y BE
RHBRARB RO E
BEE-

BRRRE AT R 35 HINE [ SR g
BEAZEFTEASERE
MeMIAE MZELMIA
FAREERRE HRARKT
HINERR - DT T RIERK
HINEBUBRRERNEEZ
PEEKARELENZEE R
ZEZEF+ZARA=+—8"
AITE R R A EEETT

e EmEKER

(i)

AREEASEERFAEE
R BREEARRIBA KE
B R % 5 R M RHE AR R )
R\ f - Mz E R B ERT
2RISR R E SRR
B R EHE R H R E) A B2
HAEBHOMBRREETH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. £RiEREER AFEH &)
VALUES (continuea)

(e) Commodity price risk (continued)

(i)

The Group invested in commodity during the
year and is exposed to fluctuations in the prices
of commodity which are influenced by the gold
market. Prices of gold are affected by a wide range
of global and domestic political and economic
factors which are beyond the control of the Group
A decrease in such prices could adversely affect
the Group’s financial performance. The Group will
keep monitor to its commodity investment.

(f) Fair values

)

(i)

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, pledged deposits, trade payables and
other payables, debentures and bank borrowings.
Due to the short term nature, their carrying values
approximate their respective fair values.

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

e EmEKRER#)

(i

AREBRFARERE R
HAWmEeMSTENEME
REBFE BRERIEI
EEABAREERNRERE
AEBEEREH - ZEEBRT
PR BEHI N SR E W A S R IR E
AR B NREE AR
EEmRE -

=

|

M 2FE

(i)

(ii)

REQAPETENESEMTA

RAREAFEAENESRTAR
RRERRSEEBM EHK
His el a2 W70
B REMENRE BFK
RITER-ERNEEHLE
FREEEAEMEBAFERS-

BAVEIRNEHMIA
RFEERHE
TREJIAKESH T AR
= HIR A R IR R S A
ENRFE Yo BABERY
%3 & E R E135% - A FEF
EFEN=—RRFERBE K
RPEAEDENERTILS
ZTMEETDEM R B ARE
MABRERERMEREE

s FEMRMEE:EERS
— & ABE (AR E
ERRBEELEEBER
BB IS 2 KRB R
B)FtENAFE

. F_REE-FERAE=
TaABE (BIReEE
HE-SOMAERHEA
HFE)AYXRFHAEKX
A ERg A BIET 2
AT E T BERE
ABEABETSEIEW
8 AR

PRAEMERERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &Rk AN REESIR)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. £RiEREER AFEH &)
VALUES (continuea)

(f) Fair values (continued) f DFE@®
(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value (i) RATFEIENEHMIA
(Continued) (#&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continuead) NFESERGE (F)
o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using . FZHMEE: RAEK
significant unobservable inputs TABREEFEND
F1E

31 December 2021
—E_-%+ZRA=+-H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—# -t '} E=8 st
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AER%TRE AER%TR AER%TRT AR%TR

Financial assets at fair value BATEFABRY
through profit or loss SHEE
- Derivative financial instruments  — {74 4& @ T A
(note 20) (HE#20) - 5,077 - 5,077
- Other financial assets -HiheMERE
(note 15(b)) (H1z150)) = 92,842 - 92,842
Financial assets at fair value BEoFEFAEMEZE
through other comprehensive hEmemEE
income
- Unlisted equity investments —FLTRARE
(note 15(@)) (Hi#15)) - - 2,342 2,342
- 97,919 2,342 100,261
Financial liabilities at fair value BRAVEFAEEZ
through profit or loss SRAR
- Derivative financial —THEERIA
instruments (note 20) (Hi20) - 896 - 896
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. £RiEREER AFEH &)
VALUES (continuea)

() Fair values (continued) ) RFE®
(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value (i) BRLOFEIERNEMIA
(Continued) (#&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continuead) NFESERE (F)

31 December 2020
“E-TF+-A=1+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H E-4 EF=R st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTE ARBTR ARETRL

Financial assets at fair value BATEGABRY
through profit or loss THEE
- Derivative financial instruments  — T4 ¢ @ T A
(note 20) (Hts20) - 1,619 - 1,619
- Other financial assets -HiemEE
(note 15(b)) (Wi 150)) 28,806 368 - 29174
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFAEMEZE
through other comprehensive hEmemEE
income
- Unlisted equity investments —FLETRARE
(note 15(@)) (Hist15@) - - 2,400 2,400
28,806 1,987 2,400 33,193
Financial liabilities at fair value BATEFABEZ
through profit or loss SRAR
- Derivative financial —THEE@IA
instruments (note 20) (H1220) - 157 - 157
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and HE-Z - —§R-T_FF
2020, there were no transfers between Level 1 +-—A=+—BLtFE F—
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The WEE—_HTAMITEER -
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between MEEAE=HIEFE=-NE
levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the Lo AREERNBREARATE
reporting period in which they occur. EMOFRERE PR S RE

BLEBBRREREHEE -

PRAEMERERAE 2" 3

T —FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &Rk AN REESIR)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. £atEMREERAFE &)
VALUES (continuea)
(f)  Fair values (continuea)

(ii)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's derivative
financial instruments assets and liabilities
amounting to RMB5,077,000 (2020: RMB1,619,000)
and RMB896,000 (2020: RMB157,000), respectively
(note 20) were carried at fair value, and these
instruments fall into Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

The fair value of foreign currency forward exchange
contracts in Level 2 is determined by discounting
the contractual forward price and deducting the
current spot rate. The discount rate used is derived
from the relevant government vyield curve as at the
end of reporting period.

Other financial assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s other
financial assets amounting to RMB92,842,000 (2020:
RMB368,000) (note 15(b)) were carried at fair value,
and these instruments fall into level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy described above.

As detailed in note 15(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, other financial assets
represent (i) investment products of PRC banks;
and (i) the Debts Instruments, in which, the interest
payments are linked to the relevant exchange rate
between Euro and United States Dollar.

The fair value of investment products of PRC bank
in Level 2 is determined with reference to the net
assets value of such investment products as at
31 December 2021 announced by the PRC bank.

The fair value of the Debts Instruments in Level 2
are determined by discounting future cash flow
of the principal amount and the expected value
of the interest payments arising from the Debts
Instruments. The expected value of the interest
payments are calculated with reference to the
forward exchange rate at the maturity date and the
contract exchange rate between Euro and United
States Dollar. The discount rate used is derived from
the relevant government yield curve as at the end
of reporting period.

NEE (&)

(i)

BATEIERNSEHIE
(#&)
FE_RDFEEEFNGE
Bl R EE
PTESRTA
RZE-Z—F+=_A=+—
A - AEBNTESRTA
EEREBESAIAARE
5,077,000 (ZZE — T4 :
AR #1,619,0007T) & A R I
896,000 (Z T —F4F: AR
#157,00070) (B 5E20) % 2
TFEANER ZETABN Lt
F_HRFESH-
BN FESHINE R
HNEB K RNFETEBIIRA
4R BB RN IR A B EAF)
KMMEE - FTE AR KR A
FA R 55 B SR /9 KB B8 BTT 12 3Rk
HEMFESF/L-
HEthemEE
RZFEZ—F+ZA=+—
B RAEFEEMESREEAA
R#92,842,000c (—ZE =%
£ AR #368,0000T) (st
150)) AR FEHER ZET
EBR LN E —FZAFES
o

4R & B 75 R R M sE15(b) P
HoHMme@MEEENPER
THREEM: (MEEIE-
S MEBTEETZ
BESEE RSz R

FE_MAFESHHN PR ERT
REERNATFEZ2RTER
TREBE-_E-_—F+_R
T RZREERNFEE
BHEE
F_RAFEFENEETLA
M EERBYZEETA
A2 BT E L F B ATH
BEHEENRKRERENR
AT HT IR HETE Y o A B A EY
BHREER2ZIHANEY
PE R ANER T E R T Y & R (& &
SPEMCFEARRE KA
TR 3R & A R #O A8 BE BT (2] 3R 11
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IS EmERMEE (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)
()  Fair values (continuea)
(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)
Valuation technigues and inputs used in Level 3 fair
value measurements

Unlised equity investments

The fair value of the Group’s unlisted equity
securities at 31 December 2021 and 2020 has been
arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by
an independent professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The unlisted equity securities are
categorised into level 3 of fair value measurement.

3. cREREERATE S

N 2FEE)

(i)

BAFEIRNERIA
(%)
FE=RRFEGTERANGE
R R A B

FLEMBEAEE

AEBEFLTRABZR_-F
k- F_FFt+_A
=+ BMAFETDRFER
SEYEBENBYEEMGE
B #ETT YA E - JE E AR AR
FOBRRFEABE=R-

Valuation Unobservable Relationship of
Fair value technique input Range inputs to fair value
OFE hERE AABRRHARE BE BABBROTENRE
RMB'000
ARETTL
31 December 2021
RZE-Z-%+-A=+-H
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
BATEFAEMZERED
TREE
- Unlisted equity securities 2,342 Market comparable  Discount for lack of 30% The higher the discount the
companies marketability lower the fair value
-k LmRARES %A LA B mREL TR @l ATESE
31 December 2020
RIEZEE+ZA=1+-H
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
BATER AR 2 E R
TREE
- Unlisted equity securities 2,400 Market comparable  Discount for lack of 30% The higher the discount the
companies marketability lower the fair value
-~ EHREES %A LA BT IEREL TR el ATESE

The fair values of unlisted equity securities
are determined using the price/book ratios of
comparable listed companies adjusted for lack of
marketability discount. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the discount for lack of
marketability. The Directors are of the view that the
impact of the fair value measurement to changes in
unobservable inputs if a change in those inputs to
a different amount was insignificant.

FLEMBEARESFHORFETR
RRRZ TS RBE RN
BRI B LB ETW AR
EEE - AFEFEERZT
CRBMETEZANEHE-ES
ARMZERABBEEERST
R&fE AT EFEETH
BRa \BEEHNTE
e

PRAEMERERAE

T —FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e IS EmERMEE (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &Rk AN REESIR)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. £RiRMEER AFE 2

VALUES (continuea)

(f)  Fair values (continuea) N “¥E®
(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value (i) BRLOFEIERNERMIA
(Continued) (#&)
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair FE=RANTFEFEEAEE
value measturements (Continued) BiTRGA 15 (&)

Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at
fair value based on significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) are as follows:

ERERTABRG AZE
(B=R)RAFEINENS
BTAMNYRIDT:

Financial assets at FVOCI

BOFEARM
RENRZEMEE
2021 2020

—E-—% —EETF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Unlisted equity securities: IELTRAES:
At 1 January n—H—H 2,400 3,048
Total gains or losses: Wz sk B 18 4R %R -
- in other comprehensive — BRI E M2 E R
income before tax (58) (648)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 2,342 2,400
(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (i) RELAFEIENESMEER

not carried at fair value

The carrying values of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

EENATE

7R 8 B 4% AR N o B 8 K AN B BR
MEBMTEREESARSEN -
E-—FR-FT-_FTF+=A
—t+—BNAFETEERE
Ho
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

36. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 36. A FEIEHEBBEAARRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2021 2020
2% —ETTHF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000

Hia AR®FR ARBTIT

Non-current assets ERBIE
Property, plant and equipment Y R MR 50 131
Interests in subsidiaries M B R R RE = 16 682,814 672,857
682,864 672,988
Current assets mEEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FEMRIE - Ee Rk
receivables H b B W RIE 102 36
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEEY 577 612
679 648
Current liabilities mERR
Other payables H b~ 308 853 1,195
Lease liability HEAE 51 23
Amounts due to subsidiaries JELT I B A |58 3,329 407
Debentures B 4,376 =
8,609 1,625
Net current liabilities nHAESE (7,930) 977)
Total assets less current liabilities FE#EREE R & 674,934 672,011
Non-current liabilities EREAEE
Debentures BEH 26 - 4,535
Lease liability HEBE - 53
- 4,588
Net assets BEFE 674,934 667,423
Equity Ba
Share capital A& A< 28(b) 35,345 32,591
Reserves it 28(d) 639,589 634,832
Total equity EaWE 29(a) 674,934 667,423
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RZE-_—_FZA=+—HESFZitk
31 March 2022. MR HETI) B o
Wu Zheyan Xie Qingmei
REE WiEx
Director Director
4 o

PRAEMERERAE 2/| 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &Rk AN REESIR)

37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 37. BE-Z-_—F+=-A=+—
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS H L FEC B =R EMIE
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE AR ERRRENTRERE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial HERSGaMBREEMN A BERg
statements, the IASB has issued a number of amendments and FHERIBEES DM ZIBISET KT £
new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended EREBEZ_T - —F+-A=1+—HIHF
31 December 2021 and which have not been adopted in the ERRER B RREETBEHREAK
consolidated financial statements. These include the following m-ERBRE T A EAEEERNS
which may be relevant to the Group. 18 -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RTH AR BN EEEN

Amendments to IFRS 3 1 January 2022
Reference to the Conceptual Framework

B B 5 ¥R S A RN SB35k (85T AR) B iER A 12 it —E-=-f—A—H
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) No mandatory effective date yet
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor determined but available for adoption

and its Associate or Joint Venture
B0 R B 765 R 5 2E RN S8 1057 M B B = 5T 2 Rl 862855 (2011) (fEETAN) o Il 1 A 230 B HA 1) R R E B AT AR R AR
HWEEMEBENRNAECE LR ZEENESTE

IFRS 17 1 January 2023
Insurance Contracts
B % B 75 S o 22 R BB 1755% —E-=%—A—H

A K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
rE ISR M EE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B HE I - AN REST)

37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 37. BE-FE=-_—F+=ZA=1+—
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS H 1k F E O MM 8 R £ M 1E
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE Rl WA ERRERENTERE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (continued) (#)

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RTHEMRARSZENEIEEEN

Amendments to IFRS 17 1 January 2023
Insurance Contracts

B B B 7 s MR RIS 1798 (1B ETR) —ZE-=F—AF—H
REEL

Amendments to IAS 1 1 January 2023
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

BB F A B9 (BFTA) T =F—H—H

BESEARBNIERD

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 1 January 2023
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BB & e R E19E R E R B R S R BB BIAE2 (B 4R) —E-=%—HF—H
BESER

Amendments to IAS 8 1 January 2023
Definition of Accounting Estimates

BIBR & 5T 2RI 85 (fERTA) —E-_=%—H—H
G2 ER

Amendments to IAS 12 1 January 2023

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from

a Single Transaction
BIBR st R 1298 (BT A) —F-=%—H—H
BE-RHEEMNEEMBERBENELTRIE

PRAEMERERAE

ZEFF®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &Rk AN REESIR)

37.

38.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (continued)

37.

BE_B-_—F+_A=+—
B FECEMHERERNE
R HETEAIRZEBNARTE
(#&)

Effective for accounting

periods beginning on or after
RTHEMAGBSZEMNEEEEN

Amendments to IAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
B et ERIE 1658 (BFTA)

M WE LR - AERE RS 2 T8 RIE

Amendments to IAS 37

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract1
BT ERIZE375% (BFTAN)
BEGH-BITEHHKAR

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41

B PR B 7% 3R 25 2E RII2018 = 202038 HA » & & ot

HBIPR BT S RS 2RI 15 - BRI B A iR & 56955

BRI R B 75 ¥R 5 321655 U R BRI R DI AN B BR & 51 B RSB A1 5RO T

The Directors anticipate that the application of all new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comprehensive statement of profit or loss has been
re-presented as if the operation discontinued during the
current year has been discontinued at the beginning of the
comparative period (note 11). Certain comparative amounts
have been reclassified to conform with the current year's
presentation.

38.

1 January 2022

—2--F—H—H

1 January 2022

—E2-—_F—H—H

1 January 2022

—E--F—H—H

EXEH EBRAMBMA] RMEFTBERE
B EERAG NS E R BRRE R A B
BHRRELBEATE-

e &

FEBERRCENZY BUAFERLLL
MEBCRELBHMA L (1) & T
HBREBECEFN OB UNEERFENE
BRI e
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